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CHINA SECURITIES REGULATORY COMMISSION

SHANGHAI STOCK EXCHANGE

The Company prepared its 2020 Annual Report in accordance with relevant regulations and
guidelines set forth by the China Securities Regulatory Commission and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, including the Publicly Listed Company Information Disclosure Content and Format
Guideline No. 2 — Content and Format of the Annual Report, the Shanghai Stock Exchange Listing
Rules and other relevant regulations and guidelines. This is a free translation into English of a
report issued in China and is provided solely for the convenience of English-speaking readers.
This report should be read in conjunction with, and is construed in accordance with, China law
and professional auditing standards applicable in China. Should there be any inconsistency
between the Chinese version and the English version, the Chinese version shall prevail. Investors
can access the Company’'s 2020 Annual Report on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(www.sse.com.cn).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear shareholders and investors,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of CSCEC, | would like to present to you the Annual Report 2020 of the Company, and to
express my sincere gratitude to all stakeholders who have long been supporting and interested in the reform and development of
the Company.

The year of 2020 was an exceptionally unusual year. Amid the complex international circumstances and the arduous and onerous
missions in relation to consolidating the reform and development initiatives of the PRC, especially the severe impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic, and under the strong leadership of the Party Central Committee with Comrade Xi Jinping at the core, CSCEC
has implemented in depth the decisions and policies of the Party Central Committee and the State Council, and implemented the
requirements of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission (SASAC) of the State Council. The Company
focused on the strategic goal of “one creation and five aspects of strength”, and made the utmost efforts to proceed with pandemic
prevention and control and promote production and operation. We made extraordinary progress while maintaining stability and
delivered a successful conclusion of the Company’s “13th Five-Year Plan” by facing up to challenges and overcoming difficulties
with bravery and tenaciousness. The value of new contracts for the whole year stood at RMB3.2 trillion, topping the RMB3 trillion
level for the first time, representing a year-on-year increase of 11.6%; the revenue was RMB1.62 trillion, representing a year-on-
year increase of 13.7%; the net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company was RMB44.94 billion, representing a year-
on-year increase of 7.3%, and basic earnings per share was RMB1.07, representing a year-on-year increase of 10.3%. CSCEC
becomes the only company in the global construction industry with both its value of new contracts and revenue exceeding RMB1
trillion. The Company ranked 18th on the Fortune Global 500 list, 3rd on the list of Fortune China 500, and 1st on ENR'’s Top 250
Global Contractors rankings. We continued to maintain the highest credit ratings among the global industry peers, enhanced our
market competitiveness and brand influence and consolidated our leadership in the industry.

In 2020, the Company’s business management delivered a number of breakthroughs and achievements, which are mainly
reflected in the following five aspects:

Firstly, the Company made remarkable achievements in respect of pandemic prevention and control as well as production
and operation. The Company firmly assumed the responsibility and mission of a central enterprise, and resolutely submitted to the
overall planning of the national anti-pandemic campaign. By efficiently coordinating and organizing resources from all parts of the
society, we completed 119 emergency hospital construction tasks, including Wuhan Huoshenshan and Leishenshan hospitals, and
was recognized, among others, as national advanced collective and advanced individuals in fighting the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Company coordinated the normalized pandemic prevention and control of tens of thousands of projects under construction in
a scientific manner, dispatched working groups and medical teams to help overseas branches handle the pandemic prevention
and control based on local conditions, and spared no effort to ensure the safety and health of 350,000 employees and more than 2
million migrant workers. The Company has taken multiple measures to promote the resumption of work and production accurately
and forcefully. A substantial number of major projects associated with the national economy and people’s livelihood have been
advanced as scheduled, and our key operating indicators have reached a record high, thus enabling the Company to effectively
playing the role of “stabilizer” and “ballast stone”.

Secondly, we submitted to the national strategy firmly and forcefully. The operation of the Company was deeply integrated
into the regional coordinated development strategy as we completed investments amounting to RMB308.6 billion in the Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei Region, the Yangtze River Economic Belt, the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the Yangtze River
Delta and the Yellow River Basin, and enhanced exchanges and cooperation with local governments and other central enterprises
to jointly promote the implementation of national strategies. Our overseas branches have been doing their best to hold on to
the local market, and have been deeply implementing the Belt and Road Initiative (“BRI”), thus making key overseas operating
indicators buck the declining trend.

Thirdly, the key reform tasks were advancing in depth. As we comprehensively implemented the three-year campaign of state-
owned enterprise reform and conscientiously enforced “two consistencies” to facilitate the improvement of modern enterprise
system with Chinese characteristics, we have achieved phased results of key special project reforms in pilot programs including
“mixed-ownership pilot campaign”, “Two-hundred Campaign” and “Science Reform Demonstration Action”. Furthermore, the
pilot program of the professional manager system reform has reaped more matured results, and the “Management Enhancement
Action in Alignment with International Top Level” has been carried out in a comprehensive manner. The phase IV A-share incentive
scheme smoothly kicked off with a view to stimulating the enthusiasm and creativity of managers and key personnel on a larger
scale.
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Fourthly, the “Six Special Actions” continued to be carried out in depth. The Company insisted on taking special actions to
strengthen our areas of weakness, having solved a number of bottlenecks that obstruct our high-quality development. Science
and technology innovation reached a new level. In particular, the Company won two more first prizes of the State Scientific and
Technological Progress Award, and the investment in R&D and the number of innovation achievements hit a record high. Efforts
were made to deploy and build a new generation of information architecture, and accelerate the pace of digital transformation
of enterprises. As the target of reducing leverage was successfully achieved, the debt-to-asset ratio at the end of the year was
73.7%, and the total asset turnover ratio improved year-on-year. We are more capable of making investment and management
decisions and operating PPP projects. Our refined project management was continuously improved, and the safety production
conditions was continuously optimized.

Fifthly, the Company undertook its social responsibility proactively and fruitfully. We successfully completed the task of
targeted poverty alleviation assistance, particularly, helping remove all three targeted poverty alleviation counties in Gansu from
the poverty-stricken counties list. We have safeguarded the timely payment for migrant workers and private enterprises as agreed.
Vigorous efforts were made to give full play to the supporting and leading functions of the industry chain and supply chain, thus
boosting the common development of upstream and downstream enterprises. We recruited 28,000 college graduates and created
2 million jobs, making an important contribution to stable employment.

The year 2020 is the final year of the 13th Five-Year Plan. Over the past five years, as CSCEC has been studying and implementing
the important remarks of General Secretary Xi Jinping on the reform and development of state-owned enterprises and building of
Party, the Company has made remarkable achievements in the reform and development, creating one miracle after another in the
history of global architecture and delivering a magnificent picture of Chinese construction. By accelerating the pace of reform,
the Company has been successfully selected by SASAC as one of the 10 model enterprises for the “World-class Enterprises
Campaign” and has established and expedited the achievement of its strategic goal of “one creation and five aspects of strength”.
The Company’s exceptional achievements in technological innovation and engineering excellence were demonstrated by 12
National Science and Technology Progress Awards, 25 awards of Tien-yow Jeme Civil Engineering Prize, 142 CSCEC Engineering
Luban Awards and 301 National Quality Engineering Awards. As the Company’s competitive edge in the whole industry chain
has been consolidated, we saw sustained enhancement in the development quality of housing construction, infrastructure, real
estate as well as prospecting and design, steady growth of our overseas business and fast expansion of our new business.
Specifically, the Company recorded an average annual growth rate of 12.9% in revenue and 11.5% in net profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company. The Company jumped from the 37th to the 18th place in the Fortune Global 500 rankings,
maintaining its position as the world’s largest investment and construction group. The Company has been practicing its social
responsibility in an in-depth manner. It was actively committed to improving people’s livelihood, successfully completing the task
of targeted poverty alleviation assistance, thus making positive contributions to the overall building of a well-off society. During
the period, the Company distributed dividends to all shareholders in an amount of more than RMB33.7 billion in an effort to bring
returns to investors.

The year 2021 marks the 100th anniversary of the founding of the Communist Party of China and the first year of the “14th Five-Year
Plan”. CSCEC will firmly hold high the great banner of Xi Jinping’s thought on socialism with Chinese characteristics in the new era,
fully implement the spirits of the 19th CPC National Congress, the 2nd, 3rd, 4th and 5th Plenary Sessions of the 19th CPC Central
Committee and the Central Economic Work Conference, earnestly arrange meetings of heads of central enterprises, adhere to
the general work guideline of making progress while maintaining stability. In addition, as we enter a new development stage, we
will follow a new development philosophy and help to foster a new development pattern. We will also focus on the “one creation
and five aspects of strength” strategic goals, accelerate the implementation of 166 strategic initiatives, enhance the normalized
pandemic prevention and control, strictly regulate production and operation and promote high-quality development. The Company
is striving to sign new contracts worth over RMB3.50 trillion and register a revenue of RMB1.76 trillion. The Company is dedicated
to bringing better returns to its shareholders and investors and embracing the 100th anniversary of the founding of the Party with
exceptional achievements and top-level performance.

Chairman: Zhou Naixiang

April 16, 2021
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IMPORTANT NOTES

The Company’s Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors and Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
guarantee that information contained in the Annual Report is true, accurate and complete and does not contain
any false representations, misleading statements or material omissions, and severally and jointly accept legal
responsibility thereof.

This Report was passed at the 53rd meeting of the second session of the Board of the Company, at which all the
Directors of the Company had attended.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership) issued a standard unqualified audit report to the
Company.

Zhou Naixiang, Head of the Company (Chairman); Wang Yunlin, Head of Accounting (Chief Financial Officer); and
Xie Song, Head of the Accounting Office (Chief Accounting Officer) guarantee that the financial report set out in the
Annual Report is true, accurate and complete.

Profit distribution plan or the conversion plan of reserves to share capital for the Reporting Period considered by
the Board of Directors

On the basis of 41,948,167,844 capital shares as of the date of disclosure, the Company proposes to distribute a cash
dividend of RMB2.147 (tax inclusive) for every 10 shares to all ordinary shareholders, and the ratio of the annual cash
dividend payout to net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company is 20.04%. In case of any change in its total
share capital prior to the record date of shareholders for profit distribution plan, the Company proposes to maintain
the distribution ratio per share unchanged, and to adjust the total distribution amount accordingly. An announcement
containing details of the adjustments will be made separately. The profit distribution plan was considered and approved at
the 53rd meeting of the second session of the Board and is subject to the consideration and approval by the 2020 annual
general meeting of the Company.

Risk statement with respect to forward-looking statements
\ Applicable O N/A

This Report contains certain forward-looking statements made on subjective assumptions and judgments on future policies
and economic trends, which may differ from the actual results or trends due to a range of variables.

The forward-looking statements regarding future plans, development strategies, etc. contained in this Report do not
constitute a material commitment to investors by the Company, and investors are advised to exercise attention.

Whether there is any non-operating misappropriation of funds of the Company by the controlling shareholder and
its related parties

No

Whether the Company has provided any guarantee in favor of external parties in violation of the prescribed
decision-making procedures

No

Whether more than half of the directors are unable to guarantee the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of
the Annual Report disclosed by the Company

No
Warning on major risks
During the Reporting Period, the Company is not exposed to major risks.

The Company has described possible related risks in detail in this Report. Please refer to the relevant information set out in
“Discussion and Analysis of the Future Development of the Company” under Section IV “DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
BUSINESS OPERATION” hereof.

Miscellaneous
\ Applicable O N/A

In addition to the audited financial data, the business data used in this Report comes from the management of the
Company.
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SECTION |1 DEFINITIONS

In this Report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following words shall have the following meanings:

Definitions of common words

China Construction First Group
Corporation to Eighth Engineering
Division

China Construction First Group Corporation Limited to China Construction Eighth
Engineering Division Corp. Ltd. (FEREHN—F (&EH) BRARZEFERRNE/\T
ERERAE)

CSCEC Xinjiang Construction & Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd. (FRE#FEET (&
=) BRAF)

China State Construction Engineering Corporation International Operations (H[E
BRERIZEAR)

The real estate development brand and business owned by China Overseas Land
& Investment Ltd. (FE BN EBERAT]) (00688.HK), a subsidiary of COHL

The real estate brand and business other than “China Overseas” that CSCEC is
engaged in

China Construction Engineering Design Group Corporation Limited (FRE A&t
EHBRATE)

China State Construction International Holdings Limited (FREZARERERFRA
1) (03311.HK)

China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited (FREBINEFEFBIRAT)
(00081.HK)

China State Construction Development Holdings Limited (FEZER M EFTIR
AE]) (00830.HK)

China Construction Fangcheng Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. (FH%
FiERAREREAGRAR)

China Construction Science and Industry Corporation Ltd. (formerly known as
China Construction Steel Structure Co., Ltd. (W BIELT))

China Construction Communications Engineering Group Co., Ltd. (FFEEEIL
EHBRAE)

China Construction Science & Technology Group Co., Ltd. (FERIFEEFHFRA
F]) (formerly known as China Construction Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (H7&
BEBRAR))

China Construction Harbour and Channel  China Construction Harbour and Channel Engineering Bureau Group Co., Ltd. (&
Engineering Bureau BEMRERERAT)

Articles of association of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited
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SECTION I COMPANY PROFILE AND KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

. Information of the Company
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Adaress Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing
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1. Overview of Basic Information

CSC Fortune International Center, Building 3, Courtyard 5, Anding
Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing

Postal code of the office address 100029
Website www.cscec.com
Email ir@cscec.com

Name of media designated by the Company China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities News, Securities Times
for information disclosure and Securities Daily

Website designated by CSRC for publishing
annual report

CSCEC Board Office
Place for inspection of annual report CSC Fortune International Center, Building 3, Courtyard 5, Anding
Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing

V. Overview of Stocks

Overview of stocks
Type Stock exchange Abbreviation Stock Code Original ticker
A share Shanghai Stock Exchange CSCEC 601668 N/A
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COMPANY PROFILE AND KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Other Relevant Information

Accounting firm engaged
by the Company (domestic)

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
(Special General Partnership)

Level 16, Ernst & Young Tower, Oriental Plaza,
No. 1 East Chang An Avenue, Dong Cheng District,
Beijing, PRC

Key Accounting Data and Financial Indicators for the Last Three Years

h Key accounting data

Key accounting data

Revenue

2020

1,615,023,327

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company

after deducting non-recurring profit or loss

Net assets attributable to shareholders of the Company

At the end
0f 2020

300,421,431

(I Key financial indicators

Key financial indicators

Basic eamings per share (RMB/share)

2020

Basic EPS (RMB/share) after deducting non-recurring

profit or loss

Weighted average return on net assets after deducting

non-recurring profit or loss (%)

Net assets per share attributable to
ordinary shareholders (RMB/share)

o 2018
ange
2019 YoY (og/o) .Aﬂer Before
adjustment adjustment
1,419,836,588 187 1,199,324,525  1,199,324,525
81,467,846 15.7 71,788,788 71,788,788
41,881,399 73 38,241,324 38,241,324
42,491,547 0.5 37,535,578 37,535,578
34,220,077 / 10,311,290 10,311,290
At the end of 2018
At the end Change
of 2019 YoY (%) After Before
adjustment adjustment
277,197,681 8.4 243,892,279 243,961,186
2,034,451,929 78 1,849,004412  1,861,840,298
41,975,630 0.03 41,985,174 41,985,174
o 2018
ange
2019 YoY (og/o) .Aﬂer Before
adjustment adjustment
0.97 10.3 0.87 0.87
0.96 11.5 0.85 0.85
0.98 1.0 0.85 0.85
Decrease
15.60 0f 0.06 1597 15.97
percentage
points
Decrease
15.84 of 1.08 15.66 15.66
percentage
points
6.10

2.147

1.85

Explanation on the Company’s key accounting data and financial indicators for the three years preceding the end of the

Reporting Period
\V Applicable [JN/A

® Due to the Company’s adoption of new accounting standards during the period, the amounts before and after

adjustment represent those at the end of the 2018 Reporting Period and those at the beginning of period after the

adoption of new standards on January 1, 2019 respectively.
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VIl

®

When calculating earnings per share, the restricted shares that have not yet met the unlocking conditions and
become invalid are deducted from the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued by the Company.

According to relevant accounting requirements, when calculating earnings per share, the dividends or interests of
other equity instruments such as preferred stocks and perpetual bonds and restricted shares shall be excluded
from the net profit attributable to shareholders of the listed company.

The net assets per share attributable to ordinary shareholders are the net assets attributable to shareholders of the
parent company deducting other equity instruments, and then divided the balance by the total number of issued
shares at the end of the Reporting Period.

Dividend amount (tax inclusive).

For details, please refer to Note X| “Share-based payment” and Note V. 63 “Earnings per share” to the financial statements
under Section XI “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof, and Supplementary Information from the Management Il “Return on Net
Assets and Earnings Per Share” and other relevant information.

Differences between Accounting Data under Domestic and Foreign Accounting Standards

(1)

(I

(1

Differences of net profit and net assets attributable to shareholders of the Company in the
financial report disclosed in accordance with the International Accounting Standards and
Chinese Accounting Standards

[ Applicable +/ N/A
Differences of net profit and net assets attributable to shareholders of the Company in the

financial report disclosed in accordance with both foreign accounting standards and Chinese
accounting standards

[] Applicable v N/A

Explanation on differences between domestic and foreign accounting standards

[ Applicable +/ N/A

Key Financial Data of 2020 by Quarter

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
(Jan. — Mar.) (Apr. —Jun.) (Jul. — Sep.) (Oct. — Dec.)
Revenue 263,830,618 464,357,149 347,918,442 538,917,118
Net profit attributable to shareholders
7,572,374 12,267,411 11,297,053 13,807,412

of the Company
Net profit attributable to shareholders

of the Company after deducting 7,419,483 11,163,925 11,122,972 12,979,142

non-recurring profit or loss
Net cash flows from operating activities -90,976,368 20,331,162 -17,767,836 108,684,823

Note: The Company’ s key quarterly financial data has not been audited.

Explanation on differences between the quarterly data and data contained in regular reports disclosed

[1Applicable +/ N/A
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- SECTION Il COMPANY PROFILE AND KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

X. Statement of Non-Recurring Profit or Loss

\ Applicable [JN/A

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Note
Non-recurring items Amount of 2020 ) . Amount of 2019 Amount of 2018
(if applicable)
Gains from disposal of non-current assets 143,538 / 80,472 29,931
Non-operating
Government grants related with non-daily operations 110,094 income and 137,067 75,848
expenses
) . Investment
Gain from stepped acquisition 133,746 ) 248,249 238
income
In addition to the normal operation of the company’s
effective hedging business, income/losses arising from
changes in fair value and from disposal/redemption of
) . . L ) 247,894 / -436,009 -325,733
the financial assets held for trading, derivative financial
assets, financial liabilities held for trading, derivative
financial liabilities and other debt investments
Interest income from loans
) ) ) 58,784 / 492,765 247,830
non-financial corporations
Reversal of the provision on receivables and
o o . 1,288,041 / 2,291,693 849,770
contract assets for impairment on an individual basis
Income from disposal of long-term equity investments 7,016 / 274,341 3,385
Investment income from disposal of subsidiaries 136,721 / 138,333 226,038
Losses from non-operating activities or occasional matters 1,212,987 / 3,127,374 /
Other non-operating income and expenses than the
. -278,721 / 77,620 87,215
above items
Impact on income tax -559,777 / -615,658 -384,906
Impact on non-controlling interests (after tax) -241,595 / -171,647 -103,394
Total 2,258,728 / -610,148 705,746
Xl.  Iltems Measured at Fair Value
\ Applicable [JN/A
Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB
) Opening Closing Current Effect on
Name of item )
balance balance changes current profits
Exchangeable bonds 11,635,832 4,421,322 7,214,510 60,204
Financial assets held for trading 902,072 244,459 -657,613 12,266
Investments in other equity instruments 8,069,043 5,838,384 -2,230,659 156,146
Other non-current financial assets 50,510 335,510 285,000 0
Accounts receivable financing 3,674,166 3,788,082 113,916 0
Current portion of non-current assets 0 182,608 182,608 0
Other debt investments 612,106 356,377 -255,729 19,278
Other current assets 3,557,504 2,906,177 -651,327 59,533
Total 28,501,233 18,072,919 -10,428,314 307,427

Xll.  Miscellaneous

] Applicable  N/A
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SECTION Il OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATION

. Explanation on the Company’s Principal Business, Business Model and Industry Information
during the Reporting Period

()

Principal business and business model

As an investment and development conglomerate bestowed with the longest history of specialized and market-
oriented operation, the most developed level of integration in the PRC and the largest scale in the world, CSCEC
is a market leader in housing construction engineering, infrastructure construction and investment, real estate
development and investment, prospecting, and design etc. CSCEC ranks 18th in Fortune Global 500 (2020) and
among top 3 on the list of Fortune China 500 for eight consecutive years, and tops the list of the 2020 Top 250
Global Contractors published by Engineering News-Record (ENR). CSCEC has been rated as Grade A by the
SASAC of the State Council for 15 times. The leading global rating agencies, i.e., S&P Global Ratings, Moody’s
Investors Service and Fitch Ratings affirmed CSCEC’s ratings as A/A2/A (respectively) with “Stable” outlook, the
highest credit ratings among the global industry peers.

CSCEC stands as one of the most competitive investment companies in China, specializing in real estate
development, financing and investment for construction projects and integrated urban construction. Featuring
a “four in one” business model integrating planning and design, investment and development, infrastructure
construction and housing construction engineering, it provides a turnkey solution covering all aspects, processes,
elements for urban development projects, with a priority given to the synergy between internal resource integration
and business development.

Tapping into more than 100 countries and regions, CSCEC, as the largest engineering contractor in the world,
specializes in a broad range of business covering all aspects related to urban development and each stage
throughout construction projects. The Company is well equipped with the capabilities of comprehensive design,
construction and land development, and is well positioned to compete relying on its complete industry chain
of construction products ranging from R&D on technology of products, prospecting and design, real estate
development, construction contracting, equipment manufacturing and asset operation to property management.
Among most super-high-rise buildings with a height of 300 meters or above in China, those technically
sophisticated and structurally complicated are built by CSCEC.

Among the 10 model enterprises selected by SASAC for the “World-class Enterprises Campaign”, CSCEC is the
only company engaged in a “perfectly competitive market”. Under the guidance of “Decision to Accelerate the
Establishment of World-class Enterprises” and the “Implementation Plan of the World-class Model Enterprises
Campaign”, we continue to explore the science connotation of “one creation and five aspects of strength”' in
alignment with world-class enterprises and advanced enterprises in the industry, focus on enhancing scientific and
technological innovation, improve governance effectiveness, deepen reform of state-owned enterprises, integrate
into national strategies, promote international operations, accelerate digital transformation, promote green
development, develop and expand new business, and improve the level of leadership of Party building.

CSCEC further deepened the reform and innovation as the driving force, benchmarking with the top enterprises
within and beyond the industry in the world, steadily promoted the “Two-hundred Campaign” reform, the “mixed-
ownership pilot campaign” and the “Innovative Technology Reform Demonstration Enterprise” initiative, in a
way to continuously optimize our corporate governance mechanism and modern enterprise system. “Two-
hundred Campaign” reform reaped promising result, the Second Construction Co., Ltd. of China Construction
First Group Corporation Limited advanced the reform in all aspects. The specific measures included introduction
of strategic investors, completion of capital increase and share increase, transition from a sole shareholder to
binary shareholders, taking office by the first batch of professional managers and simultaneously facilitating the
“three systems” reform consisting of administration, labor and distribution. CSCEC adopted a market-based
human resource management approach comprehensively whereas we had in place full coverage of performance
appraisal, establishing a performance culture and remuneration system to provide incentives for value creation
and sophisticated and diversified incentive mechanisms including restricted share plan, share option incentive,
bonus incentive and tenure incentive in a bid to stimulate the vitality of the Company. Under the market-oriented
and contract-based guidance, CSCEC introduced the reform of professional manager system in seven subsidiaries
and the tenure system and contractual management of managerial members in the subsidiaries which carried out
“innovative technology reform” and “mixed-ownership pilot campaign”. Accordingly, “three systems” reform has
been undergoing in an in-dept manner.

! “one creation” refers to the goal of establishing CSCEC as a world-class company with strong global competitiveness. “five aspects of
strength” refer to strong value creativity, strong innovation leadership, strong brand influence, strong international competitiveness and
strong cultural soft power.
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Upholding the guiding philosophy of “implementing the new development concepts and adhering to high-quality
development”, CSCEC made concrete efforts to advance the restructuring, transformation and upgrading. The

Company took the strategic goals of “one creation and five aspects of strength” as the guide for the “14th Five-

Year Plan”, to unify our thinking and lead the future, and uphold the concepts of marketization, high-quality

development, reform and innovation, green development, people-oriented development, development conforming

to greater security and international development. Motivated by our determination of building up a globally
competitive top-class enterprise, and on the basis of facilitating the reform of state-owned enterprises, the
Company accelerated “166” strategic initiatives® and was committed to becoming a leading global conglomerate

with strong value creativity, strong innovation leadership, strong brand influence, strong international

competitiveness and strong cultural soft power.

“

Housing
construction
engineering

Infrastructure
construction and
investment

Positioned as a competitive player in the entire construction industry chain, we are committed
to providing domestic and foreign clients with one-stop services from design, construction to
implementation of major high, big, professional, cutting-edge, difficult and special construction
projects. To this end, we implemented a series of measures, including tapping our potential,
strictly controlling over construction quality and costs, and improving client satisfaction.
Meanwhile, we adhered to a marketing strategy oriented toward “high-end markets, high-end
customers, high-end projects” and an operation strategy prioritizing “low-cost competition, high
quality management”. We have constructed a large number of extremely challenging landmark
projects ranging from skyscrapers, large public buildings, clean plants, hotels, hospitals to
schools in the civilian, public and industrial construction sector, representing the highest
standard in the field of housing construction in China, which established CSCEC as a leader
in the Chinese and global housing construction markets. As a trendsetter in the industry, the
Company seeks to enhance the standards of ecological civilization and green development,
reduce energy consumption, and create an excellent living environment for the public through
industrialized, eco-friendly and intelligent construction, reinforcing people’s sense of gain,
spiritual well-being and security.

Placing equal emphasis on construction and investment operations, we completed many high-
profile domestic and international infrastructure projects ranging from urban rail transits, high-
speed railways, extra-large bridges, expressways, municipal roads, urban utility tunnels, ports
and waterways, electricity, mining, metallurgy, petrochemical, airports to nuclear power plants,
leveraging our advantages in technology, management and talent. In addition, the Company
rapidly grows to be the best Chinese infrastructure financier and investor in reliance upon solid
financial strengths. Recognized as one of the most trusted investors for BT (Build-Transfer),
BOT (Build-Operate-Transfer) and PPP (Public-Private Partnership) projects, we invested in
numerous key national and regional projects, with long-term strategic partnerships in respect of
infrastructure investment and construction established with a number of provincial, autonomous
region, and direct controlled municipal governments and dozens of major cities. Furthermore,
infrastructure facilities built by us can also be found in dozens of countries and regions
worldwide, including North America, Central America, Hong Kong SAR, Macao SAR, Southeast
Asia, North Africa, Central and West Africa, South Africa, Middle East, and Central Asia. As an
important driver for economic growth and effective implementation of national strategies, the
infrastructure industry bolsters areas of weakness at the grassroots level to foster the public’s
well-being, and serves as the main vehicle for driving development along the “Belt and Road”
and for strengthening interconnection between China and countries covered by the BRI. As a
strong supporter of national strategies and serving the needs of people’s livelihood, CSCEC
will continue to broaden its infrastructure business and actively participate in new infrastructure
business with the aim of improving people’s livelihood, bolstering areas of weakness to
promote the public’s well-being, and setting the development direction for emerging industries.

“166” strategic initiatives refer to “One Improvement, Six Commitments and Six Specialization” strategic initiatives. Specifically, One
Improvement means further improving political stance. Six Commitments means commitment to high-quality development, commitment to
innovation-driven development, commitment to serving national strategies, commitment to deepening reform of state-owned enterprises,
commitment to accelerating transformation and upgrading, and commitment to incorporation of Party leadership into corporate governance. Six
Specialization means the special acts of deepening inspection and rectification, enhancing scientific and technological innovation, disposing of

inefficient and ineffective assets, improving basic management, promoting information building-up and strictly enforcing safety production.
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China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. (“China Overseas”) and China State Construction
Land (“CSC Land”) are the two real estate brands owned by CSCEC. Specifically, China
Overseas encompasses all real estate business of COHL, and has always ranked among the
most valuable property brands in China, with strong business presence in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (GBA), the Yangtze River Delta, the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei Region and dozens of economically dynamic cities across the country. It boasts a
well-established and balanced nationwide strategic business network. CSC Land is the
brand used by the real estate business of the Company’s subsidiaries and branches, mainly
engaged in the middle-end real estate projects in first- and second-tier cities, as well as the
localized operation of real estate projects in third- and fourth-tier cities. CSCEC has stepped
up synergy between internal resources integration and business development to vertically
integrate a wide variety of operations ranging from investment, property development, design
and construction to property operation and services. Leveraging on extraordinary construction
technology, advanced real estate development concept and first-class property service quality
, it has established a sophisticated investment operation and risk management system in the
real estate business area, and formed a unique competitive advantage in the industry chain.
Meanwhile, the Company has actively innovated products and business models and focused
on the public’s housing needs, and has been closely involved in the “New Urbanization”
campaign to make life more joyful for the people and build a more beautiful China.

The prospecting and design business arm of CSCEC mainly consists of seven top-rated
major prospecting and design service providers, with business covering architectural design,
urban planning, engineering survey, public utility design, etc. The Company has established
itself as a market leader in super-high-rise buildings, airports, hotels, sports facilities and
exhibition venues and ancient architects. We currently have almost 20,000 high-end technical
professionals specializing in construction engineering and design, public utility engineering
and design, engineering survey and geotechnical engineering, outranking all other market
players. The Company has made outstanding contributions to development of the sector in
terms of design originality, technology innovation and industry standards development.

CSCEC is one of the earliest companies that conducted international engineering contracting
business in China, and has always upheld the operating philosophy of “going global”.
After continuous overseas market development and operation over the decades, the
Company has established strong business presence in the global markets, with foreign
engineering contracting business covering housing construction, manufacturing, energy,
transportation, water conservancy, industry, petrochemical, hazardous substance treatment,
telecommunications and sewage/waste treatment projects, while exploring and successfully
completing overseas real estate projects. In terms of project operation, apart from the
traditional general contracting model, the Company actively explored other project operating
models, such as financing and investment channels to give an impetus to such project
business models as general contracting, DB (Design-Build), EPC (Engineering-Procurement-
Construct), BOT and PPP. Meanwhile, attempt has been made in respect of capital operations
such as cross-border mergers and acquisitions to enhance the quality and efficiency of
development overseas business. Adhering to the guiding principle of “prioritizing overseas
markets”, the Company has strengthened localized business management focusing on
integration of resources, and has developed overseas business development strategies from a
loftier vantage point and with a strong sense of responsibility to promote business globalization,
in line with the objectives of the BRI.
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(1) Overview of the industry

The construction industry is an important pillar industry
of the national economy, which has a close relationship
with the development of the entire national economy
and the improvement of people’s livelihood. In recent
years, China’s construction industry has continued
to develop rapidly, with its scale expanding, and the
construction capacity improving. In 2020, the growth of
China’s construction sector decelerated amid an increase
in market concentration. Sticking to the proactive
fiscal policy, the state government has expanded
effective investments, increased investment in strategic
emerging industries, stepped up the upgrade focusing
on industrialization, digitalization and smart operation
of construction, with a view to cultivating “Chinese
Construction” brands with global competitiveness. We
have also witnessed a shift of focus in innovation and
application of technologies toward BIM, industrial Internet,
5G, artificial intelligence, Internet of Things (loT), big
data, cloud computing, robots and building machines,
etc. Meanwhile, adhering to the “green development”
strategy, the government has worked out a scientific
and sound urbanization plan focusing on improving the
ecological environment, eco-friendly planning, design
and construction standards, and is fully committed to
building smart cities to promote harmony between people
and nature, leveraging digitalized construction, IT and
other new technologies.

The property construction market has great potential
for growth. According to the national urbanization
plan, China’s urban population will grow to nearly one
billion by 2030, implying a total demand for residential
properties of eighty billion to ninety billion square meters
(including housing properties and public buildings). A
considerable gap between supply and demand indicates
the promising prospect of the property construction
market. Specifically, the government has pushed forward
new urbanization initiatives such as the transformation
of old urban residential blocs and communities, as well
as medical and healthcare, cultural and entertainment,
sports and fitness facilities, and facilities for people’s
livelihood, opening up new opportunities for construction
companies. The government has also promoted
prefabricated building development and the proportion
of newly started prefabricated buildings has increased
year by year, which is expected to inject tremendous
growth momentum into the construction market. As the
BRI deepened and gained traction on the international
stage, a growing number of countries have joined the
global development initiative, leading to continuous
growth of our prospective overseas markets. CSCEC has
a proven track record of effective branding, management
and technology development in the upscale property
construction market, and maintained its leading position
in the field. Meanwhile, benchmarked against the leading
international standards, CSCEC has actively implemented
“prefabrication + internet + loT” technological innovation
and construction practices, aiming to develop investment,
industry and technology platforms that promote

eco-friendliness, smart buildings and construction
industrialization within the CSCEC system.

Focusing infrastructure investment on key areas.
In 2020, the central government has made important
deployment for the construction of urban agglomerations
and central cities. In terms of improving the carrying
capacity of the central cities, the priorities were to
bolster areas of weakness of people’s livelihood
projects, construct public service projects, build
human settlements, and develop new districts and
large industrial towns in first- and second-tier cities. In
terms of connection network improvement within urban
agglomerations, the priorities were to build the intercity
rail transit network in the Yangtze River Delta, the GBA,
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region and other regions, and to
bolster areas of weakness such as railways, motorways,
water transportation, airports, water conservancy,
energy, agricultural and rural development, ecological
and environmental protection, and construction of
urban parking facilities and cold chain logistics facilities
in urban and rural areas. Specifically, rail transport,
underground space, eco-environment protection and
telecommunication facility are expected to be the fastest
growing segments, and the total volume of road and
railway projects will remain at a high level. Along with
the commercialization of the 5G technology in the future,
the focus of infrastructure investment will shift toward the
new-generation infrastructure such as Al, the Industrial
Internet and loT.

The real estate sector is transiting to a stock-based
model. In 2020, adhering to the regulatory policy that
“houses are for living in, not speculation”, the central
government implemented measures specifically based
on local conditions, adopted multiple strategies, and
stepped up efforts to establish a multi-supplier and multi-
channel housing system that places equal emphasis on
rental housing and properties for sale. The goal is to meet
the housing needs of all Chinese residents, while shifting
the public’s perception of housing properties toward
their intrinsic function — houses are for people to live in.
Stringent regulatory policies were maintained, and as
the government introduced policies such as the “three
red lines” for real estate companies, the incremental
market tends to stabilize, and the real estate industry
will gradually shift from an incremental model to a stock
model. Urban renewal is an inevitable product of the
stock era, which contains huge space and opportunities.
Besides, China’s urban renewal focuses more on
refinement and micro-renewal, and the transformation
of old communities has become a hot spot. The Ministry
of Housing and Urban-Rural Development (MOHURD)
estimates that the overall investment of transformation
of old communities exceeds RMB4 trillion. At present,
local authorities have successively issued three-year
action plans for the transformation of old communities,
and the MOHURD has launched pilot projects in 15 cities
including Xiamen and Guangzhou. The most prominent
feature of the transformation is “renovation”, which
promotes the development of the market for decoration
and public supporting facilities construction.
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Explanation on Significant Changes in the Company’s Major Assets during the Reporting Period

\ Applicable [JN/A

During the Reporting Period, there were no significant changes in the Company’s major assets. For details of changes
in major operating assets, please refer to the relevant information of “Analysis of assets and liabilities” under Section IV
“DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF BUSINESS OPERATION” hereof.

Among them: overseas assets amount to 1,854 (Unit: 100 million yuan, Currency: RMB), accounting for 8.5% of the total
assets. The above data of overseas asset has not been audited.

Analysis of the Core Competitiveness during the Reporting Period

\ Applicable [ N/A

Market-oriented operating mechanism

As a main body of the market economy, CSCEC will always adhere to the market-oriented operating mechanism, to
respect, abide by, adapt to and take advantage of market rules, and gradually enhance its ability to operate in compliance
with market rules. Faced with the cut-throat market competition, CSCEC will take innovative approaches to tap into and
continuously meet the real and potential needs of customers, and continuously retain and attract customers with high-
quality products and value-added services. The Company will always adhere to the concept focused on performance,
and pursue excellence in performance by clearly defining objectives, scientifically designing processes and strengthening
efficient operations, as well as pursuing the growth at scale supported by profitability. With the efficient utilization and
operation of resources, the Company will improve efficiency in turnover of assets, and achieve return on assets higher
than that of average level of the industry while vigorously promoting economies of scale, and continue to gain higher
market share through steady growth. We always pay close attention to cash flow and take all measures to ensure net
operating cash inflow to pursue the sustainable and healthy development of the Company.

Innovation is the eternal focus for enterprises. As uncertainties in the market economy are becoming common, CSCEC will
break the market equilibrium with creativity, actively capture profit opportunities, seek to reorganize production elements,
continuously enhance quality of products and service, and open up new markets, new business and new customer base
to make full use of changes to explore innovation, thereby enhancing the Company’s market competitiveness. As an
economic organization, the Company will always be committed to pursuing economic performance, while believing that
an enterprise that truly stands up to market trends and has an ever-growing foundation must be a model for practicing
social responsibility. CSCEC will uphold the concept of green development, be dedicated to building quality projects for
the society, actively fulfill social responsibilities, and boost the happiness of people.

(II) Direction of globalization

The Company has always been adhering to the international business philosophy, solidly promoting the high-quality
development of overseas business, focusing on the integration of domestic and foreign resources, and is committed to
becoming a multinational company that allocates resources globally and operates efficiently. Thus, the Company took
swift actions amid the COVID-19 pandemic, and further enhanced its brand influence and global competitiveness by
leveraging on advantages of the whole industry chain and global resource allocation capabilities. The Company adopted
a localized operating approach, deeply developed the market where the Company was operated and deeply participated
in the urban development to actively explore a business model conforming to the development of the host country.
Through localized operation and by establishing a community of interests with local partners, we achieved sustainable
development in the host country. The Company insisted on market-oriented competition, improved its internationalization
level through competition with world-class enterprises and win-win cooperation, and broadened its global thinking with
a view to laying a solid foundation for the Company to participate in global competition and cooperation at a higher level
and to a deeper extent.

(111) Relevant and diversified and vertically integrated expansion

Producing or offering products or services that can continue to secure, serve and satisfy customers, is an important
guarantee for the long-term development of the Company. In terms of selecting products (or services), the Company has
centered on the diversification based on its existing technological advantages and market advantages. The Company
will continue to maintain its traditional advantages in prospecting and design, housing construction and real estate
development, while actively expanding horizontally in other fields such as infrastructure investment and construction
business.

CSCEC is committed to the vertically integrated expansion of investment, design, construction, operation and services,
and strives to establish a unique market position in the domain of its business, creating competitive advantages that are
difficult for its competitors to follow suit.
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(IV) Competitive strategy featuring high quality, low cost and differentiation

Providing products and services with high quality and at low cost to the public has always been the goal of CSCEC. High
quality comes from the Company’s technological, human resources and organizational advantages; while low cost stems
from the Company’s integrated business model, benefits of scale as well as economies of speed. As an outstanding
SOE representative in a perfectly competitive industry, CSCEC has always taken “making appropriate and correct
decisions and doing right things” as the basic direction of the Company’s production, operation and career development.
Focusing on implementing the marketing strategy of “high-end markets, high-end customers, high-end projects”, the
Company continues to carry out “differentiation oriented” market operations and competition. Through implementing the
“differentiation” strategy, different subsidiaries within the Company focus on their respective market segments, either
differentiating by profession (specialization), or by region (regionalization), to develop their own “core products, unique
services” to reduce internal disorderly competition and strengthen the overall advantage of external competitiveness.

(V) A management and control model with balanced authorization and centralization

Showing respect to the development history of CSCEC, a competitive group management and control model is explored
and formed on the basis of the Group formed by multi-legal carriers. The Company’s headquarters is positioned as
one that exercises strategic management and control, fulfilling the responsibilities and duties of leadership, service
and supervision, and insists on the liberalization and management of the second-level subsidiaries. The second-level
subsidiaries operate under the authorization of the Company and enjoy the corresponding authorities based on the
extent of the responsibility. For labor-intensive and mature business, we increase the authorization and expand market
contact to speed up market response and improve service quality. For capital-intensive and less mature business, we
focus on resources to bring impact to target market segments, and actively seek rapid breakthroughs in target markets
on the basis of effectively avoiding risks. Aiming at different market segments, we adopt different strategies for market
competition and corresponding management and control models.

VI) Results-oriented and accountability-based management system

Various management efforts of the Company have always been committed to the realization of the Company’s mission,
vision and goals. The fundamental purpose of management is to improve the efficiency of our work, while making
our employees more fulfilling and the Company more prosperous in the future. By way of the organic integration of
the management actions in the various functional areas of the Company, a vital, scientific, reasonable, concise and
efficient system is formed, which is believed to play an effective role in avoiding taking isolated and disorderly actions
and making excuses, and achieving the unification of responsibilities and rights. We firmly believe that managers are
defined by their responsibilities. In order to improve the quality of products and services, the Company is committed
to the standardization of management, technology and works. With the help of information technologies and through
the “integration” of standardization and informatization, work efficiency is improved, and “bottom line management” is
implemented to enhance product quality and reduce operating costs.

(V) “People-centered” human resource management

The Company firmly believes that human resource is one of the core competitiveness of the Company. For CSCEC,
one of the aspects that can best reflect its competitive advantage is that it has a large group of talents dedicated to the
enterprise and their careers, having faith in that the interests of the team are higher than those of the individuals, having a
good knowledge of technology and management and good at marketing with merits as self-discipline, self-motivation and
self-betterment.

The Company will always follow the basic human resources management concept of “retaining talents with career
development opportunities, emotional connection and rewards” and “caring for individuals”, and will embed this concept
into the human resources management policies of the Company. The Company intends to establish a salary incentive
mechanism that combines individual value creation and ability and shares the solid results of the development of
enterprise, while strengthening the attraction and development of talents to better provide strong talent support to its
development.

The Company will always adhere to the employment principle of having both ability and morality while deeming virtue as
a priority. The Company believes that, “every individual has his/her shortcomings and strengths”, and does not pursue
perfect talents, but instead follows the concept of “employing people with strengths”. The Company adheres to the
“performance-based principle”, and “evaluates talents based on performance” through the “horse racing mechanism”.
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(VI Promote development under the strategy of “integration of industry and finance”

Under the ever-changing external environment and in response to the diversified needs of its principal business, CSCEC
gives full play to the role of industrial finance, tapping the potential of its internal financial service institutions and providing
financial services for the development of its principal business, thus forming an industry-financing integration mode
with the characteristics of CSCEC. Leveraging on external financial market and internal professional financial platforms
such as CSC Finance and China Construction Capital, and in line with the characteristics of the industry in which the
Company engaged, the Company has carried out domestic and overseas capital pooling, loan pooling, bank credit
financing, bond financing, equity financing, structured financing, accounts receivable factoring, asset securitization,
supply chain financial, insurance pooling and other business, thus providing timely, differentiated financial services
which are irreplaceable by social finance and playing an active role in driving the development of the principal business,
broadening financing channels, reducing financing costs, revitalizing stock assets, and realizing capital reduction
and efficiency gains. At the same time, the Company strictly implements relevant national policies, strengthens daily
management, strictly controls financial risks, and stops its capital moving from the real economy to the virtual economy
and arbitrage of idle funds.

(IX) Core competitiveness driven by innovation in science and technology

The Company believes that science and technology are the primary productive force, which is a critical pull for the growth
and expansion of the Company. Despite being a player in a traditional industry, our continuous efforts in innovation in
science and technology have brought changes in our production and organization models, ensuring our leadership
in cost control and providing support for economies of scale and speed to form solid competitiveness in key aspects.
During the “13th Five-Year Plan” period, the Company took the lead in undertaking 10 national key R&D projects, ranking
first among building construction enterprises, involving green building, intelligent construction, building industrialization,
energy conservation and environmental protection, basic engineering software and other fields.

During the “13th Five-Year Plan” period, the Company accelerated the construction of an open and collaborative
technological innovation system, further stimulated the innovation drive, intensified efforts to make breakthroughs in
key and core technologies, and created strong industrial technology advantages. In terms of deepening the reform
of the science and technology system, the Company improved the system of scientific research management, results
management, and incentives for R&D talents by granting scientific research personnel the authority to make decisions on
the technical route, expanding the authority to adjust the scientific research budget of the undertaking unit, increasing the
incentive for R&D talents, and mobilizing the enthusiasm for innovation. In terms of strengthening technical leadership,
through continuous innovation, the Company has been engaged in diverse business fields such as super high-rise
construction equipment and technology, large-span building construction technology and techniques, intelligent
manufacturing of steel structures, high-performance concrete new materials, new-generation nuclear power plant
construction technology, architectural design with new Tang style and airport architectural design, which formed strong
scientific and technological strength and provided powerful impetus for the development of the Company’s housing
construction, infrastructure, overseas and new businesses.

In terms of reinforcing the building of the science and technology system, investment in science and technology has
continued to increase. The initial layout of innovation platform building-up has been formed, consisting of 103 high-
tech enterprises, 5 national-grade enterprise technology centers (including sub-centers), 59 provincial and ministerial-
grade enterprise technology centers, 5 provincial and ministerial-grade engineering research centers, 23 engineering
technology research centers, 2 key laboratories, 1 engineering laboratory, of which there is a total of 31 provincial and
ministerial-grade innovation platforms. We have built 10 postdoctoral workstations and 16 other kinds of science and
technology innovation platforms, forming an innovation development mechanism led by independent innovation and
combining industry, academia, research and application.

(X) Corporate culture in mind and action

CSCEC is an enterprise with a glorious history. We are innovating in the course of inheritance, adhering to the mission of
“bringing genuine happiness to society”, and committed to becoming the most internationally competitive investment and
construction group. In the process of fulfilling the mission and realizing the vision, the core values of “quality assurance,
value creation” and the entrepreneurial spirit of “integrity, innovation, transcendence, and win-win” will be integrated into
the rules and management behaviors and become part of the soft power of the Company.

Resources can be exhausted, only culture lasts. Adhering to its creed which is formed against the backdrop of the market
economy, the Company has seen a constant integration with its subsidiaries in culture development, which provides
ongoing internal support for the Company’s ever-growing business.
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Iv.

Brand, Creditability and Honors during the Reporting Period

Based on CSCEC's good performance in brand building and operation development, the brand reputation and industry
influence of the Company has been further strengthened during the Reporting Period.

Brand value steadily increased. The Company ranked 18th in the Fortune Global 500 (2020), 3rd among the Fortune
China 500, first in ENR’s “Top 250 Global Engineering Contractors”, and among the top 10 in ENR international contractors
list for three consecutive years. “CSCEC” ranked first in the UK Brand Finance “2020 Global Brand Value Top 500”; in the
value evaluation of Chinese brands organized by China Council for Brand Development, the Company ranked first in the
construction industry with a brand strength of 972.00 and a brand value of RMB110.396 billion; it ranked the 17th in “China
Top 100 Brand Value List 2020". Its subsidiary China Overseas was awarded the “China Real Estate Industry Leading
Brand” for the 17th time, with a brand value of RMB121.6 billion, ranking first in the industry. The Company ranked first in
the construction industry list of the “Overseas Image of Chinese Enterprises” in the “2020 Excellent Examples of Overseas
Image Building-up of Chinese Enterprises” by the China Foreign Languages Publishing Administration, and was selected
as one of the “Top Ten Excellent Examples of the Year”.

Leading the global industry in terms of creditability. In 2020, the leading global rating agencies i.e., S&P Global
Ratings, Moody’s Investors Service and Fitch Ratings affirmed CSCEC's ratings as A/A2/A (respectively) with “Stable”
outlook. CSCEC maintained the highest credit ratings among the global industry peers for the 6th consecutive year; the
Company was granted the qualification of cross-border fund centralized operation business for multinational companies,
which facilitated cross-border financing of RMB and foreign currencies; the Company was awarded the “Excellent Sponsor
of Asset Securitization”, “Excellent Sponsor of Asset Securitization Innovative Business” and “Special Award for Pandemic
Control” by Shanghai Stock Exchange in 2020.

Further achievements in honors and awards. During the Reporting Period, 32 projects of the Company won the Chinese
Construction Engineering Luban Prize, 74 projects won the National Quality Engineering Award; the Company also won
71 National Construction Engineering Decoration Awards, 51 China Installation Engineering Quality Awards, and 68 China
Steel Structure Gold Awards. A total of 62 projects at home and abroad were awarded the International Safety Awards
in 2020 by the British Safety Council, accounting for 10% of the total awards granted. The Company was presented the
2020 Enterprise of the Year Award by Bosnia-Herzegovina's mainstream media Evening News in recognition of its great
contribution to the progress of the Pan-European 5C corridor expressway project in the face of the pandemic, becoming
the only foreign company among the winners. The subsidiary China Construction Third Engineering Division received 6
awards from the CTBUH Global Awards of Excellence 2020. China Construction (South Pacific) Development Co., Pte Ltd.
won 6 “BCA Construction Excellence Awards” in Singapore, and one “BCA Quality Excellence Award - Quality Champion
(Platinum)”. The Egypt branch of CSCEC was awarded the “China-Egypt Anti-pandemic Cooperation Contribution Award”
by the Chinese Embassy in Egypt, the only Chinese enterprise in Egypt with this honor.

More fruitful achievements in scientific and technological innovation. During the Reporting Period, five scientific
and technological achievements passed the preliminary evaluation of the National Science and Technology Award, two
of which passed the preliminary evaluation of the first prize and three of which passed the preliminary evaluation of the
second prize. The quantity and quality of high-level scientific and technological achievements for the year hit the best
level in the Company’s history. Six projects of the Company took the lead in completing the construction received the 18th.
Among them, Que’er Mountain tunnel project of China Highway Line 317 was the only tunnel project selected in 2020. The
Company won 220 awards for the last three sessions of excellent survey and design in engineering survey, architectural
design industry and municipal public utility works. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company received a total
of 75 national science and technology awards, 90 awards of Tien-yow Jeme Civil Engineering Prize, and developed 244
national engineering construction methods, took the lead in preparing 91 national and industry standards and was granted
33,855 patents (including 3,175 invention patents). Our employees Qian Fang and Guo Xiaoyan were among the list of
9th batch national prospecting and design masters and Zhang Kun was awarded the National Innovation Pioneer Award.
The Company has 2 academicians of the Chinese Academy of Engineering, one winner of the highest-grade science
and technology award in engineering construction, 12 national engineering prospecting and design masters, 276 experts
entitled to special allowances from the State Council and 28 professionals were granted “China Skills Awards” or credited
as “national technical experts”. We developed a number of highly competitive innovation teams such as super high-
rise intelligent construction innovation team, civil engineering intelligent measurement and control innovation team, and
underground space intelligent construction innovation team.

Prominent performance in fulfilling social responsibility. The Company was awarded the highest honor of 2020
CAIJING Evergreen Award for Sustainable Development — “Sustainable Development Contribution Award”, the “Special
Contribution Award” of the 15th session of People’s Corporate Social Responsibility Summit Forum and its Sustainable
Development Report won the highest five-star rating by Chinese Academy of Social Sciences for the eighth consecutive
year. The China Alliance of Social Value Investment released the 2020 list of A-share listed companies’ sustainable
development value “Yili 99" on which CSCEC ranked first. CSCEC shared its experience in fulfilling social responsibilities
in the Collective Publication of Social Responsibility Reports of Central Enterprises (2020) by SASAC of the State Council,
and two examples were selected in the “Research Report on Corporate Social Responsibility of Central Enterprises (2020)”,
“Research Report on Overseas Social Responsibility of Central Enterprises (2020)” and “Cases of the Fight Against
COVID-19 Pandemic by Central Enterprises”.
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Key Business Data

Item Unit 2020 2019 SO
(%)
Total value of new contracts RMB100 million 32,008 28,689 1.6
l. Construction business
()] Accumglatlve value of new contracts during RMB100 million 27721 24,863 15
the period
By industry 1. Housing construction 20,779 19,506 6.5
2. Infrastructure 6,798 5,226 30.1
3. Prospecting and design 143 131 9.1
By region 1. Domestic 25,902 23,095 12.2
2. Overseas 1,819 1,768 2.9
(1) Quantity of housing construction works Ten thousand / / /
......................................................................................... Squal’e meters PRI _ . . - - - ceec-ceecmceee semesscmsesscmsessameann
1. Accumulative area under construction 154,229 145,671 5.9
2. Acgumulatlve area of new construction 34,239 38,301 106
projects
3. Accumule_ltlve area of completed 19,079 23,220 478
construction
(1) Quantity of infrastructure works / / / /
1. Road (newly signed in China) Kilometers 4,186 4,024 4.0
2. Area (newly signed in China) Ten thousand 4,162 2,923 42.4
square meters
Il. Real estate business
(I) Contract sales during the period RMB100 million 4,287 3,826 121
Of which: China Overseas® 2,960 2,669 10.9
(I) Contract sales area during the period Ten thousand 2,370 2,173 9.1
......................................................................................... Square meters PRI _ . . - - - ceec-ceecmceee semesscmsesscmsessameann
Of which: China Overseas 1,387 1,290 75
() Subscription sales at the end of the period RMB100 million 106 183 -42.0
(IV) Average selling price during the period RMB/square meter 18,087 17,606 2.7
(V) Land reserve at the end Ten thousand )
of the period® (Full amount) square meters LHEET 12,166 4.3
Of which: China Overseas 6,179 6,522 -5.3
(VI) Purchase of land reserve (Full amount) Ten thousand 2,042 2,259 -9.6
......................................................................................... Square meters e s esasassetetetettete teeeeeseseeteeteetetate Hrassesnenoonttaanannan s
Of which: China Overseas 1,349 1,146 17.7

Notes: (@ China Overseas refers to the real estate business that China Overseas Land & Investment and its subsidiaries are engaged in,
but does not include that of China Overseas Grand Oceans;

@ Land reserve at the end of the period = land reserve at the end of the previous year + newly acquired land reserve — area
completed in the current period + (or —) area of projects being adjusted.
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OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATION

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

9 .
S(® Proportion of revenue by segment .

0.65%

16.63%

21.36%

61.36%

Housing Infrastruct Real Desi
.construction W Infrastructure estate Il Design
G fit inb t
£® Gross profit margin by segmen Note

30.0%

26.2%
24.2%

8.5%
6.7%

Housing  Infrastructure Real Design
construction estate

25.0%

20.0%

15.0%

10.0%

5.0%

0.0%

Note: The denominator of the segment business is the direct summation of data from the four business segments of the Company (housing

construction, infrastructure, real estate and design).
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on the list of Fortune China 500
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Discussion and Analysis of Business Operation

In 2020, amid the severe and complex domestic and international environment,
especially the serious impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, China maintained
steady economic recovery, effectively safeguarded employment and people's
livelihoods, and delivered better-than-expected results for its major objectives.
The GDP exceeded RMB101.60 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase
of 2.3%; the total investment in fixed asset (excluding farmers) in the whole
country was RMB51.89 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 2.9%; the
investment in real estate development was RMB14.14 trillion, representing a year-
on-year increase of 7.0%; the sales of commercial houses was RMB17.36 trillion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 8.7%; the sales areas of commercial
houses were 1,760.86 million square meters, representing a year-on-year increase
of 2.6%; and the total output value of the construction industry was RMB26.39
trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.2%.

In 2020, the Company implemented the decision and deployment of the Party
Central Committee and the State Council as well as the requirements of the SASAC,
focused on the strategic goals of “one creation and five aspects of strength”,
made coordinated efforts in pandemic prevention and control as well as business
development, worked hard and overcame difficulties, adhered to the general work
guideline of making progress while maintaining stability, actively practiced the
concept of high-quality development, and achieved excellent results in reform and
development. The Company’s business, as a whole, has demonstrated a good
momentum of steady enhancement in quality and stable development towards
excellence, ranking among the top central enterprises in terms of operating
performance, and making due contributions to national pandemic prevention and
control efforts, economic development and the undertaking of building an overall
moderately prosperous society.

Highlights of Operation Results for the Reporting Period

Prominent contribution in pandemic prevention and control. In early 2020, when
the COVID-19 pandemic was raging, the Company was commissioned at such
a critical moment. Relying on its strong supply chain system, core technological
capabilities in rapid construction and integrated construction capability of assembly
buildings, the Company successfully completed the construction of 119 emergency
hospitals, including the Wuhan — Huoshenshan Hospital and Leishenshan Hospital,
and was able to play its role and deliver satisfactory results in critical moments. The
Company has always been putting employees’ safety and health first, establishing
a regular pandemic prevention and control mechanism, setting up an pandemic
prevention and control office, and implementing various prevention and control
measures. In light of the continuous spread of the pandemic around the globe,
the Company carried out overseas pandemic prevention and control initiatives,
adhered to the principle of “one country, one policy”, and organized overseas
institutions and projects to prevent and control the pandemic based the actual
situations in different countries and regions, thus safeguarding the safety and health
of its employees in more than 80 countries and regions.

Operating performance grew against the headwinds. During the Reporting
Period, the amount of the Company’s newly signed contracts exceeded
RMB3 trillion, once again setting a record among its global counterparts in
construction industry in terms of orders. The Company achieved continuous
growth in revenue and profit before income tax with continued sound and stable
business development. The Company achieved revenue of RMB1,615.02 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 13.7%, and profit before income taxes of
RMB94.29 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 15.7%. The Company's
weighted average return on net assets (WARA) was 15.54%; the basic earnings
per share (EPS) was RMB1.07, representing a year-on-year increase of 10.3%. The
Company's financial risks were overall controllable with an eased pressure on cash
flows. At the end of the Reporting Period, the asset-liability ratio was kept at 73.7%,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.7 percentage points.

Support for macro-level strategic development and proactive efforts. The
Company has always been taking serving the national strategy as its most
important political responsibility and the biggest development opportunity, and
demonstrated its role as a central state-owned enterprise to achieve transformation
and upgrading and high-quality development while serving the national strategy.
During the Reporting Period, the Company took the initiative to integrate into
national and regional coordinated development strategies such as Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei Synergistic Development, Yangtze River Economic Belt Development, GBA
Construction, Yangtze River Delta Integrated Development, and Yellow River
Basin Ecological Protection. The Company focused high-quality resources onto
high-priority sectors, and gave full play to its nationwide presence, and obtained
new contracts at a total of RMB2,144.2 billion in the above-mentioned regions,
accounting for more than two-thirds of total values of its new contracts. The
Company has actively adjusted according to the local development strategies and
plans, increased exchanges and cooperation with local governments and peer
central enterprises to jointly promote the implementation of national development



SECTION IV DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF BUSINESS OPERATION

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

strategies, serve the decommissioning of capital function of Beijing, and promote the construction of major projects such
as the Beijing Winter Olympic Stadium, Daxing International Airport, the largest shantytown project in western Beijing, and
the Xiong’an Commercial Service Center. The Company supported the construction of the “five centers” in Shanghai, and
assisted in building a world-class free trade zone in the Lingang New Area. The Company invested RMB59.0 billion in the
historic landscape protection and urban renewal project in the neighborhoods of 67-71 Jianguo East Road, Huangpu District,
Shanghai. The Company fully served the development of quality BRI projects by actively responding to the development
needs of BRI countries, and advancing the key projects under BRI, such as the central business district project in the new
capital of Egypt.

Reform and innovation to deliver excellent performance. In order to implement the three-year reform action of state-
owned enterprises, the Company formulated an implementation plan, focusing on eight aspects of reform and forming a list of
specific tasks. It further clarified the boundaries of the responsibilities of the Party organization, the board of directors and the
management, improved the rules of procedure and the list of decision-making matters, and promoted the deep integration
of the Party’s leadership into corporate governance. The Company has made concrete efforts in promoting special reform
projects, and four subsidiaries have been included in the “Mixed Reform Pilot Project in Important Fields”, “Two-hundred
Campaign” and “Science Reform Demonstration Action”, and seven subsidiaries have implemented the professional manager
system. The Company granted restricted A shares in the phase IV, and broadened the range of participants covered by
the share incentives. The “Management Enhancement Action in Alignment with International Top Level” has established a
comprehensive benchmarking system in business sectors and management areas respectively. The “Six Special Actions”
carried by the Company achieved effective results, solving a number of bottlenecks that restricted high-quality development,
significantly improving the quality and efficiency of production and operation. During the Reporting Period, the Company
actively implemented the deployments of the State Council and the China Securities Regulatory Commission, carried out
special actions on governance of listed companies, continuously improved the level of corporate governance, enhanced the
ability to prevent and resolve risks, and effectively improved the quality of listed companies.

Continued to promote science and technology innovation. During the Reporting Period, various indicators of the
Company hit a record high, including the number of high-end talents in science and technology, the intensity of investment
in science and technology, and the achievements in science and technology research and development. The Company
developed the world’s first “air building-construction machine” and “air tower machine” with independent intellectual property
rights, built the world’s only 10,000-ton multifunctional experimental system, developed world-leading technologies in rapid
construction of anti-pandemic hospital and “five bridges at the same rotation” technology, setting a number of new world
records. The prefabricated hospital building and rapid construction technology played a key role in the construction of the
Wuhan — Huoshenshan Hospital and Leishenshan Hospital, and three corporate technical standards, including “Standard
for Construction of Emergency Hospital Engineering Project against Pandemic” prepared by the Company, were officially
released to provide the community with green, healthy, efficient and environmental friendly public health medical engineering
product system and industrialized services, standardized solutions for a sound public health emergency management and
treatment system. The Company is one of the first central enterprises in the industry to conduct prefabricated construction
business. It has a wide presence in steel structure, precast concrete, etc., and has a competitive advantage in the entire
industry chain from design to construction. The Company’s precast concrete business adheres to the five-in-one business
model to drive the development of EPC. It has a green assembly building intelligent construction platform with independent
intellectual property rights, the first of its kind in China, and an advanced fully automatic smart precast factory.

A responsible corporate citizen. With the paired-up assistance in poverty alleviation by China State Construction, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, three counties in Gansu (Zhuoni, Kangle and Kangxian) were removed from the
poverty-stricken counties list, and the Company won the highest-grade rate in the poverty alleviation assessment of central
entities for three consecutive years. As a reward to investors, we proposed to pay 2020 cash dividends in an amount of
about RMB9 billion to ordinary shareholders. We provided job opportunities for 28,000 graduates and more than 2 million
workers, making an important contribution to stabilizing employment. The Company thoroughly implemented the Regulation
on Ensuring Wage Payment to Migrant Workers of the State Council by paying migrant workers’ wages in full, and drove the
common development of upstream and downstream enterprises, including private enterprises. The Company maintained “zero
arrears” by paying private enterprise as agreed, reduced or exempted rents, and exempted highway tolls, so as to support
small, medium and micro enterprises and individual industrial and commercial households to tide over the difficulties.

For details, please refer to V “Key Business Data” and VI “Key Earnings Results” under Section Ill “OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS
OPERATION” hereof.

)] Analysis of principal business
Analysis of changes in related items in the income statement and cash flow statement

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Amount of the

Amount in the . Change ratio
ltems . same period
current period (%)
last year

Revenue 1,615,023,327 1,419,836,588 13.7
Cost of sales 1,440,131,634 1,262,226,200 141
Selling and distribution expenses 5,522,266 4,330,826 275
General and administrative expenses 28,982,939 27,685,477 4.7
Research and development expenses 25,522,546 17,289,939 47.6
Finance expenses 7,797,699 7,911,711 -1.4
Net cash flows from operating activities 20,271,781 -34,220,077 /
Net cash flows from investing activities -562,627,785 -19,812,811 /
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Reason for changes in revenue: In recent years, the value of the Company’s new contracts has maintained a
relatively high growth rate, and the projects under construction have been smoothly advanced, especially the
housing and infrastructure business. The annual revenue increased by RMB128.73 billion, accounting for 66.0% of
the increased amount in the Company’s revenue.

Reason for changes in cost of sales: The expansion of business scale led to the increase in the cost of sales
accordingly.

Reason for changes in selling and distribution expenses: The Company’s real estate business increased
advertising investment during the pre-sale period, and the corresponding advertising fees and business promotion
fees, business fees and sales commissions grew rapidly.

Reason for changes in general and administrative expenses: Such expenses as employee remuneration,
property management fees and depreciation fees increased due to the expansion of business scale as well as the
increase in management personnel and business activities.

Reason for changes in research and development expenses: The increase in expenses during the Reporting
Period was due to the Company’s increased investment in R&D.

Reason for changes in finance expenses: The decrease in expenses during the Reporting Period was due to the
increase in foreign exchange income over last year.

Reason for changes in net cash flow from operating activities: It was due to the increase in payments received
for construction projects and collection of payments from sales of real estate projects, the improvement in cash
flows from the principal construction business and real estate business during the period.

Reason for changes in net cash flow from investment activities: It was due to the decrease in cash received
from recovering our investments, and cash received in respect of investment return and the increase in cash paid
for investment business in the current period.

Reason for changes in net cash flow from financing activities: It was mainly due to the increase in the amount
of fund inflows from absorbing investments, the issuance of perpetual bonds and long-term borrowings during the
period.
1 Analysis of revenue and cost

\ Applicable O N/A

In 2020, the Company delivered revenue of RMB1,615.02 billion, an increase of 13.7% year-on-year; with
cost of sales at RMB1,440.13 billion, an increase of 14.1% year-on-year. The Company recorded a gross
profit of RMB174.89 billion, an increase of 11.0% year-on-year; a gross profit margin of 10.8%, a decrease
of 0.3 percentage points as compared to the same period last year.

For details related to income recognition methods, please refer to Note Ill. 34 “Significant Accounting
Judgement and Estimates” to the financial statements under Section XI “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

(1). Principal business by industry, product and region
Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Principal business by industry

Gross profit  Change YoY ~ Change YoY Change YoY of

By industry Revenue Cost of sales margin of revenue  of cost of sales  gross profit margin

(%) (%) (%) (%)
Housing construction 4 44 401 005 933,774,639 67 148 143 ~ OSpercentage
engineering points increased

Infrastructure construction

) 38435361 318931135 85 95 96 /

and investment
Real estate development 7 509 53 0 162,096 22 2.0 g39  +9percentage
and investment points decreased
Prospecting and design 10607297 8,039,404 242 72 0 58 percentage
points increased
Others 21321634 15494857 273 104 3.3 percentage
points decreased
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Principal business by region

Gross profit  Change YoY ~Change YoY of ~ Change YoY of

By region Revenue Cost of sales margin of revenue  costofsales  gross profit margin
(%) (%) (%) (%)

) . 0.7 percentage

Mainand China 1525,382,003  1,358,824,500 109 159 168 points decreased

Overseas 4.'1 pgrcentage

89,641,234 81,307,125 9.3 -13.8 -175 points increased

Total 0.3 percentage

1,615,023,327  1,440,131,634 10.8 13.7 141 points decreased

Note: “Overseas” refer to the regions other than Mainland China.

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Revenue and its proportion in the last three years

: Proportion Proportion Proportion
By indust 2020 2019 2018
VIS (% (% (%
Housing construction 4 04 101 096 620 872,366,117 614 724,230,782 603
engineering
Infrastructure
construction and 348,435,361 216 318,105,335 2.4 276,675,284 23.1
investment
Real estate
development and 271,292,353 168 216,979,828 153 184,112,490 154
investment
Prospecting and 10,607,297 07 9,894,280 07 9,436,215 08
design
Others 21,321,634 13 23,800,895 17 20,750,371 17
Elimination 37,734,344 24 21,309,867 15 15,880,617 13
Total 1615,023.327 100 1,419,836,588 100 1,199,324,525 100

Explanation on principal business by industry, product and region

\ Applicable O N/A
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Housing construction engineering business

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s housing construction business grew steadily and continued to lead the mid-
to high-end markets. The total value of new contracts for the whole year was RMB2,077.9 billion, an increase of 6.5% year-
on-year with revenue at RMB1,001.1 billion, an increase of 14.8% year-on-year; gross profit was RMB67.3 billion, with a
gross margin of 6.7%, an increase of 0.3 percentage points year-on-year.

During the Reporting Period, the Company fully leveraged its competitive edge in respect of whole industrial chain
and sticked to the marketing strategy featuring “high-end market, high-end customers and high-end projects” and the
enterprise management strategy of “low-cost competition and high-quality management”. The Company made sustained
efforts to enhance its competitive strength in the field of high-end housing construction such as super high-rise and large-
span construction, and fully mastered the core technology of “high, large, precise and top-class” housing construction.
The Company won six bids for super high-rise projects over 300 meters, and completed the construction for Suzhou
International Finance Center, which is the 18th in the world and the 10th in China, continuing to setting the “China speed”
in respect of super high-rise construction. Meanwhile, the Company ensured the smooth delivery of the world’s largest
quantum information laboratory, the No. 1 Research Building of the Innovation Institute of Quantum Information and
Quantum Science and Technology of the Chinese Academy of Sciences, and the renovation and expansion project of the
Capital Gymnasium, etc.

During the Reporting Period, the Company further enhanced its competitive advantages in the field of high-end housing
construction, such as medical facilities, exhibition centers and industrial plants, and educational facilities. In terms of
medical facilities, the new contracts amounted to RMB124.8 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 101.8%.
In addition to the Wuhan Huoshenshan Hospital and Leishenshan Hospital, we also undertook the construction of 117
emergency hospitals including the relocation and reconstruction project of Shantou Central Hospital (major pandemic
case treatment base). In terms of construction of exhibition centers and industrial plants, the new contracts amounted
to RMB187.9 billion, an increase of 46.9% year-on-year. The Company undertook a series of exhibition center projects,
including the National Convention and Exhibition Center (Tianjin) Phase Il Project, the Xi’an High-tech International
Convention Center Phase Il Project, the EPC general contracting of the Ningbo International Convention Center Project
in Zhejiang Province. In addition, industrial plant projects undertook by the Company included EPC general contracting
of the Made in China 2025 Industrial Park Construction Project (Phase Il), the main plant project of production line of
the Changsha Huike (7)2#}) 8.6 generation ultra-high-definition new display device components, and the general
contracting of Great Wall International Logistics Center in Shenzhen, Guangdong Province. In terms of the construction of
education facilities, the new contracts amounted to RMB100.9 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 42.5%. The
Company undertook the EPC general contracting (section |) project of a general high school construction project in Yunnan
Province and the design and construction general contracting (EPC) project of the Guangzhou International Campus
Phase Il of South China University of Technology (the First Batch). Meanwhile, as the Company actively participated in the
building-up of new urbanization, it undertook the Section | of the EPC general contracting project for the construction of the
Kexue Valley Digital Town in Zhengdong New District, Zhengzhou, Henan Province, the general contracting project for the
construction of an intelligent and healthy living area in Xishan Area, Laoshan District, Qingdao, Shandong Province, and
the urban renovation project in Zaoyuansu Village adjacent to the Bypass Expressway in Bagiao District, Xi'an, Shaanxi
Province in celebration of the 14th National Games of China.

During the Reporting Period, the Company fulfilled its technological leadership in housing construction and increased
the use of green building, BIM technology and new materials. As a leading enterprise in green construction in China,
the Company’s modular integrated construction (MiC) technology for prefabricated building is among the industry-
leading level. Specifically, when the component parts of buildings are produced in intelligent and specialized factories
and delivered to the construction site, each modular composite has already met the standard ready for fine decoration
before moving in. The North Lantau Hospital Hong Kong Infection Control Center, which has been opened, is the world’s
first infectious disease hospital with totally negative pressure isolation wards adopting MiC construction technology. The
Company made further R&D investments in intelligent construction sites and smart construction control software system,
with a view to applying the 5G technology to construction process of premium projects and giving support to optimized
performance of project through digital service model. The Company’s first manufacturing base based on its independently-
developed BIM intensive processing of steel reinforcement was completed in Hubei Province. The Company independently
developed the “one-stop security remote inspection system”, which, together with the 5G technology and smart helmets,
helped to improve the efficiency of safety inspection.

Infrastructure construction and investment operations

During the Reporting Period, the Company achieved rapid growth in the scale of its infrastructure business and continued
to optimize the adjustment of its business structure. To stimulate the high-quality development of infrastructure business,
and maintain a reasonable gearing ratio, the Company has entered into new infrastructure contracts with a total value
of RMB679.8 billion for the whole year, an increase of 30.1% year-on-year. It recorded revenue of RMB348.4 billion, an
increase of 9.5% year-on-year; and the gross profit amounted to RMB29.5 billion, an increase of 8.8% year-on-year with a
gross profit margin of 8.5%, in line with last year.

During the Reporting Period, the Company focused on its competitive strengths in infrastructure investment and
construction business and won a number of bids of major infrastructure projects. In terms of airport construction, the
Company continued to reaped substantial fruits by winning the bid for the T3B terminal of Chongging Jiangbei Airport, the
regional transportation hub of BRI; in terms of rail transit transportation, the Company further reinforced and improved its
performance, in particular, winning the bid for Xi’an Metro Line 8 project, Metro Line 16 Phase | project, Nanjing Metro Line
9 Phase | project, Hefei Rail Transit Line 7 Phase | project, Dalian Metro Line 4 project, etc.; in terms of railway construction,
the Company won bids for the civil works project of the Laixi-Rongcheng railroad, and the new Lanzhou-Zhangye Line
No. 3 & No. 4 High-speed Railway project, and the Qianhai-Huanggang Port section project of Guangdong-Dongguan-
Shenzhen intercity railway; in terms of municipal highway, the Company focused on major projects and won bids for the
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Nantong bypass expressway project which is among the key projects for the integrated development of Yangtze River
Delta region and the Chongging-Hunan Double-track Line expressway project. The Company also reached a new level in
terms of urban development. The Company won a number of significant projects including underground space project in
the core area of Fuzhou Binhai New City (the third largest TOD project in China) and the composite development project
of Ningxiang High-speed railway new city in Changsha. The Company actively explored the deployment of new kind of
infrastructure. Specifically, as we enhanced cooperation with top enterprises in the field of communication and Internet, we
won the bids for Zhangbei data center, Alibaba Inner Mongolia cloud computing data center, etc.

During the Reporting Period, the Company closely followed the national development strategies and policies and
continued to contribute “China Construction Power” to the “tackling areas of weakness” in the field of national infrastructure
construction. Xiong'an high-speed railway station of which the Company undertook the construction was officially put into
use; the first generating unit of Jinggangshan Navigation and Power Hub Project on the Ganjiang River, as the first large-
scale waterway project we had ever undertaken, was successfully connected to the electrical grid system and generated
electricity power. Among the railway and bridge projects undertook by the Company, the Shanghai-Suzhou-Nantong
Railway, Weifang-Rongcheng High-speed Railway, Baiyin-Zhongchuan primary highway main line of G341, the renovation
and expansion project of Beijing-Shanghai Expressway and the expansion project of Zhaoging Bridge have officially been
opened in succession, contributing to the regional development strategies of our country. In terms of subway projects,
Zhengzhou Metro Line 3 Phase |, Nanning Metro Line 4 and the northern section of Qingdao Metro Line 8 have been
opened in succession; a number of major projects completed milestone stage of construction as scheduled, including the
Xuzhou Metro Line 3, Changnan Avenue in Nanchang and Dapu Expressway in Guangxi, laying the “CSCEC foundation”
for the “new infrastructure, new urbanization initiatives and major projects” strategy of China.

Real estate development and investment business

During the Reporting Period, the real estate business achieved contract sales of RMB428.7 billion throughout the year,
representing a year-on-year increase of 12.1%, and contracted sales area of 23.70 million square meters, a year-on-year
increase of 9.1%; revenue amounted to RMB271.3 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 25.0%; and gross profit
amounted to RMB71.1 billion with a gross profit margin of 26.2%, representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.9 percentage
points.

During the Reporting Period, the Company delivered a new construction area of 26.83 million square meters, representing
a year-on-year increase of 29.1%; a completed area of 27.54 million square meters, representing a year-on-year increase
of 20.7%; and an area under construction of 69.89 million square meters, representing a year-on-year increase of 7.4%.
During the year, the newly acquired land bank was 20.42 million square meters, and the land bank at the end of the period
was approximately 116.37 million square meters. Over 70% of the Company’s real estate inventory is concentrated in first-
line and provincial capital cities.

After years of development, the Company currently owns 12.54 million square meters of investment properties
encompassing office buildings, hotels, apartments, commercial real estate and others, with a net book value of RMB92.28
billion, accounting for 4.2% of the Company’s total assets. During the Reporting Period, the investment property recorded
revenue of RMB5.87 billion. The Company accelerated the upgrading of industry, expanded business areas such as
commerce, pension, education, and logistics, continuously enhancing the operation and management and profitability of
investment properties. The abovementioned data of investment properties has not been audited.

During the Reporting Period, amid the severe impact of the pandemic, China Overseas took proactive measures in
response to the increased instabilities and uncertainties and strived to maintain secured momentum of growth. During
the Reporting Period, China Overseas delivered a faster sales growth over the overall industry and the greatest amount
of investments in land equity in the industry. China Overseas's GFA of newly land bank increased by a total of 13.49
million square meters. Furthermore, we successfully won the bids for a series of ultra large projects including Shanghai
Honggqi Village, Wuhan Hanyang Jiangiao and Shanghai Jianguo Road East, each of which has a GFA exceeding one
million square meters. Leveraging on the competitive edge in respect of compliance with the “three red lines” indicators,
China Overseas seized the opportunities of rapidly evolving upstream and downstream industry chains brought about
by rapid advances in technology and promoted the development of new business models and new business categories
such as commercial properties, education and retirement, logistics to expand new room of development while focusing
on accelerating the development of the principal business of residential development. Regarding commercial properties,
China Overseas has responded to the opportunity arising from market consolidation and revaluation of commercial assets
and promoted the management model featuring “investment, financing, management and exit”. Specifically, the Company
acquired China Overseas Fortune Center in Suzhou and Foshan Vivo City Shopping in the last two years, and sold two
office buildings of China Overseas International Centre in Chengdu. In addition, the Company also successfully issued two
tranches of commercial mortgage-backed securities (CMBS) to raise RMB6.7 billion. In 2020, China Overseas recorded
revenue from commercial asset management of RMB4.4 billion.

During the Reporting Period, CSC Land actively responded to the challenges arising from the pandemic and maintained
stable growth in scale and efficiency. The contract sales amounted to RMB132.7 billion, an increase of 14.7% year-on-
year. CSC Land upheld a prudent financial strategy, and strictly controlled its debt ratio to ensure the steady development
of its real estate business under the guidance of financial regulatory policies. CSC Land also took measures including
closely evaluating and assessing the market forecast, enhancing product values, further destocking, further regulating
the full-cycle management of real estate projects and speeding up the recovery of funds, mainly the funds in connection
with sales of properties. In respect of selection of city, CSC Land prioritized large and medium-sized cities with small
inventories and strong purchasing power; in respect of selection of district, CSC Land gave priority to core locations
where moderate residential-based projects with fairly comprehensive facilities and a high turnover rate are located. As the
business operation and management has been developing steadily, CSC Land — Meilanfang (#81#35) project, which is
operated and managed by the Company, has been awarded as a national 3A grade tourist attraction.

For details, please refer to “Properties under development” and “Completed properties for sale” in Note V 8 “Inventories”
and “Pre-sales deposits” in Note V 29 “Contract liabilities” to the financial statements under Section XI “FINANCIAL
REPORT” hereof.
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Prospecting and design business

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s prospecting and design business was improved in quality and quantity.
During the year, the new contracts amounted to RMB14.3 billion, an increase of 9.1% year-on-year; revenue amounted to
RMB10.6 billion, an increase of 7.2% year-on-year; gross profit amounted to RMB2.6 billion, with a gross profit margin of
24.2%, an increase of 5.8 percentage points year-on-year.

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to promote the building of a design-centered industrial chain,
actively expanded its engineering consulting business, and built a design industry system with full-field coverage, full-
process services, full-value chain, and full-element growth with a view to enhance and improve our prospecting and design
business. The Company took the lead to complete a variety of outstanding design works such as Chongging Jiangbei
Airport, Zhengzhou Xinzheng Airport and Dunhuang Grand Theatre. The Company ranked 30th on the ENR “Top 150
Global Engineering Designs” in 2020 with the competitiveness of the industry continuously enhanced.

During the Reporting Period, the Company fulfilled its competitiveness in the segments including urban planning,
transportation facilities and sports facilities, and undertook the design of relevant projects. In terms of urban planning, the
Company won the bids for the future community planning of Tianchuan, Zhejiang, land space planning of Hetian, Xinjiang,
land space planning of Pingyang, Gansu, in-depth urban design of Chengdu 5G intelligent pioneer zone, global talent
innovation park — Zhongyuan Science and Technology City, etc. In terms of transportation facilities, the Company won the
bids for the engineering design of T3B terminal and fourth runway of Chongqing Jiangbei International Airport, the Xi'an
Xianyang International Airport phase Il project, Yuyang Airport expansion project phase Il in Yulin, the overall planning of
the roadside area and the design of public transportation facilities of New Phnom Penh International Airport in Cambodia,
TOD transportation complex of Shaoxing High-speed Railway North Station and so on; in terms of sport facilities, we won
the bids for the 14th National Games (equestrian) venue and supporting facilities, the construction project of Luoyang
Olympic Center, Chongging Longxing Football Stadium and Qingdao Youth Football Stadium.

Overseas business

During the Reporting Period, the Company coordinated pandemic prevention and control as well as production and
operation of overseas business. There was no confirmed COVID-19 case due to group gatherings in the Company's
overseas entities and projects. Due to the impacts of COVID-19 on production and operation activities, the new contracts
for overseas business amounted to RMB187.2 billion, same level as last year; revenue was RMB89.6 billion, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 13.8%; and gross profit amounted to RMB8.3 billion with a gross profit margin of 9.3%.

During the Reporting Period, upholding the philosophy of “putting people and life first”, the principle of “one country and
one policy” and “one project and one policy”, the Company implemented the policy in a precise manner and the pandemic
prevention and control in a strict and detailed manner in respect of overseas business. Firstly, the Company had in place
an overseas pandemic prevention and control working group, 14 country-specific pandemic prevention and control joint
working mechanism and 24-hour emergency contact mechanism, forming an overseas pandemic prevention and control
working system. Secondly, the Company dispatched a medical working group to countries where pandemic had severely
hit and we had a relatively large number of employees, including Egypt, Algeria, Cambodia, Ethiopia and so on, to
improve our front-line pandemic prevention and control capability. Thirdly, we set up a special fund designed for overseas
pandemic prevention and control initiatives, in an attempt to safeguard the material supplies and medical protection in
place for pandemic control of overseas entities. Fourthly, shift of overseas employees was arranged in an orderly manner
to comply with the “prevention of imported cases” requirement. Fifthly, the Company gave attention and affection for
employees to safeguard the stability of workforce. The lives, safety and health of the Company's foreign and Chinese
employees abroad were strongly safeguarded, and the Company had no record of COVID-19 confirmed cases occurred
due to group gatherings in overseas entities and projects in more than 100 countries.

During the Reporting Period, the Company actively responded to the volatile international engineering market, fulfilled
its market-oriented competitive advantages, enhanced market expansion efforts, and made solid progress in overseas
market expansion. The year 2020 saw the Company tap into four new country markets, including Peru, Chile, El Salvador
and Madagascar, and successfully entered into a series of contracts concerning various major projects, such as the first
subway Makati Metro Transit Project in the Philippines and the new Phnom Penh International Airport in Cambodia (the
world’s highest 4F airport).

During the Reporting Period, while ensuring that pandemic prevention and control measures were strictly carried out, the
Company spared no effort to proceed with the performance of overseas projects by overcoming restrictions on the cross-
border flow of personnel, materials and machinery. A large number of construction projects under the BRI in connection
with national economy and people’s livelihood made significant progress. In the capital of Egypt, the construction of eight
high-rise buildings in the new central business district have been completed, the construction progress of which has
been appreciated by the property owners; in Pakistan, the PKM Expressway project (Sukkur-Multan section) was officially
handed over and put into use, opening the north-south traffic artery through the central Pakistan; in Algeria, the third
largest mosque in the world, the Grand Mosque, was opened; in Algeria, the north-south traffic artery project - the 53KM
section of the Algerian North-South expressway project was opened to traffic ahead of schedule.
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Other business

Other business of the Company mainly includes the income from primary land development, lease of machinery equipment
and engineering supervision and management. During the Reporting Period, revenue was RMB21.3 billion, a decrease
of 10.4% year-on-year; gross profit amounted to RMB5.8 billion, with a gross profit margin of 27.3%, a decrease of 3.3
percentage points year-on-year.

For details, please refer to Note V 49 “Revenue and cost of sales”, Note V 61 “Expenses by nature” and Note XIV 1 “Segment
reporting” to the financial statements under Section X| “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

(2). Analytical statement on production and sales
O Applicable N/A

(3). Analytical statement on costs

By industry
Changes in
Percentage Percentage  the amount
of total of total cost of the current
. . Amount of the . :
. Components of Amount inthe  cost in the . in the same  period over
By industry . ) same period of .
operating cost current period  current period last  the same
. last year .
period year period last
(%) (%) year
(%)
Housing Raw materials,
construction subcontract costs, 933,774,639 64.8 816,661,197 64.7 14.3
engineering labor costs, etc.
Infrastructure Raw materials,
constructionand  subcontract costs, 318,931,135 221 290,979,462 23.1 9.6
investment labor costs, etc.
Construction and
Feal estate installation costs
development and ' 200,162,296 13.9 149,490,891 1.8 33.9
: land costs, labor
investment
costs, etc.
Prospectlmg and  Labor posts, rental 8,039,404 06 8071133 06 04
design of equipment
Labor costs, rental
Others . 15,494,857 1.1 16,529,092 1.3 6.3
of equipment
Elimination / -36,270,697 2.5 19,505,575 1.5 /
Total / 1,440,131,634 100  1,262,226,200 100 14.1

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB
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(4).

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Main cost components
P i P i P i
R Comp?nents of 2020 roportion 2019 roportion 2018 roportion
operating costs (%) (%) (%)
Cost of sales f
01O SABSTOM 51 c45,071 15 19855211 16 17010696 16
products
Subcontracting cost 300,894,270 20.9 257,717,240 204 233,507,557 221
Housing ........................................................................................................................................
constucton  Fewmaterls 206112366 | 199 2rra0A%6 220 | awdrmi 22
engineering  Employee benefits 31,128,794 2.2 27,718,240 22 25,908,266 25
Other expenses 294,093,938 20.3 234,120,010 185 165,034,946 157
Sub-total 933,774,639 64.8 816,661,197 64.7 675,859,196 64.0
Cost of sales from
products
Subcontracting cost 115,931,326 8.1 126,131,695 10.0 114,807,022 10.8
|nfrastructure ........................................................................................................................................
constuctonang AW malerels 84942618 S8 STSGTAON TO ;A TS
investment Staff cost 46,293,060 32 36,660,547 2.9 26,299,140 25
Other expenses 71,764,131 5.0 40,219,919 32 32,844,887 32
Sub-total 318,931,135 221 290,979,462 23.1 253,366,234 24.0
Carry-over of real
estate development 190,935,051 13.3 142,772,220 1.4 113,717,202 108
Real estate
products
OVl
and investment  Other expenses 9,227,245 0.6 6,718,671 04 5,956,882 0.5
Sub-total 200,162,296 13.9 149,490,891 11.8 119,674,084 1.3
P ti
rospectng Sub-total 8039404 06 8071133 06 7720985 07
and design
Others Sub-total 15,494,857 1.1 16,529,092 1.3 14,644,604 1.4
Elimination / -36,270,697 2.5 -19,505,575 1.5 -14,574513 1.4
Total 1,440,131,634 100.0  1,262,226,200 100.0  1,056,709,590 100

Explanation on other information of cost analysis

O Applicable N/A

Major customers and suppliers
\ Applicable O N/A

In 2020, the revenue generated from/sales to the top 5 customers of the Company was RMB17.18
billion, accounting for 1.1% of the total revenue/sales of the year. Among the sales to the top five
customers, the sales to related parties was nil, accounting for nil of the total sales for the year.

During the Reporting Period, the amount of procurement from the top 5 suppliers was RMB22.511
billion, accounting for less than 1.6% of cost of sales. Among the amount of procurement from the
top 5 suppliers, the amount of procurement from related parties amounted to nil, accounting for nil
of the total amount of procurement for the year.

The Company'’s business scale and its diversified business structure determine that the Company’s
suppliers are more extensive and less concentrated, and the public bidding with minimum
restrictions is used for the procurement of bulk materials, which ensures the supply of resources
and avoids the Company'’s reliance on a single supplier.
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Expenses
\ Applicable O N/A

In 2020, the Company’s selling and distribution expenses, general and administrative expenses, finance expenses
and R&D expenses totaled RMB67.83 billion, a year-on-year increase of 18.5%. The four items of expenses
accounted for 4.2% of revenue, a year-on-year increase of 0.2 percentage points.

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s selling and distribution expenses were RMB5.52 billion, an increase
of 27.5% year-on-year, mainly due to the increase in advertising and promotion fees as a result of the expansion of
the real estate business.

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s general and administrative expenses were RMB28.98 billion, an
increase of 4.7% year-on-year, mainly due to the expansion in scale of business, and the increase in employee
remuneration, property management fees and depreciation costs in line with the increase in management
personnel and business activities. The Company’s general and administrative expenses accounted for 1.8% of
the revenue, that is, the general and administrative fee was RMB1.8 for each RMB100 of income. The Company’s
cost management and control delivered remarkable result, and it continued to maintain a leading position in the
industry.

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s finance expenses were RMB7.80 billion, a year-on-year decrease of
1.4%. The was mainly due to the increase in foreign exchange income over last year.

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s R&D expenses amounted to RMB25.52 billion, an increase of 47.6%
year-on-year, mainly due to the higher R&D investment in technology.

For details, please refer to relevant information as set out in Note V 51 “Selling and distribution expenses”, Note
V 52 “General and administrative expenses”, Note V 53 “Research and development expenses” and Note V 54
“Finance expenses” to the financial statements under Section XI “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

Investments in research and development
Table of investment in research and development
\ Applicable O N/A
Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Investment in research and development expensed during the period 29,391,759
|nvestment,nreseamhanddevempmemcap,tahzeddur,ngtheper,od/
TO t a | . ,m,e S tmem m res eamh and d e V e|opmem ....................................................................................... 29 391759 .
Total investment in research and development as a percentage of total revenue (%) 18
Number Of reseamh and dev e|opmem . p e ,. S onne| ........................................................................................... 21845 .
Number of research and development personnel as a percentage of total employees (%) 61
percentageofmvestmentmresearchanddevebpmentcap,tahzed(%)/
Explanation

\ Applicable O N/A

In recent years, the Company has been further implementing the innovation-driven development strategy, carrying
out special actions for scientific and technological innovation, making important achievements in the R&D and
promotion of core equipment and technologies, and continuously enhancing the core competitiveness of the
enterprise.

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to increase the R&D efforts and investment in major
engineering construction equipment. In 2020, the Company’s independently developed the civil engineering
experimental equipment “CSCEC 10,000-ton multifunctional experimental system” which has the world’s strongest
loading capacity, the largest loading space and the most advanced functions was officially put into use. The
maximum vertical loading capacity of 10,800 tons enabled the said system the world’s only six-degree-of-freedom
engineering structure experimental equipment with a vertical loading capacity of over ten thousand tons, solving
the problem of “capacity effect” facing engineering experimental equipment in China; the construction of the first
1,000-meter long Yangtze River Bridge project — Yichang-Wujiagang Yangtze River Bridge project undertaken
by the Company used the independently-developed air tower-building machine to complete the construction of
main tower, making a significant breakthrough in technology innovation equipment in the field of infrastructure; in
Chongging, the second cross-line project of the expressway made a breakthrough in the technology in connection
with the “three lines and five bridges” cluster turning, setting a new world record of “the largest number and
tonnage of large-span cluster turning bridges”; plant-alike “building-construction machine” was successfully
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applied to the CSCEC Yuhu No. 1 (f#li##=%5) project in Chongging, indicating our country’s transition in housing
construction from skyscrapers to super high-rise buildings and to high-rise buildings within the height of 100
meters by using the heavy equipment “air building-construction machine”. The cutting-edge technological results
of the Company's R&D have been gradually and widely applied to regular housing projects, benefiting a variety of
projects currently.

During the Reporting Period, the Company continually strived to overcome difficulties facing key core technologies
and made breakthroughs in the technologies of rapid construction of super high-rise and assembly buildings,
connection technology for assembly concrete structure, engineering intelligent equipment, construction in
extreme environment, digital steel processing and 5G intelligent remote control. The Company took the lead
in developing new and efficient “dry” assembly technology and formed a prefabricated prestressed Efficient
Fabricated Frame (CSCEC PPEFF system) with independent intellectual property rights, which has passed the
world’s largest continuous collapse resistance experiment and can achieve rapid construction of two floors in five
days. The Company'’s first digital steel BIM intensive processing base went into full production. Its 5G intelligent
remote-control tower made significant progress, and in reliance on the Beijing Daxing Lingkong Economic Zone
Development Service Center project, successfully passed the first indoor remote control tower hoisting test based
on the 5G environment in the construction site in the industry. A breakthrough was made in the application of single
tower multi-cage elevator, which entered the application stage in engineering. Core construction technologies,
such as “construction technology of giant concrete cross columns in net cylinder super high rise” and “construction
technology of infrastructure in dry and hot areas”, gave strong support for the overseas market; super early-
strength, low-heat, ultra-high-pumping concrete formulation technology was applied to the North Africa projects for
the first time, setting a record of concrete application strength and pumping height in the local market.

The Company continues to leverage on its leading edge in technology, actively cultivates and promotes scientific
and technological achievements, and improves relevant technical standard systems. In 2020, the Company was
granted 8,951 patents, including 505 invention patents, and 555 new technologies for the construction industry
were promoted within the Company. The Company took a leading role in developing 6 full-text mandatory national
standards, compiled and issued 3 national standards (including the Code for Acceptance of Construction Quality
of Steel Structure), and 1,732 of its engineering methods were accredited at province and ministry levels.

Cash flows
\ Applicable O N/A

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s net cash outflow was RMB3.9 billion, a decrease of net outflow
RMB23.2 billion from the net outflow of RMB27.1 billion last year.

The Company’s net cash outflow from operating activities was RMB20.3 billion, mainly due to the increase in
project payments received and recovery of funds from real estate sales activities and the improvement in cash
flows from the principal construction business and real estate business during the period. The Company received
cash from sales activities at a rate of 106.1%, a year-on-year increase of 0.2 percentage points, and the cash
recovery of operating activities continued to strengthen.

The Company’s net cash outflow from investment activities was RMB52.6 billion, a year-on-year increase in net
outflow of RMB32.8 billion. This was mainly due to the decrease in cash received from investment recovery and
cash received from investment income and the increase in cash expenses in investment.

The Company'’s net cash inflow from financing activities was RMB30.8 billion, a year-on-year increase in net inflow
of RMB4.5 billion, mainly due to the increase in cash received from investment, issuance of perpetual bonds and
long-term borrowings.

For details, please refer to relevant information as set out in Note V 64 “Notes to the consolidated cash flow
statement” and Note V 65 “Supplementary information to the consolidate cash flow statement” to the financial
statements under Section XI “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

Financing

During the Reporting Period, the face value of the Company’s newly issued bonds totaled approximately RMB21.6
billion. The Company was dedicated to satisfy the financial needs of relevant entities in pursing the pandemic
prevention and control measures, resumption of work and production and business development by introducing “ten
financial measures”, setting up special loan pools, providing access to green approval channels, and providing a
reserve of financial resources.

In order to actively implement the decision-making of the Party Central Committee and the State Council on
deepening the reform of SOEs, and respond to the guidance of the SASAC of the State Council on market-oriented
legalization of debt-to-equity swaps, the Company organized part of its three-tier subsidiaries, in cooperation with
investment institutions, to carry out market-oriented debt-to-equity conversion business. The market-oriented debt-
to-equity conversion funds effectively supplemented equity capital for related subsidiaries, and were directly used
to swap external debt, which strongly supported the development of the principal business, while optimizing the
subsidiaries’ governance structure and enhancing its governance capabilities.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company’s total interest-bearing liabilities were RMB500.6 billion, an
increase of RMB37.5 billion from the beginning of the year, and a year-on-year increase of 8.1%. This was mainly
due to the increase in the Company’s business volume, the corresponding increase in long-term borrowings, and
the increase in interest expenses.

During the Reporting Period, the interest payment/redemption of corporate bonds and debt financing instruments
are listed as follows:
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Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB
Whether to pay

Category Abbreviation Issue date Maturity date Amount interest/redeem
normally
15 China Redemption and
Medium-term  Construction April 28, 2015 April 28, 2020 30 .
note MTNOO1 interest payment
15 China :
Medium-term  Construction Novg(r)n1bser S Novgrongboer S 20 E?grzgptfnmagrﬁ
note MTNOO2 pay
16 China
Medium-term  Construction April 13, 2016 April 13, 2021 30 Interest payment
note MTNOO1
17 China .
Medium-term  Construction April 20, 2017 April 20, 2020 50 E}f;‘z’“s”tptg’”mae”rﬂ
note MTNOO1 pay
18 China
Medium-term  Construction August 17,2018  August 17, 2023 50 Interest payment
note MTNOO1
18 China
Medium-term  Construction August 17,2018  August 17, 2023 50 Interest payment
note MTNOO2

During the Reporting Period, the bonds issued by the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB/USD

Amount of
Name of bond Issue date Term Amount principal at the Issuer
end of period
March 2, CHINA OVERSEAS FINANCE

CHINA OVS N2503 2020 5 3(USD) 3 (USD) (CAYMAN) VIll LTD
RSP PP March2 .................................................................................. CHI " OVERSEA S . FINANC -

CHINA OVS N3003 2020 10 5(USD) 5(USD) (CAYMAN) VIl LTD
RSP PP e ................................................................................. CHI i OVERSEA S . FINANC -

CHINA OVS N3503 2020 15 2 (USD) 2 (USD) (CAYMAN) VIl LTD

. ' Beijing China Overseas
20China Overseas  APHIZS.  3.343:3+3:3  37(AMB) 37 (RME) Plaza Commercial

Development Ltd.

20 China Construction July 29, China State Construction

G1 2020 3 20 (RMB) 20 (RMB) International Holdings Limited
G v August14 ChmaOverseasDeveIopment
01 2020 3+3 20 (RMB) 20 (RMB) Group Co., Ltd.

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Be”mg Chma Overseas e

20 China Overseas  August 17, 5454543 30 (RMB) 30 (RMB) Plaza Commercial

oA 2020 Development Ltd.
b
Construction October 28, China State Construction
International 2020 8 5 (RMB) 5 (RMB) International Investments Limited
Investments MTNOO1
R November9ChmaOverseasDevelopment
03 2020 8 24 (RMB) 24 (RMB) Group Co., Ltd.
G
Development Group December 14, 3 15 (RVB) 15 (RMB) China Overseas Development

MTNOO 2020 Group Co., Ltd.
For details, please refer to relevant information as set out in Note V. 36 “Bonds payable” to the financial statements
under “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.
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(I

Operating investment business

During the Reporting Period, the Company completed an investment of RMB438.5 billion, an increase of 8.0%
year-on-year, and the investment business maintained a steady development trend.

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Amount of
IS o s investment dyring Proportion YoY increase
the Reporting (%) (%)
Period
By categories of projects
Real estat e : development ....................................................... 3109 ...................... 709 ....................... 1 1 8 .............
et housmg S 102 ...................... SR s
Com prehensweurban deve Iopment ........................................ 14 6 ......................... 33 ......................... : 34 ..............
F|xedassetsandothermvestments28 .......................... 07 ........................ : 145 .............
- By con tmu“y of pro | e c ts ......................................................................................................................................
Con t|nued m vestme nt pr Ojects ............................................... 2826 ...................... 64 4 ........................ 33 ..............
NeWprOJeCtS|n2020‘|559 ...................... we e
Total ..................................................................................... 4,385 ....................... ; 0 0 ......................... 80 ..............

Note: The above classification of projects is designed in accordance with industry practices and the Company’s
internal management needs. The classification attributes of some projects will be adjusted according to the actual
circumstances of the project. The year-on-year growth rate in the table will be adjusted retrospectively to the
changed projects accordingly.

o 1.
o 2.
e 3.
e 4.

Real estate development business

During the Reporting Period, the investment amount of the Company’s real estate development business
reached RMB310.9 billion, a year-on-year increase of 11.8%; payback of investment return was RMB328.6
billion, a year-on-year increase of 16.1%; and ratio of investment to income was 105.7%, a year-on-year
increase of 3.9 percentage points.

Business of investment in infrastructure and housing construction

During the Reporting Period, the investment in infrastructure and housing construction of the Company
reached RMB110.2 billion, a year-on-year increase of 0.6%; payback of investment return was RMB46.5
billion, a year-on-year increase of 4.9%; and the income to expenses ratio of investment was 42.2%, a
year-on-year increase of 1.7 percentage points.

Comprehensive urban construction business

During the Reporting Period, the amount of investment of the Company’s comprehensive urban
construction business reached RMB14.6 billion, a year-on-year decrease of 3.4%; payback of investment
return was RMB15.8 billion, a year-on-year increase of 64.5%; and the income to expenses ratio of
investment was 108.2%, a year-on-year increase of 44.6 percentage points.

Investment and construction in key regions

The Company resolutely implemented the major decision-making and deployment of the Party Central
Committee and the State Council, took the responsibility as a central enterprise around major national
strategic planning and deployment, actively practised regional coordinated development strategies, and
was deeply involved in the coordinated development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, the development
of the Yangtze River Economic Belt, the construction of the GBA, investment and construction in key
national areas such as the integrated development of the Yangtze River Delta, ecological protection and
high-quality development of the Yellow River Basin. During the Reporting Period, the amount of investment
of the Company in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, Yangtze River Economic Belt, GBA, the Yangtze River
Delta, and the Yellow River Basin reached RMB308.63 billion, representing 70.4% of the Company’s overall
investment.
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e 5. Development of PPP business

In accordance with the national requirements on the regulated development of PPP business, and under
the guidance of national policy, the Company has comprehensively cleared up and rectified the existing
PPP projects, maintained reasonable control of the scale of PPP projects, and adhered to the high-quality
development of PPP business.

During the Reporting Period, the Company won new bids for 18 PPP projects with the project investment
in aggregate of RMB47.8 billion, including an equity investment of RMB15.4 billion, covering business
fields including expressways, railroad engineering and waterway and environmental protection. By the
end of 2020, the Company had a total of 387 PPP projects in progress with the project investment in
aggregate of RMB1,285.18 billion, including an equity investment of RMB626.15 billion, covering business
fields including municipal engineering works, transportation, cultural and sports venues, composite
development of towns and industrial parks, ecological and environmental protection. In accordance with
the national requirements on the regulated development of PPP business, and under the guidance of
national policy, the Company has comprehensively cleared up and rectified the existing PPP projects,
maintained reasonable control of the scale of PPP projects and adhered to the high-quality development
of PPP business. The Company invested in and constructed a number of major landmark projects related
to national economy and people’s livelihood through PPP business, covering the fields of municipal
engineering, transportation, comprehensive development of towns and industrial parks, ecological
construction and environmental protection, which strongly promoted the Company’s steady growth and
structural adjustment. This helped the Company's transformation from a company which is solely engaged
in housing construction business to the world’s largest investment and construction conglomerate, and
enhance the brand influence of CSCEC.

As of the end of 2020, 118 of the Company’s PPP projects was in operation, accounting for 30.41% of
the PPP projects in progress, with the project investment in aggregate of RMB235.32 billion including
an equity investment of approximately RMB158.8 billion, accounting for 25.36%. According to the
category of operating projects, the projects in operation were mainly municipal roads, comprehensive
pipeline network, cultural and sports venues, security housing projects and ecological and environmental
protection. Among them, Zhengzhou Metro Line 3 was successfully opened to traffic under independent
operation, further enriching the business model of the Company’s operating business. In 2020, the
Company further strengthened the operation management of PPP projects and issued the Implementation
Rules for Operation and Management, and a number of subsidiaries set up specific operating entities,
with the operation and management system basically taking shape and the operation and management
capability continuously improved. On the one hand, the Company supervised our subsidiaries to complete
the planning, preparation and filing of operation plans before the projects were opened for operation
period, so as to fully prepare for the operation; on the other hand, in respect of projects in operation,
the Company monitored the operating income, assessment results and performance of government
payments, so as to effectively protect the investment income. In 2020, PPP projects in operation delivered
satisfactory results in evaluation and assessment, particularly, 98.7% of the projects meeting the annual
operation performance assessment and recording payback of investment return of 96.4%. In this regard,
the Company has overcome the adverse impact of the pandemic on the operation of the projects and
consolidated the two responsibilities, namely performance assessment and investment return.

Operating status of the professional sectors

Since the implementation of the “specialization” strategy, the Company has fostered and developed a number
of professional companies with sophisticated management mechanisms, innovative capabilities and core
competencies in their respective specialized fields. The Company split its principal business into 11 professional
sub-sectors, which continued to maintain satisfactory overall development momentum. The total value of new
contracts was RMB459.0 billion, a year-on-year increase of 5.7%; revenue was RMB363.22 billion, a year-on-year
increase of 7.6%; gross profit was RMB24.99 billion, a year-on-year decrease of 8.8%; and operating profit was
RMB12.57 billion, a year-on-year decrease of 14.1%.

Since the implementation of the “specialization” strategy, the Company has fostered and developed a number
of professional companies with sophisticated management mechanisms, innovative capabilities and core
competencies in their respective specialized fields. During the Reporting Period, the Company’s internal division
of specialization and layout became more rational, the synergetic and coordination mechanism was more
sophisticated, and the overall competitive edge became more prominent. Various specialized sectors and related
subsidiaries provided solid support for the Company’s development in the full business area, full life cycle, and
whole industry chain capabilities. The construction scale of China Construction Science and Industry has been
ranked first in the steel structure industry since 2012; the core propane dehydrogenation plant product of China
Construction Industrial & Energy Engineering. Group Co., Ltd. had the largest market share in the world for three
consecutive years, and was awarded “National Single Champion Product in Manufacturing” by the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology in 2020; the construction scale of glass curtain wall business of China State
Decoration remains its leading position in the industry; China Construction Science & Technology built up more
than 20 modern assembly industry bases across the country, with a total designed assembly capacity of 4 million
cubic meters per year, which can support nearly 50 million square meters of buildings. The world-leading “China
Construction Cloud Tunnel Intelligence” control system of China Construction Intelligence (F2%5E) was a
typical application of the Internet of Things technology in the process of control of tunnel underground excavation
construction; China West Construction continued to maintain a leading position in the industry in terms of the
concrete output for commercial use.
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Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

ltem Name of Amount of new Revenue for  YoY Increase Gross profit for YoY Increase Operating profit YoY Increase

sector contracts 2020 (%) 2020 (%) for 2020 (%)
Installation 529 601.5 10.7 31.4 -4.2 19.4 -8.7
. Steel 74 2182 117 13.4 34 9.2 65.2
Cross-section structure
Commercil 498 234.2 46 27.0 175 114 425
concrete
Housing Decoration 370 3327 11.0 25.8 14.3 6.4 -23.3
construction Gardening 24 55.4 54.1 3.7 739 3.2 222.6
Municipal 913 783.3 155 87.6 83 50.7 6.4
projects
Railways 159 100.8 741 3.1 / 2.4 /
Rail transit 1,165 307.9 1.2 8.1 17.5 23 59.0
sl e oy T T
Roads and 640 865.5 38 46.9 38.8 226 55.3
bridges
Electricity 60 51.3 46.0 2.5 85.0 15 /
.Port. 158 81.3 25.0 6.5 230.0 1.5 /
engineering
Total 4,590 3,632.2 7.6 249.9 -8.8 125.7 -14.1
Gross profit margin (%) Operating profit margin (%)
ltem Names of YoY change YoY change
sector 2020 2019 (Percentage 2020 2019 (Percentage
points) points)
Installation 5.2 6.0 -0.8 3.2 3.9 -0.7
. Steel 6.1 71 10 42 28 14
Cross-section structure
Commercil 115 10.3 12 49 35 14
concrete
) ) Decoration 7.8 75 0.2 1.9 2.8 0.9
Housmg construc“on ........... BRERR = omm oo L R T LT LR LR L RRR LR ~~ <~comxcoox-x L LR TR LI LR R L LL R
Gardening 6.7 5.9 0.8 5.7 2.7 3.0
Municipal 112 4.1 29 65 8.0 15
projects
Infrastructure
Roads and 5.4 85 3.1 26 56 30
bridges
Electricity 5.0 3.9 1.0 2.9 0.3 3.2
Port 79 30 49 18 29 47
engineering
Total 6.9 8.1 -1.2 35 4.3 0.9

(IV)  Explanation on significant changes in profit arising from non-major business
O Applicable +/ N/A

(V)  Analysis of assets and liabilities
\ Applicable O N/A
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(V1)

2. Restriction on major assets as of the end of the Reporting Period

O Applicable N/A

3. Other explanation

O Applicable N/A

Analysis of operating information in the industry

\ Applicable O N/A

Analysis of operating information in the construction industry

1.

Projects completed and accepted after verification during the Reporting Period
\ Applicable O N/A

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

i ol nstruction
Segment of Housing Infrastructure  Specialized CLLIE

. ; . . . and Others Total
industry construction  construction  engineering .
decoration
Number of projects 7,677 1,661 / / / 9,338
Total amount 20,740 5,907 / / / 26,647

\ Applicable O N/A

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Locations of projects Number of projects Total amount
Mainland China 9,031 24,791

Other explanation
\ Applicable O N/A

With reference to the relevant national standards, combined with its own operating characteristics and
structural development needs, the Company’s housing construction projects include engineering general
contracting and specialized contracting projects (foundation, steel structure, construction and installation,
renovation and decoration, etc.); infrastructure projects include transportation engineering (roads, municipal
roads, railways, urban rail transit, airports, ports and docks, parking lots, tunnels, bridges, waterways, etc.),
energy engineering, petrochemical engineering, water supply and treatment engineering, environmental
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protection engineering, post and telecommunications engineering, health crisis and disaster prevention
engineering, hydraulic engineering and other projects (outdoor stadiums, outdoor recreational facilities,
reclamation, artificial islands, underground comprehensive pipe corridors, pipe networks, etc.), which is also
applicable to the items below.

Projects under construction during the Reporting Period
\ Applicable O N/A

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Segment of Housing Infrastructure ~ Specialized TS IE e
. ; ) . ) and Others Total
industry construction ~ construction  engineering .
decoration

Number of projects 11,932

\ Applicable O N/A

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Locations of projects Number of projects Total amount
Mainland China 14,077 70,918
Overseme T 6665452
i
e ¥ ongKongandMacaoSARs ................................................................... o ; 153
g A Sy ] 574
e Baay o ey
e N Ao oy
G S T
S e
D : urope13 ................................. 5y
Otherreglons ............................................................................................ Ly
el ] 4,74376,370

Other explanation

O Applicable / N/A

Material projects under construction

O Applicable N/A

Other explanation

O Applicable +/ N/A

Overseas projects during the Reporting Period

\ Applicable O N/A
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Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Locations of projects Number of projects Total amount
Hong Kong and Macao SARs 189 2,003

Other explanation
\ Applicable O N/A

The above project status includes completed and settled, completed and unsettled, under construction and
others.

The amount of overseas projects set out in the contract was translated in the exchange rate of foreign
currencies against RMB as agreed in the contract or the spot exchange rate at the time of entering of the
contract.

5. Total number of new projects signed during the Reporting Period
\ Applicable O N/A

The total number of new projects signed during the Reporting Period was 5,718 with an amount of RMB2,772.1
billion (amount of construction contracts).

6. Orders in hand as of the end of the Reporting Period
\ Applicable O N/A

The total amount of orders in hand as of the end of the Reporting Period was RMB5,569.8 billion. Among them,
the amount of the contract has been signed but the project has not yet started is RMB1,724.4 billion, and the
amount of the unfinished part of the project under construction is RMB3,845.4 billion.

Other explanation
O Applicable  N/A
7. Other explanation

O Applicable +/ N/A
o The Company’s qualifications in the construction industry

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had a total of 38 enterprises with special qualifications, 1 enterprise
with comprehensive engineering grade-A qualification, and 64 special-grade qualifications, including 32 special-grade
qualifications in general contracting of construction projects, 19 special-grade qualifications in general contracting of
municipal utilities works, and 10 special-grade qualifications in general contracting of highway projects, 2 special-grade
qualifications in general contracting of petrochemical projects, 1 special-grade qualification in general contracting of port
and waterway projects, and 1 grade-A qualification in design-related comprehensive business.

o The Company’s quality control system, implementation standards, control measures and
overall evaluation

Based on the 1ISO9001 quality system, the Company continuously improved the multi-level and comprehensive quality
management system such as quality organization system, regimes and supervision system, and maintained effective
operation. Before the commencement of work, the Company attentively made project quality planning, specified the
objectives of project quality management, entered into the agreement regarding the post quality responsibility goals,
refined the post quality tasks, and made preparations for construction. During the process of construction, the Company
implemented quality standardization management and guidance for examples, refined technical communication, adopted
strict approaches to engineering technology review, strict raw material field acceptance, management of inspection, and
inspection on process quality, taking a strict approach to project quality acceptance. After the completion of the project,
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the Company signed project quality warranty, compiled the construction manual, and distributed it to the users. The
Company attached great importance to quality assurance services, established customer files, and conducted regular and
irregular quality review visits.

Operation of the Company’s safe production system

In 2020, the Company had no major or above-grade production safety accidents. 169 projects of the Company were
awarded the “Projects for Study and Exchange on Safety and Production Standardization of Construction Project Sites” by
the Construction Safety and Machinery Branch of China Construction Industry Association (I EZR I h= RN T 2 5H
93%), accounting for 32.2% of the total number of awards, ranking first among central enterprises and enterprises across
the country. Throughout the year, the Company identified and eliminated 1.03 million hidden hazards, carried out 365,000
safety production training sessions, and provided about 75,000 occupational health training sessions. 100% of employees
attended the training on safety and 100% employees had personal health files.

During the Reporting Period, the Company organized special meetings on production safety, meetings of the safety
committees, emergency video meetings on safe production, etc. to promote and implement General Secretary Xi Jinping’s
important expositions and instructions on production safety, and to implement the safe production and initiatives of the
Party Central Committee and the State Council. In response to the requirements for pandemic prevention and control
measures as well as resumption of work and production and based on the characteristics of the highly frequent occurrence
of accidents, the Company issued “Eight Prohibitions” for Enhancing Safety Precautious Measures during Pandemic
Prevention and Control and Resumption of Work and Production; in response to the severity of the high incidence of
accidents involving lifting injuries and limited-space operations across the country, the Company issued the Notice on
Strengthening the Safety Management of Lifting Machinery and Equipment and the Notice on Strengthening the Safety
Management of Limited-space Operation; to carry out the safety initiatives at the end of the year, the Company also issued
the Notice on Further Strengthening of Production Safety at the Turn of the Year and other documents. Enterprises at all
levels spared no efforts to ensure the pandemic prevention and control measures and safety and stability of resumption
of work and production, fully implemented the “special action on accountability of production safety and systematic
governance”. The Company also promoted the three-year action of special rectification measure of production safety, and
continued to carry out special inspections on production safety. The Company delivered satisfactory performance in three
battles, i.e., “battle for overcoming difficulties in pandemic prevention and control and resumption of work and production,
battle for promoting production safety in daily operating activities, and the battle for safeguarding safety and stability at the
turn of the year”, ensuring the safety and development of CSCEC.

(VIl) Analysis of investment

1 General analysis of external equity investment
\ Applicable O N/A

The Company’s external equity investment mainly includes stocks purchased from the secondary market
for trading purposes, and equities held in other listed or unlisted companies for non-trading purposes.
Accounting items include financial assets held for trading, investment in other equity instruments and long-
term equity investments.

(1) Major equity investment
O Applicable N/A

(2) Major non-equity investment
O Applicable  / N/A

(8) Financial assets measured at fair value
\ Applicable O N/A

Unit: '000 yuan  Currency: RMB

Investment Changes in Cost of ) Gains o Changes in
. . Carrying value ) ) )
cost at the investment  investment at losses during ~~fair value in - Source of
Stock code Stock name - ) atthe end of ) ) Accounting items
beginning of  costduringthe  the end of the the perod the Reporting  the Reporting stocks
the period period period P Period Period
Financial
600015.5H HUAXIA BANK 5558 0 5,558 8340 1563 Aggs B e
......................................................................................................................................... hedfortadng "
Financial asset
§00723.8H BCRG 4406 4406 0 0 2781 2160 RIS e
......................................................................................................................................... hedfortadng .
/ SPH 1,961 ) 1,869 a7 s g TR e
......................................................................................................................................... hedfortadng .
/ PACIFICCENTURY 99% 46 9472 1,941 0 o Fnamclassels e

held for trading

Financial assets
held for trading
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Investment Changes in Cost of ) Gains o Changes in
. . Carrying value ) . )
cost at the investment  investment at losses during ~~ fair value in _ Source of
Stock code Stock name - ) atthe end of ) ) Accounting items
beginning of  costduringthe  the end of the the perod the Reporting  the Reporting stocks
the period period period P Period Period
CHENGDU HI-TECH Financial assets
s omeceuemoolm M D L et PR
Financial assets
s mwem e DRI et P
Financial assets
SE BMReRORRN O F LB R e P
Financial assets
s S S S ¥ mdioriming P
Financial assets
s S c A SR LR | felorong P
Investment in
gotogesH  AGRICULTURAL BANKOF 796,467 0 796,467 983173 54058 463456 oherequy  Puchase
CHINA ;
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, mstruments
Investment in
600015.5H HUAXIA BANK 241,479 0 241,479 362,316 14,434 -82,318 other equity Purchase
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, nstuments .
Investment in
601328.5H BANKCOMM 2,005 0 2,005 6,423 452 -1,389 other equity Purchase
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, mstuments .
Investment in
00687.HK TYSAN HOLDINGS 199,904 0 199,904 18,470 39,350 -32,590 other equity Purchase
..................................................................................................................................................... nstuments L
Investment in
600778.5H YOUHAO GROUP 720 -720 0 0 0 -1,950 other equity Purchase
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, stuments .
Investment in
601229.5H BANK OF SHANGHAI 1,641 0 1,641 9457 483 -1,990 other equity Purchase
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, nstuments .
000617.82 CNPCCCL 1,900,000 0 1900000 1,668,344 45,523 204,263 Othgs’sce“{s’e”‘ Purchase
600390.H  MINMETALS CAPITAL 1,500,000 0 1500000 1287833 14010 447,065 O‘hjs’fe“t’s’e”‘ Purchase
| Gwneness wo | vawm | wsoww em s RGPt
...................... Totol . SOGSSST BAGS  A005%9  4M0ATS e a0 L
Notes
©) This table sets out the Company’s investment in stock securities including as financial assets held for trading, other current
assets, and investment in other equity instruments.
® Profit and loss for the Reporting Period, with respect to financial assets held for trading, includes the investment income and

changes in fair value during holding period and the investment gains on disposal during the Reporting Period; with respect
to investment in other equity instruments and other current assets, includes investment gains during the holding period.

® Other securities investment refers to investment in stock securities accounted for as financial assets held for trading,
investment in other equity instruments other than those listed above.
@ In addition to the table above, for other items included in financial assets held for trading and investment in other equity

instruments, please refer to the relevant information as set out in Note V 2 “Financial assets held for trading” and Note V 15
“Investment in other equity instruments” under Section XI “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

(VII) Major disposal of assets and equity interests
O Applicable N/A

(IX)  Analysis of major controlling companies or companies with shareholding
\ Applicable O N/A

1 Major subsidiaries acquired through incorporation or investment

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Shareholding ratio
)

Name Nature of business Registered capital Total assets Net assets Net profit

COHL Investment holding 31,082,258 100.00 921,633,116 296,568,256 43,252,283
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Total assets Net assets Net proft

Name Nature of business Registered capital Shareh(oaf;ng refi

China Construction Third Engineering Division Construction and installation 5,039,865 100.00 224,235,936 56,381,608 7,661,202

2. Major subsidiaries acquired through business combination under common control
Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

e ROy

Name Nature of business capita ratio (%) Net assets Net profit
CSCEC Xinjang Construction and installation 3,500,000 8500 46260376 13164802 1,204,023
Construction & Engineering
China West Construction Construction materials 1,262,354 57.79 23,833,616 10,056,435 945,990
Shenzhen China Overseas Real estate development
Investment GA3IH/8#2) and operation 2,650,000 10000 349,304 3460950 176,720
CSC Finance Financial 10,000,000 80.00 111,756,847 12,415,401 602,877
3. Major subsidiaries acquired through business combination not under common control
Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB
Name Nature of business ReglsTered Shargholdlng Total assets ~ Net assets Net profit
capital ratio (%)
CSC Development Consiructon and HKD100,000,000 4789 6218497 1324877 158850
installation
China Construction Infrastructure
Harbour and Channel ) 1,333,333 70.00 9,093,644 2,092,743 137,658
construction

Engineering Bureau

For details, please refer to relevant information as set out in “1. Interests in subsidiaries” under Note VI
“Interest in other entities” to the financial statements under Section XI “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

Structured entities under the control of the Company
\ Applicable O N/A

For details, please refer to relevant information as set out in “3. Interests in consolidated structured entities” under
Note VIl “Interest in other entities” to the financial statements under Section XI “FINANCIAL REPORT" hereof.

lll. Discussion and Analysis of the Future Development of the Company

()

Industrial development and trends
\ Applicable O N/A

For details, please refer to relevant information as set out in Section Il “OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATION”
hereof on the situations of the industry.
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(I

Development strategies
\ Applicable O N/A

In 2021, the Company will continue to be committed to the corporate mission of “expanding a happy living
environment”, uphold the guiding philosophy of inheritance and innovation, adhere to the general principle of
the work of making progress while maintaining stability, building on the new development stage, implement
new development concepts, and serve to create a new development pattern, enhance professional capabilities
throughout the life cycle in the fields of construction, investment, prospecting and design, strengthen normalized
pandemic prevention and control, make dedicated efforts in production and operation, promote high-quality
development, and make a good start for the “14th Five-Year Plan”.

During the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, the Company will continue to highlight the main responsibilities and main
business in accordance with the principle of respecting history and embracing the future, and firmly promote the
Company’s continuous high-quality development, innovative development, eco-friendly development, business
optimization development, digital development and overall security development and transformation, and
expand emerging business areas closely related to the main business. The Company will strive to speed up its
transformation and upgrading while securing growth, follow the principle of innovation and inheritance, and further
enhance its core competitiveness.

1. Investment and operation business. The real estate business is committed to becoming an exceptional
international real estate development and operation group, and will continue to take “transformation and
upgrading” as the keynote, accelerate the formation of a pattern that focuses on residential product
development, supplemented by high-quality commercial development and operation as well as by
emerging business such as education and healthcare. Infrastructure investment and operation business is
a key part for the Company to optimize its business structure and achieve transformation and upgrading.
During the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, the Company will attach great importance to investment
management and the safe and stable operation of projects, and strive to enhance “three key aspects
of capabilities”, i.e., operation control, professional implementation and risk resolution. With regard to
new-type urbanization business, the Company will proactively seize opportunities, actively implement
the country’s strategic deployment of the implementation of urban renewal actions, coordinate regional
distribution, concentrate relevant resources, give full play to its “four-in-one” advantage, and focus on
the zoning development and large-scale urban renewal, station-city integration, urban operation, etc.,
coordinate urban planning, construction, and operation management to create a livable, green, resilient,
smart and humane city, and continuously improve the quality of urban living environment and people’s life,
dedicated to becoming a leading urban service operator in the country.

2. Engineering construction business. The housing construction engineering business should continue to
consolidate the Company’s absolute dominant position in the housing construction field. In accordance
with the principle of steady development with efficiency enhancement, the business will focus on
expanding projects in the public investment and high-quality real estate developers’ residential and
commercial office projects, and continue to improve its competitiveness in super high-rise and large-span
projects, reach industry benchmark levels in supply chain management, informatization, construction
quality, energy conservation and environmental protection as well as production safety, and deliver
scientific research results reaching the domestic and international leading levels, and continuously improve
the Company’s market competitiveness and quality of development. Infrastructure business is still an
important aspect of the Company’s optimization of its business structure. It is necessary to more actively
seize the development opportunities brought by the country’s major strategies, focus on key markets,
improve its management system, and strive to make up for the shortcomings by combining provinces and
metropolitan areas, thus obtaining the dual benefits of economic growth and social responsibility, and
promoting the further optimization of the Company’s business structure, and ensuring that the infrastructure
business continues to grow stronger, better, and bigger during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period. In terms of
business in construction, the Company continues to deepen reforms and innovations, optimize the internal
coordination mechanism of the system, and continue to grow stronger, better and larger, and become the
industry’s leading enterprise in terms of scale, technology and quality, as well as the first choice for high-
end customers.

3. Prospecting and design business. Through the prospecting and design business, the Company will
enhance its brand influence, cultivate high-end talents, strengthen technological innovation, and provide
strong support for the Company’s general engineering contracting business. The Company will also
promote the extension of the prospecting and design business, build the core competence of the brand,
focus on key professional directions, achieve distinctive and differentiated development, enhance the
original ability of product solutions, strengthen brand building, create a highland of talents in prospecting
and design, and prepare high-end talent reserves, strengthen business synergy and linkage, and
innovate business cooperation models. Taking advantage of development opportunities such as the
BRI, the Company will actively cooperate with entities within and outside the system to expand overseas
prospecting and design business.

4. New business. The Company will further intensify the development of new business, and vigorously
create an innovative atmosphere within the Company that encourages bold explorations and innovation
and tolerates failure. The Company will implement classified policies, and give appropriate special
considerations in terms of resource input, performance appraisal and management procedures, give full
play to the Company’s advantages, continue to explore new business forms, cultivate new momentum, and
strive to make new business an important business segment of the Company by the end of the “14th Five-
Year Plan” period.

5. International business. During the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, in the face of the new situations of
severe and complex international environment and widespread and far-reaching impact of the pandemic,
the Company will continue to adhere to the development direction of developing global business,
further improve the international operation mechanism and model, and seize the business opportunities
brought by the BRI, enhance the voice and influence in the global industry, and become an outstanding
representative of “Chinese Construction” in the global market. Meanwhile, the Company will focus on
contributing international talents, and learn their advanced management experience and business
philosophy through competition with international advanced enterprises, with a view to improving the
Company'’s overall management level.
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During the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, the Company will, based on the actual needs of the new
development stage, implement the new development concept, accelerate the construction of a new
development pattern, take the promotion of high-quality development as the theme, and deepen the
supply-side structural reform as the main line, paying attention to the new business opportunities brought
by demand-side reform, benchmark against the country’s “14th Five-Year Plan” and 2035 long-term
vision goals, proactively adapting to the new situation and meeting new challenges, fully seizing new
opportunities, nurturing opportunities in crises and changes. The Company will always bear in mind the
overall strategy of the great rejuvenation of the Chinese nation as well as the profound changes unseen
in the world in a century, thereby maintaining strategic focus and remaining committed to development,
amplify our own advantages, complement various shortcomings, and coordinate development and
safety, take full advantage of the domestic and international markets, and make good use of the domestic
and international resources, thus achieving higher quality, more efficient, more sustainable and safer
development, and becoming a “globally competitive world-class comprehensive enterprise group in
investment and construction”.

Operation Plan
\ Applicable O N/A

In 2021, the Company plans to achieve the amount of newly signed contracts of more than RMB3.50 trillion,
and a revenue of more than RMB1.76 trillion. The Company will adhere to the general work guideline of making
progress while maintaining stability, adhere to the new development concept, pursue high-quality development,
focus on the strategic goal of “one creation and five aspects of strength”, implement the “166” strategic measures,
adhere to high-quality development, and strive to solve the issue of unbalanced and insufficient development, and
promote reform in terms of quality, efficiency and driving force. The Company will adhere to scientific research
and judgment, accurately respond to the external situation and national policies, take the initiative to study new
situations, solve new problems, and creatively promote the work throughout the year. The Company will also make
persistent efforts in the implementation of the Company’s reform and development tasks. We will focus on five
aspects of work:

1. Promoting the quality development of housing construction business. The Company will pay close
attention to the impact of the “three red lines” and bank real estate loan concentration management on the
industry, strictly implement the bottom line of the Company’s real estate projects, strengthen cooperation
with high-quality customers, and resolutely abandon projects that do not meet the bottom-line standards.
The Company will intensify the development of the public investment market, and further expand projects
in areas such as science and technology innovation projects, public health, and the renovation of old
urban communities, actively adapt to new changes in technology, capture new market demands, upgrade
products and services, and increase high-quality supply.

2. Promoting the scale development of infrastructure business. The Company will continue to adhere
to high standards, seize opportunities, integrate resources, and continue to strengthen and optimize
the infrastructure business. The Company will improve the infrastructure business system, enhance the
marketing system centered on two-level headquarters, the performance system centered on general
contracting capabilities, and the support system centered on technology, so as to continuously improve
the core competitiveness of the infrastructure business. The Company will deeply cultivate the national
strategic areas, further give play to the role of the Company’s leadership to contact the regional
mechanism, deepen the high-level connection, and implement major projects. It is necessary for the
Company to actively expand into key infrastructure markets, and strive to obtain major projects in the
fields of urban rail transit, municipal roads, expressways, ecological and environmental protection, water
conservancy and railways.

3. Promoting the steady development of real estate business. Adhering to the regulatory policy that
“houses are for living in, not speculation” and the principle of prudent and caution investment, the
Company will explore new strategies to adapt to the new situation, ensure the steady growth of scale and
profits, and achieve high-quality development. China Overseas will continue to consolidate and enhance
its advantages in residential development, accelerate the improvement of commercial asset scale and
operational efficiency, increase turnover speed, seek benefits from digitalization and refinement, and
maintain industry-leading profitability. CSC Land will focus on development business and on investment
areas, maintains an investment rhythm that matches resources and capabilities, and strives to improve
turnover efficiency and quality of development.

4. Promoting the innovative development of prospecting and design business. The Company will
vigorously enhance the originality ability, focus on the three major points of technological innovation,
talent training and introduction as well as professional construction, and promote more professional fields
to reach first-class levels. The Company will intensify transformation and upgrading efforts, deepen the
expansion of new areas such as land and space planning, urban design, and infrastructure prospecting
and design, cultivate new business growth points, and facilitate the Company’s structural adjustment. The
Company will promote the allocation of high-quality design resources to the core regional market, and
promote the optimization of the layout of design of the Yangtze River Economic Belt and the GBA.

5. Promoting the rapid development of innovative businesses. In terms of the financial business, the
Company adheres to the principle of integrating industry and finance and strengthening production by
financing, further improve the business layout, enhance service functions, strengthen risk prevention
and control, and effectively meet the needs of the main business. The Company will also accelerate the
cultivation of new infrastructure business, continue to explore projects in emerging fields such as smart
parking, smart light poles and general aviation, and create a sustainable business model.

6. Developing overseas markets through concrete efforts. Making innovations in perseverance, and
seeking development in innovation, the Company will overcome immediate difficulties, consolidate existing
achievements, and promote high-quality overseas development. The Company will streamline overseas
top-level design, increase market development efforts, formulate development plans in a scientific manner,
categorize and cultivate overseas markets, and strive to nurture new opportunities and open new chapters.
The Company will improve basic management capabilities, optimize coordinated management measures
for overseas markets, and continue to promote standardized management of overseas projects.
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(V)

The business plan does not constitute the commitment to investors in terms of the Company’s performance.
Investors are advised to maintain sufficient risk awareness, and should understand the difference between the
business plan and commitments of performance.

Potential risks
\ Applicable O N/A

1

Macro-economic risks

Currently, the country’s economic growth is shifting, the issue of the aging of the population is serious, the
economic growth continues to decline, and the overall development of the construction industry is slowing
down. Looking ahead, due to international trade frictions and changes in the international financial situation,
as well as the continued impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, although China’s economy will continue to
recover in 2021, we should not be over-optimistic. With the weakening of counter-cyclical adjustment
policies, infrastructure and real estate investment is facing the downward pressure. The Company
must continue to strengthen in-depth research on the macro economy, closely follow national and local
investment and construction hotspots, deepen supply-side structural reforms, accelerate business
transformation and upgrading, and promote radiation and extension of its business. The Company will
strengthen monitoring during the execution of strategic planning to target the external economy, revise
corporate strategy in time for environmental changes, actively integrate into national strategy, further
optimize regional layout, precise layout in key areas, give full play to its own professional advantages, and
actively seek business opportunities from national regional strategic layout. The Company will actively and
steadily explore overseas markets and seize the opportunities brought by BRI, promote the continuous
development and growth of overseas business, strengthen regional linkages, enhance synergies, give
play to the Company’s advantages in resource integration, and increase the Company’s sensitivity and
predictability to changes in the economic environment.

International operation risks

Since the fourth quarter of 2020, the pandemic in many countries has rebounded strongly, causing a
serious impact on the global society and economy. Affected by the idea of reverse globalization, strategic
games among major powers were intensified, and uncertainties and risks in the international situation have
increased. The continuous spread of the pandemic has led to a sharp decline in contracting projects in the
international market, and the pressure on market development has significantly increased. Projects under
construction have recorded an increase in pandemic prevention expenditures, experienced payment
delays, and lagging progress in contract performance. Project costs and construction schedule pressures
have also risen. In particular, the unstable security situation of individual countries has increased the
difficulty of operating in overseas markets. Confronting such complex and ever-changing international
situation, the Company has been consolidating its ability to identify and respond to international business
risks and strengthening the Company’s control and dynamic adjustment of organizational structure.
Besides, it has been improving the comprehensive risk management system of the entire business chain of
overseas business, adhering to compliant operations, and improving the risk assessment and monitoring
mechanism of overseas projects. It has also paid attention to the effective operation of overseas safe
production supervision mechanisms, and properly identified, prevented and resolved risks of international
operations.

Risks related to safety, environmental protection and quality

The Company’s engineering contracting business accounts for a large proportion of its business
portfolio and covers a wide range of sectors. Due to the characteristics of the industry and the external
environment, in the course of construction, it may be exposed to natural disasters such as floods,
rainstorms, earthquakes, typhoons, and fires and risks such as unexpected public events. The Company’s
production safety, environmental protection and quality are exposed to certain risks. The Company takes
production safety, environmental protection and quality as the lifeline of the Company and attaches great
importance to project management. Over the years, the Company has been adhering to the concept of “life
first, safety operation foremost”, always putting project management in the first place, and strictly following
the CSCEC 1132 safe production supervision model to improve the safety supervision system of all levels
of enterprises to the production unit. The Company will further improve the safety production supervision
organization in accordance with the law, fully allocate full-time safety supervision personnel, strengthen the
quality and capacity of the safety supervision team, adhere to the problem-oriented approach, defend the
bottom line of safety, innovate management methods, consolidate the safety foundation, and effectively
prevent all kinds of production safety accidents. The Company closely follows the national environmental
protection policy guidance, continues to increase the promotion of environmental protection management,
initiates the preparation of the CSCEC Ecological Environmental Protection Management Measures and the
Management Manual, and promotes enterprises at all levels to improve safety, ecology and environmental
protection as well as quality management system in terms of enterprises and projects, continue to
consolidate the foundation of project management and improve risk prevention capabilities.
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4. Risks related to the COVID-19 pandemic

CSCEC is a labor-intensive enterprise. Project suspension and personnel isolation caused by the pandemic
will have certain impact on the production and operation of the Company, and will exert greater pressure
on the Company’s main economic indicators. In response to the global pandemic and the current situation
of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company made effective efforts in normalized pandemic prevention and
control to ensure the lives and health of employees of the Company, while dealings with new risks brought
by the global pandemic, such as the resulting risks of resumption of work and production due to the
restriction on materials and personnel, decline in business performance due to the impact of the pandemic,
legal contract disputes and other derivative risks. Throughout the year, the Company strengthened the
overall planning and organizational leadership of pandemic prevention and control, resumption of work
and production, and urged all subsidiaries and projects to establish a work system featuring “horizontal
to edge, vertical to end”, and defined work responsibilities at all levels. It also strictly implemented
the pandemic prevention and control reporting mechanism, and implemented dynamic tracking and
monitoring. Under the premise of preventing and controlling the pandemic, the Company actively resumed
work and production, thoroughly analyzed the impact of the pandemic on production and operation,
formulated targeted policies and measures, and strengthened work deployment. At present, with the
normalized management of the pandemic, the Company has not relaxed its vigilance, and adhered to the
overall coordination of domestic and foreign countries, strictly implements the main responsibilities, and
continues to make concrete efforts in pandemic prevention.

5. Investment risk

The 2021 Economic Work Conference of the Political Bureau of the Central Committee proposed “promoting
the stable and healthy development of the real estate market”, laying the main tone for the “stable” and
“development” of the real estate industry in 2021. The central government’'s determination to balance
steady growth and prevent risks remains unchanged. The overall policy orientation of the real estate
regulation and control policy has remained stable. The strong positioning of regulatory policy that “houses
are for living in, not speculation” is maintained, and city-specific policies have been implemented to
ensure the smooth operation of the market. Affected by the domestic economic downturn, fiscal pressure
and the pandemic, under the “three stabilities” target, there are no obvious signs of relaxation in the
short-term restrictions on purchase, loan and sales. The financial supervision for the industry continues
to be strengthened, and some investment projects may not be able to progress as planned. These may
result in an increase in the risk of investment recovery, increased corporate financing costs and reduced
investment returns. The Company will strengthen research on national policies, regulations and industry
policies. Under the combined effect of PPP project clean-up regulations and strict financial supervision
policies, the Company will strictly implement the requirements as stipulated in No. 192 document of
SASAC, No. 92 document of the Ministry of Finance and No. 10 document of the Ministry of Finance,
improve investment business management and control standards and reasonably control the scale of
investment. The Company will also strictly implement the investment budget, insist on the principle of “no
investment without budget”, and strictly require that subsidiaries without budget space shall not invest in
new projects. The Company will adhere to the principle of operating within capacity, and establish a “dual
control” mechanism for investment budgets and asset-liability ratios. The Company will strictly regulate the
expansion of PPP projects, strictly implement investment business control requirements, further clarify the
legal compliance requirements of PPP projects, carry out project feasibility research, prevent decision-
making risks with scientific advance planning and demonstration, and take a “zero tolerance” approach
in terms of risks in compliance defects of projects, with a view to effectively improving the quality of new
investment projects. At the same time, the Company will strengthen the process management and control
of investment projects, comprehensively improve project operation capabilities, and promptly give warning
on and mitigate risks that may arise during the implementation of investment projects.

Various financial risks faced by the Company in its operating activities include market risks (mainly
exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks), credit risk and liquidity risk. The overall risk
management plan of the Company will focus on the unpredictability of the financial market, and reducing
the potential adverse impact on the financial performance. For details, please refer to the relevant
information as set out in Note VIII “Risks relating to financial instruments” to the financial statements under
Section XI “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

For details of the Company’s goodwill and its impairment, please refer to the relevant information as set out
in Note V. 20 “Goodwill” to the financial statements under Section XI “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

(V) Miscellaneous
O Applicable N/A

Explanation on the Circumstances and Reasons for not Disclosing in Accordance with
the Standards due to Non-applicability of the Standards or Special Reasons such as State
Secrets and Trade Secrets

O Applicable N/A
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SECTION V

IMPORTANT MATTERS

IMPORTANT MATTERS

. Profit Distribution Plan of Ordinary Shares and Reserve Capitalization Plan

(1)

(I

Formulation, execution, or adjustment of cash dividend policy
\ Applicable O N/A

According to the Articles of Association: The Company may distribute dividends in cash, stock, a combination of
both and other means permitted by laws and regulations; the Company shall preferentially make profit distribution
in the form of cash dividends. In the event that the Company is operating well and the Board of Directors believes
that the Company’s share price does not match the size of its share capital, and the distribution of dividends in
stock is in the interests of shareholders of the Company as a whole, the Company may propose stock dividend and
other distribution proposals when the conditions for distribution in the form of cash dividends are satisfied. Except
for special circumstances as determined by the Board of Directors of the Company, the Company shall distribute
dividends in cash when the Company records a profit in current year and the accumulated undistributed profits are
positive. The profits distributed in cash each year shall, in principle, be not less than 15% of the distributable profits
of that year.

On May 25, 2020, the Proposal on 2019 Profit Distribution Plan of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited was considered and approved at the 2019 annual general meeting of the Company
through a combination of on-site open ballot and internet voting; on June 17, 2020, the Company released the
Announcement on Implementing Rights and Interests Distribution for 2019 of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited; on June 24, 2020, the Company distributed cash dividends to all shareholders, marking the
full implementation of the profit distribution plan in 2019. The Company distributed profits in strict compliance with
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association and the resolutions passed at the general meetings.

Plans or proposals for profit distribution or reserve capitalization of the Company in the last
three years (including the Reporting Period)

Unit: '000 Currency: RMB
Net profit
attributable Percentage
to ordinary of the net profit
Amount of Niufiifaer ah shareholders attributable
Yearol o es  deviowed | STEeS  Amountof SRS e
distribution pe;;r?afgs)res per (1%)@2;:1@3 per 10 shares  (tax inclusive) cogsggg?;f ¢ coon];;g?l{/lsitneghe
(tax inclusive) (B33 statements consolidated
for the year financial
of dividend statements (%)
distribution
D020 e, 0 2147 0 . 9,006,272 44944250 2004
2009 0 ... 185 . 0 . 7763538 41881399 1853
2018 0 1.68 0 7,052,853 38,241,324 18.44

The Company realized a net profit of RMB23.8 billion during the Reporting Period. After allocating 10% of the net
profit for statutory reserve in an amount of RMB2.4 billion, and setting aside RMB400 million for paying interest
on perpetual bonds, and adding RMB11.9 billion carried forward to 2020 after the profit distribution for 2019 and
other comprehensive income carried to undistributed profit of RMB400 million, the profit available for distribution to
ordinary shareholders for 2020 was RMB33.3 billion, and the capital surplus of the Company was RMB29.0 billion.

In accordance with relevant provisions of the Company Law and the Articles of Association, the profit distribution
plan for 2020 has been formulated on the basis of the Profit Distribution Plan of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited for 2020 as considered and approved at the 53rd meeting of the second session
of the Board of Directors of the Company by taking into account shareholder returns, the Company’s capital
demand for business development and other factors.

The profit distribution will be made in the form of cash dividends. A total of RMB9.0 billion of cash dividend will be
distributed to all ordinary shareholders at RMB2.147 (tax inclusive) per 10 shares based on the 41,948,167,844
shares of the Company as of the date of disclosure. In case of any change in the total share capital of the
Company prior to the record date of shareholders for profit distribution, the Company proposes to maintain the
distribution ratio per share unchanged, and to adjust the total distribution amount accordingly. An announcement
containing details of the adjustments will be made separately.

The remaining RMB24.3 billion after the distribution of cash dividends will be carried forward to the undistributed
profits.

The independent directors of the Company have expressed opinions on this plan, which is still subject to
the approval by the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company. A combination of on-site open ballot and
internet voting will be adopted at the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company so as to ensure that minority
shareholders have adequate opportunities to express their opinions and appeals, thereby fully safeguarding their
legal interests.
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Explanation on the cash dividend to be distributed by the Company for the current year is as follows:

1.

Industry where the Company operates and its characteristics

The construction industry in which the Company is involved is a fully competitive industry, featured by
fierce market competition and generally low gross profit margin. Fields such as new infrastructure and new
energy will become the new direction of the industry’s development. From the perspective of the “14th
Five-Year Plan”, a series of major national strategies will form new growth opportunities in the construction
sector and bring new development impetus to the construction industry.

Development stage of the Company and its own business model

In 2020, the Company hit a new record high in terms of the value of new contracts and revenue, bringing
with it stronger global competitiveness and brand influence. Under the new development pattern featuring
domestic big cycle and supplemented by domestic and international twin cycles, the Company actively
incorporated itself into the major national strategies and made concrete efforts to carry out the BRI, and
seized the opportunities in overseas markets with a view to building a world leading enterprise group with
global competitiveness.

Profitability and capital needs of the Company

Since the listing of CSCEC, the return on net assets has remained at a high level of approximately
15%, delivering stable investment returns to its shareholders. As the Company increases its reform and
innovation efforts, it needs to increase its investment in innovative businesses and new technologies. In
addition, in order to meet the needs of daily operation and the smooth progress of projects, the Company
needs to maintain a certain amount of retained earnings.

Why the Company keeps part of the undistributed profit

Currently, the downward pressure on the world economy is increasing, and the international situations
are changing rapidly. To enhance its resilience against risks, objectively, the Company needs to keep a
certain amount of retained earnings. The retained earnings accumulated by the Company over the years
are attributable to all investors. With quicker transformation from high-speed development to high-quality
development, the profitability of the Company will be improved gradually, thus enabling the Company to
offer better returns to investors in the future.

Purpose of the undistributed profit retained by the Company and its estimated income

The retained undistributed profit will be used to support the Company in capturing strategic development
opportunities and to deepen the Company’s strategy, increase structural adjustment and transformation
and upgrading, and to seek new profit growth points. CSCEC has maintained a stable cash dividend policy
for years, demonstrating the ability of CSCEC to maintain stable development and sustained dividend
distribution. In 2021, the Company will strive to improve its value-creation capacity under the development
goals of “one creation and five aspects of strength” and reward shareholders with excellent operating
results.

This profit distribution plan complies with the provisions of relevant laws, regulations and the Articles of
Association with compliant and transparent profit distribution procedures. CSCEC has maintained a stable
cash dividend policy with an increase in the cash dividend to be distributed per share for the current year
over last year. Upon completion of dividend distribution for the current year, the accumulative dividends
distributed in the last three years will amount to RMB23.8 billion, representing 57.15% of the annual
average distributable profit realized in the last three years. This demonstrates the ability of CSCEC to
maintain stable development and sustained dividend distribution, as well as its determination to reward
shareholders with excellent operating results.

Inclusion of shares repurchased by way of cash into cash dividend
O Applicable N/A

In addition to the above dividend plan, the Company has repurchased a total of 912,036,000 shares through
centralized bidding trading in 2020, and the total repurchase amount paid was RMB4,792,282,012.54 (excluding
transaction fees such as stamp duty and transaction commissions), accounting for approximately 10.66% of net
profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company as presented in the consolidated financial statements of
the Company.

If the Company records a profit during the Reporting Period and the profit distributable to the
ordinary shareholders of the parent is positive but there is no proposal for distribution in the
form of cash dividends, the Company shall disclose in detail the reasons therefor, and the
purpose and usage plan of the undistributed profits

O Applicable N/A
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(I Where the Company has profit forecasts on assets or projects, and the Reporting Period is
within the term of profit forecasts, the Company has to state whether such profit forecasts on
assets or projects are fulfilled and the reasons therefor

O Fulfilled O Not Fulfilled  +/ N/A

(1 Completion of performance commitment and its effect on goodwill impairment test

O Applicable +/ N/A
Occupation of Funds and Progress of Repayment during the Reporting Period
O Applicable +/ N/A
Company’s Explanation on the “Audit Report with Modified Opinion” of the Accounting Firm
O Applicable +/ N/A

The Company’s Analysis of and Explanation on the Causes and Impacts of Changes in
Accounting Policies and Estimates or Corrections of Material Accounting Errors

()] The Company’s analysis of and explanation on the causes and impacts of changes in
accounting policies and estimates

\ Applicable O N/A

According to the Question and Answer on the implementation of enterprise accounting standards issued by the
Ministry of Finance in December 2020, the Company reclassified the impairment loss of contract assets originally
included in the “credit impairment losses” in the income statement to “asset impairment losses”. The change in
accounting policy has no impact on the net profit and the equity both on the consolidated and the company levels.

According to Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 13, from January 1, 2020, the following parties
that were not regarded as related parties previously are regarded as related parties: Joint ventures and their
subsidiaries or associates and their subsidiaries of other member units of the Company’s corporate group (including
parent companies and subsidiaries), subsidiaries of joint ventures and subsidiaries of associates. This accounting
policy change affected the judgment of related parties and the disclosure of related party transactions.

For the impact of changes in relevant accounting policies on the Company’s financial statements, please refer
to the relevant content of Note Ill. 35 “Changes in accounting policies and estimates” to the financial statements
under Section Xl “Financial Reports” hereof.

() The Company’s analysis of and explanation on the reasons and impacts of the corrections of
major accounting errors

O Applicable v N/A

(1 Communications with the former accounting firm

O Applicable N/A

(IV)  Other explanation
O Applicable N/A
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VL.

VIL.

Appointment and Dismissal of the Accounting Firm
Unit: ’0,000 Currency: RMB

Currently appointed

Name of domestic accounting firm Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership)

Remuneration of domestic accounting firm 4,010

Audit service years of domestic accounting firm 1
Name Remuneration

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General

Accounting firm for internal control audit Partnership) 315
Financial adviser / /
Sponsor / /

Explanation on appointment and dismissal of accounting firm
\ Applicable O N/A

According to the relevant regulations and requirements of SASAC, the audit term of the Company’s original auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP (hereinafter referred to as “PricewaterhouseCoopers”) has expired.
The Company has fully communicated with PricewaterhouseCoopers on the matter of changing the auditor, and
PricewaterhouseCoopers has no objection to the matter of the Company’s change of accounting firm. During its practice,
PricewaterhouseCoopers adhered to the principle of independent auditing, provided the Company with professional and
rigorous audit services, and earnestly fulfilled its duties as a financial reporting audit agency. The Board of Directors of the
Company hereby expresses its sincere gratitude to PricewaterhouseCoopers for its work.

On May 25, 2020, as considered and approved at the 2019 annual general meeting of the Company, Ernst & Young
Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership) was appointed as the auditor for the financial report and internal control of
the Company for 2020, for a term of one year. For details, please refer to the Announcement on Change of Auditor for
Financial Reports published by the Company on February 4, 2020, the Announcement on Change of Auditor for Internal
Control published on April 25, 2020, the Information on 2019 Annual General Meeting published on May 15, 2020, and the
Announcement on Resolutions of 2019 Annual General Meeting published on May 26, 2020.

Explanation on change of accounting firm during the audit period

O Applicable N/A

Risks of Suspension of Listing

{)) Causes of suspension of listing

O Applicable N/A

(I Measures to be taken by the Company

O Applicable / N/A
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VIIl. Circumstances of and Reasons for Delisting
O Applicable v N/A
IX. Matters Related to Insolvency Reorganization
O Applicable  / N/A
X. Matters Related to Significant Litigation and Arbitration

O There were significant litigations and arbitrations during the year

\ There was no significant litigation or arbitration during the year

0] Litigations and arbitrations disclosed in provisional announcements without subsequent
progress

O Applicable N/A

(I)  Litigations and arbitrations not disclosed in provisional announcements or with subsequent
progress

O Applicable N/A

(Il Other explanation
O Applicable +/ N/A

XI.  Penalty and Rectification for Listed Companies and Their Directors, Supervisors, Senior
Management, Controlling Shareholders, De Facto Controller and Acquirers

O Applicable N/A

Xll. Explanation on the Integrity of the Company and Its Controlling Shareholder and De Facto
Controller during the Reporting Period

O Applicable N/A

XIll. Equity Incentive Scheme, Employee Stock Ownership Plan or Other Employee Incentive
Measures of the Company and Their Implications

{)) Relevant incentive matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress
or changes in subsequent implementation

\ Applicable O N/A

Summary of matters Index for details

Announcement on the Second
The number of shares subject to the second tranche of unlocking in 2019 in ~ Tranche of Unlocking in 2019 in
respect of phase Il restricted A share incentive scheme was 112,527,800, respect of Phase Il Restricted A Share
which were listed for circulation on February 14, 2020. Incentive Scheme and Listing of
Shares published on February 5, 2020

It was considered and approved by the Company to repurchase restricted

shares that were subject to restriction on unlocking from 106 participants

involved in the phases Il and Ill restricted A share incentive scheme. A total

of 10,604,200 restricted shares were repurchased, of which, the number

of restricted A shares under phase Il and phase Il were 7,214,200 shares Announcement on Decrease in
(5,153,000 shares before the reserve capitalization of the Company) and  Registered Capital of the Company
3,390,000 shares, respectively. The repurchase of the phase Il restricted A after Repurchase and Cancellation
shares were based on the adjusted grant price of RMB3.47571 per share  of Part of Phases Il and Ill Restricted
(RMB4.866 per share before the reserve capitalization of the Company), Shares and Notice to Creditors
and the repurchase of the phase Ill restricted A shares were based on the  published on February 20, 2020

price of RMB3.468 per share. The total amount of funds for the repurchase

was RMB36,831,018. After all the repurchased shares are cancelled, the

registered capital of the Company will be reduced by RMB10,604,200 to

RMB41,965,025,511.
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Summary of matters

The Company’s repurchase and cancellation of restricted shares involved
a total of 108 participants of the Company’s phases |, Il and Il restricted
A share incentive scheme (including simultaneous repurchase from 7
participants of the phase Il restricted A shares and phase Il restricted
A shares). A total of 10,558,200 restricted shares were proposed to be
repurchased and cancelled (210,000, 7,438,200 and 2,910,000 restricted
shares under phases |, Il and Ill respectively). After the completion of the
repurchase and cancellation, a total of 2,094,667 restricted shares were
to be repurchased by the Company, including 788,667 phase | restricted
shares, 826,000 phase |l restricted shares and 480,000 phase Il restricted
shares to be repurchased, and 711,468,667 restricted shares under the
share incentive schemes were remained. After the completion of the
repurchase and cancellation, the registered capital and share capital of
the Company will be reduced by RMB10,558,200 (10,558,200 shares) to
RMB41,965,071,511 (41,965,071,511 shares).

On September 17, 2020, the Proposal on Phase IV Restricted A Share
Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited (Draft) and Summary was considered and approved at the 45th
meeting of the second session of the Board of Directors of CSCEC. The
Company plans to implement the phase IV restricted share scheme. The
number of participants who will be granted shares under this scheme will not
exceed 2,800, mainly key employees who have significant influence on the
realization of the Company’s strategic goals.

Obtained the “Approval of Implementation of the Phase IV Restricted
A Share Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited” (Guo Zi Kao Fen (2020) No. 527) issued by the SASAC
of the State Council, which permitted in principle the phase IV restricted A
share incentive scheme of the Company.

On October 23, 2020, the Proposal on the Repurchase of Shares of
the Company through Centralized Bidding Trading was considered and
approved at the 46th meeting of the second session of the Board of
Directors of CSCEC. All of the shares repurchased will be used to implement
the Company’s restricted share scheme. The Company uses its own funds
or self-raised funds to repurchase its shares through centralized bidding
for subsequent implementation of the Company’s restricted share scheme.
The number of the shares of the Company to be repurchased is not less
than 500 million shares and not more than 1 billion shares, accounting for
approximately 1.19%-2.38% of its total share capital. The total amount of
repurchase funds is capped at RMB7.660 billion, and the repurchase price
does not exceed RMB7.66 per share. The repurchase period is no longer
than 12 months from the date when the Company’s Board of Directors
considered and approved the A share repurchase proposal, that is, from
October 23, 2020 to October 22, 2021.

The Proposal on the Repurchase of Shares of the Company through
Centralized Bidding Trading was considered and approved at the 46th
meeting of the second session of the Board of Directors and the 28th
meeting of the second session of the Board of Supervisors held by the
Company on October 23, 2020. For the details of this repurchase, please
refer to the Repurchase Report on the Repurchase of Shares of the
Company through Centralized Bidding Trading (Announcement No.: Lin
2020-077) published by the Company on October 24, 2020.

In accordance with relevant requirements, such as the Administrative
Measures for the Repurchase of Public Shares by Listed Companies (Trial),
the Supplementary Provisions on Repurchasing Shares through Centralized
Bidding Trading by Listed Companies and the Rules for the Implementation
of Share Repurchases by Listed Companies on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, the names, number of shares, and proportions of the top ten
shareholders and the top ten shareholders not subject to sales restrictions
registered on the trading day (that is, October 23, 2020) before the Board
of Directors announced the resolution to repurchase shares shall be
announced.

On October 30, 2020, the Company repurchased 99,990,045 shares as the
first tranche through centralized bidding trading. The repurchased shares
accounted for about 0.24% of the Company’s total share capital. The highest
purchase price was RMB5.18 per share, and the lowest price was RMB5.11
per share. The total amount paid was RMB513,071,799.39 (excluding
transaction fees such as stamp duty and transaction commissions).

Index for details

Announcement on Implementation of
Repurchase and Cancellation of Part
of Restricted Shares under the Equity
Incentive Scheme published on April
13, 2020

Announcement on Resolutions of the
45th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Directors, The Phase IV
Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme
(Draft), and the Announcement on
Summary of the Phase IV Restricted A
Share Incentive Scheme (Draft), which
were published on September 18,
2020

Announcement on Approval of the
Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive
Scheme by the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council
published on October 14, 2020

Repurchase Report on the Repurchase
of Shares of the Company through
Centralized Bidding Trading published
on October 24, 2020

Announcement on the Shareholding
of the Top Ten Shareholders and Top
Ten Shareholders Not Subject to Sales
Restrictions published on October 29,
2020

Announcement on the Repurchase
of First Tranche of Shares through
Centralized Bidding Trading published
on October 31, 2020
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Summary of matters

As of October 31, 2020, a total of 99,990,045 shares had been repurchased
by the Company through centralized bidding trading, accounting for
approximately 0.24% of the Company’s total share capital. The highest
purchase price was RMB5.18 per share, and the lowest price was RMB5.11
per share. The total amount paid was RMB513,071,799.39 (excluding
transaction fees such as stamp duty and transaction commissions).

As of November 6, 2020, a total of 503,000,072 shares had been
repurchased by the Company through centralized bidding trading, accounting
for approximately 1.20% of the Company’s total share capital, an increase of
0.96% compared with the previous disclosure, and the highest purchase was
RMBS5.39 per share, the lowest price was RMB5.09 per share, and the total
amount paid was RMB2,608,510,391.36 (excluding transaction fees such as
stamp duty and transaction commissions).

On November 20, 2020, the Proposal on the List of Participants and
Information on the Grant with Respect to the Phase IV Restricted A Share
Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited was considered and approved at the 49th meeting of the second
session of the Board of Directors of CSCEC. It was agreed to submit the
proposal to the Company’s 2020 third extraordinary general meeting for
consideration and approval.

On November 20, 2020, the Proposal on the Repurchase of Part of
Participants’ Shares under the Phase Il and Il Restricted A Share Incentive
Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited was
considered and approved at the 49th meeting of the second session of the
Board of Directors and the 31st meeting of the second session of the Board
of Supervisors of CSCEC. It was agreed to repurchase 3,787,000 restricted
shares from 17 participants at the price of RMB3.47571 per share (phase II)
and RMB3.468 per share (phase lll) in accordance with the provisions of the
phases Il and Ill restricted A share incentive scheme. The repurchase was
funded by the Company’s own funds, with a total amount of RMB13,139,850.

After review, the Board of Supervisors of the Company was of the view
that the selection of participants of the incentive scheme of the Company
complied with the basis and scope as stipulated in the Phase IV Restricted
A Share Incentive Scheme (Draft); and complied with the Administrative
Measures on Share Incentive Schemes of Listed Companies, Guidelines for
the Implementation of Share Incentive Schemes for Listed Companies under
the Control of Central Enterprises and other laws and regulations as well as
the conditions for participants specified in the Phase IV Restricted A Share
Incentive Scheme (Draft), and it was legal and valid for the participants to
join the share incentive scheme.

As of November 30, 2020, a total of 818,000,031 shares had been
repurchased by the Company through centralized bidding trading,
accounting for approximately 1.95% of the Company’s total share capital
(41,965,071,511 shares). The highest purchase price was RMB5.53 per
share, the lowest price was RMB5.09 per share, and the total amount paid
was RMB4,294,331,721.11 (excluding transaction fees such as stamp duty
and transaction commissions).

As of December 2, 2020, a total of 860,000,015 shares had been
repurchased by the Company through centralized bidding trading,
accounting for approximately 2.05% of the Company’s total share capital
(41,965,071,511 shares), an increase of 0.85% compared with the
previous disclosure. The highest purchase price was RMB5.53 per share,
the lowest price was RMB5.09 per share, and the total amount paid was
RMB4,524,560,341.56 (excluding transaction fees such as stamp duty and
transaction commissions).

In accordance with the relevant provisions of the Administrative Measures on
the Share Inventive Schemes of Listing Companies, the Company conducted
self-examination on the trading of shares of the Company by persons with
inside information related to the incentive schemes. After verification, within
six months before the announcement of the draft incentive scheme, we did
not identify any case of trading by insiders using inside information related to
the incentive scheme to buy or sell the shares of the Company.

IMPORTANT MATTERS

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Index for details

Announcement on the Progress
of Repurchase of Shares through
Centralized Bidding Trading published
on November 4, 2020

Announcement on Repurchased
Shares of up to 1% in Aggregate and
Progress of Share Repurchase by
Centralized Bidding Trading published
on November 7, 2020

Announcement on Resolutions of the
49th Meeting of the Second Session
of the Board of Directors published on
November 21, 2020

Announcement on the Repurchase
of Part of Participants’ Shares under
the Phase Il and Il Restricted A
Share Incentive Scheme published on
November 21, 2020

Announcement on the Resolutions
of the 32nd Meeting of the Second
Session of the Board of Supervisors,
Explanation on the Result of Review
by the Board of Supervisors and the
Publication of the List of Participants
of the Company’s Phase IV Restricted
A Shares published on December 2,
2020

Announcement on the Progress
of Repurchase of Shares through
Centralized Bidding Trading published
on December 3, 2020

Announcement on Repurchased
Shares of up to 2% in Aggregate of
Share Repurchase by Centralized
Bidding Trading published on
December 3, 2020

Self-examination Report on the
Trading of Shares of the Company
by Persons with Inside Information
Related to Phase IV Restricted A
Share Incentive Scheme published on
December 8, 2020
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Summary of matters

It was considered and approved by the Company to repurchase restricted
shares that were subject to restriction on unlocking from 17 participants
involved in the phases Il and Il restricted A share incentive scheme. A total
of 3,787,000 restricted shares were repurchased, of which, the number
of restricted A shares under phase Il and phase Il were 847,000 shares
(605,000 shares before ex-rights) and 2,940,000 shares, respectively. The
repurchase of the phase Il restricted A shares were based on the adjusted
grant price of RMB3.47571 per share (RMB4.866 per share before the
reserve capitalization of the Company), and the repurchase of the phase IlI
restricted A shares were based on the price of RMB3.468 per share. The
total amount of funds for the repurchase was RMB13,139,850. After all the
repurchased shares are cancelled, the registered capital of the Company will
be reduced by RMB3,787,000 to RMB41,961,284,511.

On December 7, 2020, the Proposal on the Phase IV Restricted A Share
Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited (Draft) and Summary was considered and approved at the 2020
Third Extraordinary General Meeting of CSCEC.

The Company’s share repurchase in respect of phase IV restricted A share
incentive scheme commenced on October 30, 2020 and ended on December
14, 2020. A total of 912,036,000 shares of the Company was repurchased,
accounting for approximately 2.17% of the Company’s total share capital.
The total amount paid was RMB4,792,282,012.54 (excluding transaction
fees such as stamp duty and transaction commissions).

On December 23, 2020, the Proposal on Granting under Phase IV Restricted
A Share Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited was considered and approved at the 50th meeting of the
second session of the Board of Directors and the 33rd meeting of the second
session of the Board of Supervisors of CSCEC. It was agreed that the grant
date of the phase IV restricted A share incentive scheme was December
28, 2020, and 2,765 participants will be granted 912.036 million restricted A
shares at the grant price of RMB3.06 per share.

On December 29, 2020, the Proposal on the Third Tranche of Unlocking in
2020 of the Phase Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited was considered and approved
at the 51st meeting of the second session of the Board of Directors of
CSCEC. It was agreed to arrange the unlocking and listing of the third
tranche of shares in 2020 for 1,415 participants of the phase Il restricted
A share incentive scheme, with a total of 107.94 million restricted shares
unlocked. The Proposal on the First Tranche of Unlocking in 2020 of the
Phase Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited was considered and approved. It was
agreed to arrange the unlocking and listing of the first tranche of shares
in 2020 for 2,041 participants of the phase Il restricted A share incentive
scheme, with a total of 195.076 million restricted shares unlocked.

On December 29, 2020, the Proposal on Repurchase of Part of Participants’
Shares under the Phase Il and Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited was considered
and approved at the 51st meeting of the second session of the Board
of Directors and the 34th meeting of the second session of the Board of
Supervisors of CSCEC. It was agreed to repurchase 11,511,000 from 156
participants at the price of RMB3.47571 per share and RMB3.468 per share
for phase Il and phase Il respectively, in accordance with the requirements
of the phases Il and Ill restricted A share incentive scheme. The
repurchase was funded by the Company’s own funds, with a total amount of
RMB39,951,522.

912.036 million restricted shares granted by the Company to participants
of the phase IV restricted A share incentive scheme will be changed from
circulating shares not subject to trading moratorium to circulating shares
subject to trading moratorium on January 13, 2021.

On January 15, 2021, the Proposal on Repurchase of Part of Participants’
Shares under the Phase Il and Ill Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited was considered
and approved at the 2021 First Extraordinary General Meeting of CSCEC.

Index for details

Announcement on Decrease in
Registered Capital of the Company
after Repurchase and Cancellation
of Part of Phases Il and Ill Restricted
Shares and Notice to Creditors
published on December 8, 2020

Announcement on the Resolutions of
the 2020 Third Extraordinary General
Meeting published on December 8,
2020

Announcement on the Implementation
Results of Share Repurchase and
Changes in Shares published on
December 15, 2020

Announcement on Granting under
Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive
Scheme published on December 24,
2020

Announcement on Resolutions of the
51st Meeting of the Second Session
of the Board of Directors published on
December 30, 2020

Announcement on the Repurchase
of Part of Participants’ Shares under
the Phase Il and Ill Restricted A
Share Incentive Scheme published on
December 30, 2020

Announcement on the Progress of
Granting under Phase IV Restricted A
Share Incentive Scheme published on
January 13, 2021

Announcement on the Resolutions of
the 2021 First Extraordinary General
Meeting published on January 16,
2021
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Summary of matters

It was considered and approved by the Company to repurchase restricted
shares that were subject to restriction on unlocking from 156 participants
involved in the phases Il and Il restricted A share incentive scheme. A total
of 11,511,000 restricted shares were repurchased, of which, the number
of restricted A shares under phase Il and phase Il were 4,067,000 shares
(2,905,000 shares before ex-rights) and 7,444,000 shares, respectively. The
repurchase of the phase Il restricted A shares were based on the adjusted
grant price of RMB3.47571 per share (RMB4.866 per share before the
reserve capitalization of the Company), and the repurchase of the phase IlI
restricted A shares were based on the price of RMB3.468 per share. The
total amount of funds for the repurchase was RMB39,951,522. After all the
repurchased shares are cancelled, the registered capital of the Company will
be reduced by RMB11,511,000.

195,076,000 shares were unlocked as the first tranche in 2020 under the
phase Il restricted A share scheme, and the date of listing and trading was
January 21, 2021.

As of January 14, 2021, a total of 912,036,000 phase IV restricted A shares
have been granted.

107,940,000 shares were unlocked as the third tranche in 2020 under the
phase Il restricted A share scheme, and the date of listing and trading was
February 18, 2021.

The Company’s repurchase and cancellation of restricted shares involved
a total of 185 participants of the Company’s phases |, Il and Il restricted
A share incentive scheme (including simultaneous repurchase from 42
participants of the phase Il restricted A shares and phase Il restricted
A shares). A total of 16,903,667 restricted shares were proposed to be
repurchased and cancelled (578,667, 5,621,000 and 10,704,000 restricted
shares under phases |, Il and Ill respectively). After the completion of the
repurchase and cancellation, a total of 489,000 restricted shares were to be
repurchased by the Company, and 1,303,585,000 restricted shares under
the share incentive schemes were remained. After the completion of the
repurchase and cancellation, the registered capital and share capital of
the Company will be reduced by RMB16,903,667 (16,903,667 shares) to
RMB41,948,167,844 (41,948,167,844 shares).

IMPORTANT MATTERS
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Index for details

Announcement on Decrease in
Registered Capital of the Company
after Repurchase and Cancellation
of Part of Phases Il and Ill Restricted
Shares and Notice to Creditors
published on January 16, 2021

Announcement on the First Tranche
of Unlocking in 2020 in respect of
Phase Il Restricted A Share Incentive
Scheme and Listing of Shares
published on January 16, 2021

Announcement on the Results of
Grant under Phase IV Restricted A
Share Incentive Scheme published on
January 19, 2021

Announcement on the Third Tranche
of Unlocking in 2020 in respect of
Phase Il Restricted A Share Incentive
Scheme published on February 6,
2021

Announcement on Implementation of
Repurchase and Cancellation of Part
of Restricted Shares under the Equity
Incentive Scheme published on April 7,
2021

Incentive not disclosed in provisional announcements or with subsequent progress

Information of equity incentives
O Applicable v N/A
Other explanation

\ Applicable O N/A

For implications of the restricted shares of the Company on its financial position and operating results, please
refer to the related information of Note XI “Shares-based payment” to the financial statements under Section XI

“FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

Information of employee stock ownership plan
O Applicable +/ N/A

Other incentives

O Applicable N/A
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XIV. Material Related Party Transactions

()

Related party transactions relating to ordinary course of business

1

Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in

subsequent implementation

\ Applicable O N/A

Summary of matter

On April 24, 2020 and May 25, 2020, the Proposal in respect of Daily Related
Party Transaction of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
for 2020 was considered and approved at the 37th meeting of the second
session of the Board of Directors, the 19th meeting of the second session of the
Board of Supervisors and 2019 annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company and China State Construction signed the Comprehensive
Services Framework Agreement Between China State Construction Engineering
Corporation and China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited in
respect of the related party transactions arising from the sales, procurement,
commercial factoring services, financial leasing services, property leasing and
other business between the Company, and China State Construction and its
subsidiaries. Specifically, the sales between the Company and China State
Construction and its subsidiaries shall not exceed RMB2.5 billion; procurement
shall not exceed RMB3.0 billion; the maximum balance of commercial factoring
services (excluding those from CSC Finance) shall not exceed RMBO.5 billion,
and factoring interest and service fee shall not exceed RMB0.04 billion; the
maximum balance of financial leasing services (excluding those from CSC
Finance) shall not exceed RMBO0.3 billion, and leasing interest and service fee
shall not exceed RMB0.025 billion; property leasing shall not exceed RMBO0.2
billion; other daily related party transactions shall not exceed RMBO0.6 billion
(RMBO0.2 billion for interest on capital borrowings, RMBO0.1 billion for signing
trademark license agreement, and RMBO0.3 billion for others).

CSC Finance, a subsidiary of the Company, and China State Construction
signed the Financial Services Framework Agreement Between China State
Construction Engineering Corporation and China State Construction Finance
Co., Ltd. in respect of the related party transactions arising from the deposits,
loans, financial and financing consultancy and other relevant financial services
provided to China State Construction and its subsidiaries from CSC Finance.
During the term of the agreement, the daily balance cap of the deposits (inclusive
of accrued interests thereon) to be placed by China State Construction and its
subsidiaries with CSC Finance shall not exceed RMB20.0 billion, with the daily
balance of loans (inclusive of accrued interests thereon) to be obtained not
exceeding the daily balance cap of the deposits (inclusive of accrued interests
thereon); the fees to be charged by CSC Finance in respect of the other financial
services provided by it to China State Construction and its subsidiaries shall not
exceed RMBO.3 billion.

As of December 31, 2020, the sales business involved between the Company
and China State Construction and its subsidiaries was RMB1.06 billion; the
procurement business was RMB2.88 billion; the maximum balance of the
commercial factoring business (excluding those from CSC Finance) was
RMB8.19 million, the factoring interest and service fees were RMB230,000; no
financial leasing service business was conducted; the property lease was RMB40
million; other daily related party transactions were RMB90 million (RMB70 million
for interest on capital borrowings, RMBO0.1 million for signing trademark license
agreement, and RMBO0.2 billion for others). The amount of actual daily related
party transaction of the Company was within the budget.

In 2020, the daily balance cap of the deposits (inclusive of accrued interests
thereon) of China State Construction and its subsidiaries in CSC Finance was
RMB?7.9 billion; the maximum daily loan balance (inclusive of accrued interests
thereon) was RMB5.98 billion; the service fee charged by CSC Finance for
providing other financial services to China State Construction and its subsidiaries
was RMB484,200. Within the scope of the Financial Services Framework
Agreement and the supplementary agreement, the service fee has not reached
5% of audited net assets of the Company for the latest period.

Index for details

Announcement on Daily Related
Party Transactions under
the Comprehensive Services
Framework Agreement and the
Financial Services Framework
Agreement Signed with China
State Construction Engineering
Corporation published on April
25, 2020

Announcement on Resolutions
of 2019 Annual General
Meeting published on May 26,
2020
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Summary of matter

On December 29, 2020 and January 15, 2021, the Proposal on the Renewal
of the Comprehensive Services Framework Agreement between China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and China State Construction
Engineering Corporation was considered and approved at the 51st meeting of
the second session of the Board of Directors, the 34th meeting of the second
session of the Board of Supervisors and 2021 first extraordinary general meeting
of the Company.

The Company and China State Construction renewed the Comprehensive
Services Framework Agreement Between China State Construction Engineering
Corporation and China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited in
respect of the related party transactions arising from the sales, procurement,
commercial factoring services, financial leasing services, property leasing and
other business between the Company, and China State Construction and its
subsidiaries. During the term of the agreement, the sales between the Company
and China State Construction and its subsidiaries shall not exceed RMB3.1
billion; procurement shall not exceed RMB9.2 billion; the maximum balance of
commercial factoring services (excluding those from CSC Finance) shall not
exceed RMBO.5 billion, and factoring interest and service fee shall not exceed
RMB0.03 billion; the maximum balance of financial leasing services (excluding
those from CSC Finance) shall not exceed RMBO.2 billion, and financial leasing
interest and service fee shall not exceed RMBO0.01 billion; property leasing shall
not exceed RMBO.2 billion; other daily related party transactions shall not exceed
RMBO.6 billion (RMBO0.35 billion for interest on capital borrowings, RMB0.05
billion for signing trademark license agreement, and RMBO.2 billion for others).

On December 29, 2020 and January 15, 2021, the Proposal on the Renewal of
the Financial Services Framework Agreement between China State Construction
Finance Co., Ltd. and China State Construction Engineering Corporation was
considered and approved at the 51st meeting of the second session of the Board
of Directors, the 34th meeting of the second session of the Board of Supervisors
and 2021 first extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

CSC Finance, a subsidiary of the Company, and China State Construction
renewed the Financial Services Framework Agreement Between China State
Construction Engineering Corporation and China State Construction Finance
Co., Ltd. in respect of the related party transactions arising from the deposits,
loans, financial and financing consultancy and other relevant financial services
provided to China State Construction and its subsidiaries from CSC Finance.
During the term of the agreement, the daily balance cap of the deposits (inclusive
of accrued interests thereon) to be placed by China State Construction and its
subsidiaries with CSC Finance shall not exceed RMB20.0 billion, with the daily
balance of loans (inclusive of accrued interests thereon) to be obtained not
exceeding the daily balance cap of the deposits (inclusive of accrued interests
thereon); the fees to be charged by CSC Finance in respect of the other financial
services provided by it to China State Construction and its subsidiaries shall not
exceed RMBO.3 billion.

On December 29, 2020, the Proposal on the Provision of Entrusted Loan by
China State Construction Engineering Corporation to China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited was considered and approved at the 51st
meeting of the second session of the Board of Directors and the 34th meeting of
the second session of the Board of Supervisors of the Company.

On December 30, 2020, the Company signed the Entrusted Loan Contract with
China State Construction and CSC Finance, according to which, the Company
will be granted an entrusted loan in the amount of RMB1.5 billion by China State
Construction, with a term of 1 year and an interest rate of 2.99% per annum. The
principal borrowed under the contract was utilized for daily operations.

Matters disclosed in provisional announcements but with further progress or changes in

subsequent implementation
O Applicable +/ N/A

Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements

O Applicable N/A

IMPORTANT MATTERS

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Index for details

Announcement on the Renewal
of the Comprehensive Services
Framework Agreement between
the Company and China State
Construction Engineering
Corporation and Daily Related
Party Transaction published on
December 30, 2020

Announcement on the
Resolutions of the 2021 First
Extraordinary General Meeting
published on January 16, 2021

Announcement on the Renewal
of the Financial Services
Framework Agreement between
China State Construction
Finance Co., Ltd. and China
State Construction Engineering
Corporation and Daily Related
Party Transaction published on
December 30, 2020

Announcement on the
Resolutions of the 2021 First
Extraordinary General Meeting
published on January 16, 2021

Announcement on Provision
of Entrusted Loans to the
Company by its Controlling
Shareholder and Related Party
Transactions published on
December 30, 2020.

Related party transactions as a result of acquisition or disposal of assets or equity

1

Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in

subsequent implementation
O Applicable +/ N/A
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2. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements but with further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

O Applicable N/A

3. Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements

O Applicable N/A

4. Disclosure of performance achieved for the Reporting Period if with agreed-upon
performance targets

O Applicable +/ N/A
(1) Material related party transactions in joint external investment

1 Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

\ Applicable O N/A

Summary of matter Index for details

On November 9, 2020, the Proposal on the Capital Increase in China
State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. by the Company and its Controlling
Shareholders and Related Party Transactions was considered and
approved at the 48th meeting of the second session of the Board of
Directors and the 30th meeting of the second session of the Board of
Supervisors of the Company.

China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and China
State Construction Engineering Corporation contributed to the capital
increase in China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. in cash based on
the current proportion of their shareholding in China State Construction
Finance Co., Ltd., among which, the contribution of CSCEC and China
State Construction was RMB3.2 billion and RMBB800 million, respectively.
Upon the completion of the capital increase, the registered capital of
CSC Finance will increase to RMB10 billion.

Announcement on the
Capital Increase in
China State Construction
This matter constituted a related party transaction, but does not Finance Co., Ltd. by the
constitute a major asset reorganization as required by the Management ~Company and its Controlling
Measures for Major Asset Reorganization of Listed Companies. As of Shareholders and Related
this related party transaction, except for the related party transactions  Party Transactions published
with China State Construction that have been considered and approved on November 10, 2020.

at the Company’s general meeting, the related party transactions

between the Company and China State Construction within the past

12 months have not reached 5% of audited net assets of the Company

for the latest period, and the related party transaction does not need to

be submitted to the Company’s general meeting for consideration. The

related party transaction was conducted in accordance with fair and

reasonable commercial terms, and the pricing was fair and reasonable.

The transaction followed the principles of objectivity, equity and fairness,

and was in the interest of the Company. There was no matter that would

harm the interests of shareholders, especially minority shareholders.

This related party transaction will not have a negative impact on the

Company.

2. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements but with further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

O Applicable +/ N/A

3. Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements

O Applicable N/A
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(IV)  Creditor’s rights and debts with related parties

1 Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation
O Applicable +/ N/A

2. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements but with further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

O Applicable N/A

3. Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements

O Applicable N/A

(V)  Miscellaneous
\ Applicable O N/A

For related party transactions of the Company, please refer to the related information of Note X “Related party
relationships and transactions” to the financial statements under Section XI “FINANCIAL REPORT" hereof.

XV. Material Contracts and Fulfillment Thereof

0] Custody, contracting, and leasing

1 Custody
O Applicable N/A

2. Contracting
O Applicable N/A

3. Leasing

O Applicable N/A

(I Guarantees

\ Applicable O N/A
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(1) Cash asset management entrusted to others
1 Entrusted wealth management

(1). Overall wealth management
O Applicable  + N/A

2). Single entrusted wealth management
O Applicable +/ N/A

(3). Impairment provision for entrusted wealth management
O Applicable +/ N/A

2. Entrusted loans
(1). Overall entrusted loans

\ Applicable O N/A

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Type Source of funds ~ Amount incurred Ol ATl AT
balance not recovered
Ge”erﬁ‘ggz"usmd Self-owned funds -493,387 1,064,002 0
Others

\ Applicable O N/A

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the total external entrusted loan of the Company amounted
to approximately RMB1.064 billion, which was mainly incurred from the financing and investing
activities conducted by the Company to drive its general contracting projects. Please refer to the
related contents of Note V. (12) “Debt investments” to the financial statements under Section Xl
“FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

). Single entrusted loans
O Applicable +/ N/A
Others

O Applicable N/A

(3). Impairment provision for entrusted loans

O Applicable N/A

3. Other investments and wealth management and derivative investments

O Applicable +/ N/A



(V)

Other material contracts

\ Applicable O N/A

1

SECTION V

Major domestic business contracts during the Reporting Period

No.

Name of contract

General construction contract for Tianjin Metro Line 7 phase | project (X3
HHISE-HIREISAEAR)

Signing Party

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

IMPORTANT MATTERS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Unit: 100 million yuan  Currency: RMB
Value of contract ~ Type of contract

General construction contract for Shenzhen Rail Transit Line 13 phase Il
(Northern Extension) project (RIIFmHER B3 S48 (1) T
HIEAEARH)

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

General construction contract of Chengdu Rail Transit Line 27 phase |
project (RAMERE SE—HIRETSABNETRAR)

China Construction Third Engineering
Bureau Co., Lid.

General EPC contract in connection with design, procurement and
construction of the composite development project of Ningxiang High-
speed railway new city (TEEHIIAAT RASRITRMELSEE
EPCTESR)

China Construction First Group
Corporation Limited

Civil works project contract of Shandong section of the new Zhengzhou-
Jinan Rallway (SEAMNEFEHELIRR I TRAE AF)

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited, China Construction
Eighth Engineering Division Corp. Lid.

General contract in relation to urban renovation and redevelopment of
industrial land of Xindian Industrial Park ([EE87 W EISHEH TEAEH
TEABAR)

China Construction Fourth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

General construction contract of the terminal building of Urumai
International Airport reconstruction and extension project (& AT ERFL
Uy RIRMIEABISARAR)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division, China Construction Third
Engineering Division, CSCEC Xinjiang
Construction & Engineering (Group)

General contract for the composite project in relation to the design,
procurement and construction in rebuilding of dilapidated houses
in Longdejing Area, and urban renovation investment and project
management in Goutou Area, Chengxiang District, Putian City (B
EKREphRERREGE. Bk KinERRRRIREERRIHT
—HREIESR)

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation International Operations

General construction contract of the B1, B2, C, D1, D2, E groups of
resettlement housing and -C group of supporting facilties in Rongdong
Area (BFRXBL, B2, C. DL, D2, EARZERRESRMNAE-CAA
BIRERAR)

Second Construction Limited Company
of China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division

General EPC contract of National Convention and Exhibition Center phase
Il project (ER&BFLIE_HHEEPCRABTESR)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

General construction contract of urban renovation units in Laiwushan,
Longhua District, Shenzhen (A KB BLSHERETMERLE
KBIEAR)

China Construction Third Bureau First
Engineering Co., Ltd.

General contract of Xinhai City (phase 11 and 11 project (Lo&H (28, =
B NERAATREAR)

China Construction Fourth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

Engineering contract of general sub-contracting project of Hangzhou
Grand Convention and Exhibition Center (FMASERLMEEERER
BTEAR)

China Construction Fourth Engineering
Division Corp. Lid.

Engineering contract of Xining Beichuan Wanda Plaza (BT3¢l 5T %
Ti4H)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

China Construction Second Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

General construction contract of Dongfang Jindian Vitality New City project
(RASRENRIMERIEARAR)

China Construction Seventh Engineering
Division. Corp. Ltd.

General EPC contract in relation to the prospecting, design and
construction of Hengain International Business Center phase Il project (1%

SEREST _BRERENIRT B AREPCTRER)

China Construction Third Bureau First
Engineering Co., Ltd.

General engineering contract of the construction of CITIC Financial Center
in Shenzhen, Guangdong (I A AYIREERTLR TR ABTEER)

China Construction Third Engineering
Bureau Co., Lid.

1510 Infrastructlure
construction
12056 Infrastructlure
construction
%59 Infrastructlure
construction
% Infrastructvure
construction
701 Infrastruct.ure
construction
770 Housmg
construction
033 Infrastructlure
construction
5033 Infrastructlure
construction
5756 Housmg
construction
5303 Housmg
construction
51,60 Housmg
construction
5100 Housmg
construction
51.06 Housmg
construction
500 Housmg
construction
5086 Housmg
construction
5060 Housmg
construction
5038 Housmg
construction
5011 Housmg
construction
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Name of contract

General construction contract of Alibaba Xixi phase V project (IEEEF
ZLETERT AAEETAR)

Signing Party
China Construction Third Bureau First
Engineering Co., Ltd.

Unit: 100 million yuan  Currency: RMB
Value of contract ~ Type of contract

Jinan Main Campus project contract of Qilu Medical University (F& &R}
AEFEEREAEAR)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

General EPC contract of Made in China 2025 industrial park construction
project (phase ) (EIFE2025™ LERRIAE (ZHIE) EPCRABT
B&R)

First Construction Co., Ltd. of China
Construction Eighth Engineering Division

Linyi Xicheng Headquarters Economic Zone infrastructure construction
project (EPC) contract (I E S SRR ERRERAE (EPC) &F)

First Construction Co., Ltd. of China
Construction Eighth Engineering Division

General EPC contract in relation to the prospecting, design and
construction of Hengqin Science City (ohase Il) tender section Il project (1
SR (CH) R HZG RIS AREPCIRAR)

China Construction Fifth Engineering
Division Corp., Ltd.

General construction contract of Canton Fair Complex phase IV extension
project (T REBENHRET BRERIEABAR)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

General contract of project in Lanshui Area, Longgang District, Yitian (s3M
ERZAREREBIESR)

China Construction First Group
Corporation Limited

General contract in relation to design, procurement and construction of
Guangzhou Football Stadium project (/- NEIRAMB T RIS AR
AR

afm)

China Construction Fourth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

Civil construction contract for the Northeast Section of Zhengzhou Rail
Transit Ling 6 phase | project (BMHHERE6SE—HLERIELE
HI&R)

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

General EPC contract of Ningbo International Convention Center project
(FREFSNPLREEPCIREABAR)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

Jin Lang 22-1 project contract in Shenhe District, Shenyang (JEMASEX
£ 1B 4F)

China Construction First Group
Construction & Development Co., Lid.
E-REAREARERAR)

30

General EPC contract of the first section of Xi'an High-tech International
Conference Center phase I project in Shaanxi (ERREHEFAINH
DERE-REPCEARER)

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited, China State
Construction Silkroad Construction
Investment Group Co., Ltd, China
Construction Eighth Engineering Division
Corp. Ltd.

Underground space project contract of delivery and distribution ring area
of the Fuzhou Binhai New City CBD core area (@& &5 CBDEZLE S
RIS TEEAREAR)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

32

General engineering contract in relation to prospecting, design and
construction of Liujia Panlong Village Relocation Housing Construction
project (Shanty Area Renovation) in Guandu District (E &R s B&E
TZERERME (BREHE) B2, %t BISAQREIREAR

China Construction Third Engineering
Bureau Co, Lid.

Contract of No. 1-5 residential building, No. 6 Office building, No. 7
commercial building and No. 8-10 basement project of Pengrui Tian Yue
Square (BIRXHI 155 HEH, 6SHAE, TSHLE, 8-10S4T
ETE4M)

China Construction Fifth Engineering
Division Corp., Ltd.

General EPC contract for general high school construction project in
Yunnan Province (tender section one) (ZE& EESPERABEPCEA
1 (ff&—) EPCRABAR)

China Construction Infrastructure Co.,
Ltd.

General construction contract of Suning Evergrande Center of Nanjing
Olympic CBD (R E{KCBDATEATUMEL S A AT ZAR)

China Construction First Group
Corporation Limited

Construction contract of Chongging Jiangjin Wanda Plaza project (EfKiL
EREHIRRIAR)

China Construction Second Engineering
Division Corp., Ltd.

General contract of PPP project of composite development (new
urbanization pilot) of Qiaolin Old Town Area in Pukou District, Nanjing (%
RHRORFHENARE AT R REHAN ) PPPRETREAE
aF)

China Construction Seventh Engineering
Division. Corp. Ltd.

1808 Housmg
construction
705 Housmg
construction
180 Housmg
construction
150 Infrastructlure
construction
1459 Housmg
construction
30 Housmg
construction
5% Housmg
construction
B0 Infrastructlure
construction
1065 Infrastructlure
construction
0 Housmg
construction
M6 Housmg
construction
Hy Housmg
construction
108 Infrastructlure
construction
1085 Housmg
construction
1039 Housmg
construction
1028 Infrastructlure
construction
00 Housmg
construction
00 Housmg
construction
%979 Infrastructlure
construction



Name of contract
General construction contract of 5G new infrastructure communication
project in Zhengzhou, Henan (AIERMSCHERBELRAEHI AR
AF)

SECTION V

Signing Party
China Construction Seventh Bureau
Intallation Engineering Co., Ltd. (&t
RRETRERAR)

IMPORTANT MATTERS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Unit: 100 million yuan  Currency: RMB
Value of contract ~ Type of contract

General engineering contract of Lot G29C, Yanziji, Nanjing, Jiangsu
Province, China (FELIA & ERHRTACOCHARAETEASR)

China Construction Third Engineering
Bureau Co., Lid.

Nanjing Jinling Cultural and Creative Park (Jinling Town) project contract
(BREBAAZE (£BE) MEAR)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

Relocation and renovation project contract of Shenkeng Village, Liuyue,
Longgang, Shenzhen (I ARE AL AN EESIEAR)

China Construction First Group
Corporation Limited

General construction contract of DO09X-TAO1 tender of Nanjing Metro Line
9 phase | project (ERHHISE—EHTEHT S ABDO0IX-TAOLFHL
&)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

General construction contract of Pengrui Yijingfu project, Shenzhen,
Guangdong (ARSI RERAE L SRAETEAR)

China Construction Fifth Engineering
Division Corp., Ltd.

Construction and pipeline relocation contract of Changchun Rail Transit
Ling 2 (Easter extension) project (KEMHHIER B SEALLER
IRELTHAR)

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

Design and construction (EPC) contract of relocation and reconstruction
project of Shantou Central Hospital (major pandemic case treatment base)

(UxBROERAHERAE (EXRERAEN) BT (EPC)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

Xiamen New Sports Center project (construction) tender section | contract
(BT TIEROTR (8T) | FRAR)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Corp. Lid.

Project contract of K2 plot in Wuhan Central Cultural District (ERFERX
RKIBRTEAR)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

General construction contract of Chongging-Hunan Double-track Line
expressway project (sections under the second general contract) (8
SERABRLSABARE (E_EAEAFR))

China State Railway Investment
Construction Group Co., Ltd.

General contract of Kylin Artficial Intelligence Industrial Park C and D area
project (BEEA T &8¢ LEC. DRME SABER)

Third Construction Co., Ltd of China
Construction Eighth Engineering Division

General construction contract of the second tender section of the Xiong'an
Business Service Center project (ERAEMREROME iR S AE
AR

&)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

Shaoxing High-speed Railway North Station TOD complex project (Block A)
contract (AEHETODSAHIE (AKH) &)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

General construction contract in relation to the design and construction of
the Guangzhou International Campus phase II of South China University
of Technology (the first batch) (‘B TA% MERFRE B (5
#R) RHEIEAEAR)

China Construction Fifth Engineering
Division Corp., Ltd.

General construction (unit price) contract of overall renovation project
(phase Il of Baoan District Municipal People’s Hospital (XK A RERE
{APETHE (ZH) T SR EMT (%) &R)

China Construction Sixth Bureau South
China Co, Lid. (PEABERRIRERA

Contract of comprehensive improvement engineering project for non-
compliant water (Qianshan River Basin, Qijiang River Basin-Banfu Town,
Nanlang Basin) in Zhongshan, Guangdong (I RHLIBRRTKAGEE
HTEAE (Ui, GITi-feE, B 4F)

China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

5

General EPC contract for the second tender section of the Xi'an High-tech
Infemational Conference Center phase Il project in Shaanxi (REEZ B
ElFalm0 - BRE ZREPCE AR AR)

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited, China State
Construction Silkroad Construction
Investment Group Co., Ltd, China
Construction Eighth Engineering Division
Corp. Ltd.

3010 Infrastructlure
construction
3848 Housmg
construction
%23 Infrastructlure
construction
%800 Housmg
construction
5740 Infrastructlure
construction
7.0 Housmg
construction
%69 Infrastructlure
construction
%59 Housmg
construction
%25 Infrastructlure
construction
%602 Housmg
construction
%7 Infrastructlure
construction
3044 Housmg
construction
2401 Housmg
construction
3388 Infrastructlure
construction
38 Housmg
construction
3350 Housmg
construction
%25 Infrastructlure
construction
280 Housmg
construction



SECTION V

No. Name of contract Signing Party Value of contract ~ Type of contract
Engineering contract of warehouses of Buildings C1 and C2 in Lot 05-A- . ) o .
56 015 of Lingshang Life Commercial Center (¢1isE /&R RAD05-A-0154 gif;lir;;r?gr;ftruagon Fourh Engineerng 3250 col:ztur lsjlcnt?on
RS OBAETEAR) P
57 Civil works contract of New Laixi-Rongcheng Railway Station (¥i#3€/Z  China State Construction Engineering 3150 Infrastructure
FRGHRIETEAR) Corporation Limited ' construction
General contract in relation to design, procurement and construction (EPC)
of Guilin International Conyentlon and Exhibition penter pro;egt (phggg l) China Construction Eighth Engineering Housig
58 (except the second reception center and supporting commercial facilities Division Cor. Lt 31.34 constructon
and bus terminal) (EHEFABRLAE-BIE (RE_RADLRE P
Rl DREA WAL POTRERGER)
China Construction Eighth Bureau South Housig
i 1 MY /\
(Ehlna Co, Lid. (1) \B4EmRITAR A B ion
......................................................................................... L
General construction contract of the first tender section of the terminal China Constuction Eighth Engineering frastiucure
iort CEIESH RS- FANTEREs . .
60 %?a of Hohhot New Airport (HERLER LMK E— R RARS Division Corp, L N8 ucton
............... Generalcontractmrelat|ont09prolectsforroadengmeenngprolectS|n .
g o China Construction Communications Infrastructure
B g ER X 3 E o /\Iﬁ ) ) ; )
61 V!est Coajt_New Area in Qingdao (B SEBFMKERTRIMIEST EngneeringGroupCo, i NG cton
............. B ) e
General engineering contract of Kongshankuang Area of Jiangsu . I L
6 Gadering Expo Garden (Welai Garden) (LA EBEALK KE (57 g:l';;fggfg”&g"" Eighh Engineering 3087 'gg:sst‘rt‘ccﬁﬂf
............... oL
63 General engineering contract of Nanjing China Central Place Inernational  Third Construction Co., Ltd of China 2080 Housing
Center (AREREFROEAEIREAR) Construction Third Engineering Bureau ' construction
64 Construction engineering contract (Zhongdian Digital Health Industrial ~ CSCEC Strait Construction and 3067 Housing
Park) (BIR T2 T AR (PRHFRRFLAR)) Development Co., Lid. ' construction
Construction contract of civil works project of the first tender section of China State Construction Endineerin frastiucure
65 Dalan Metro Line 4 (phase |) (R4S 5- BRI RIT— 7R e greetng 062 .
i A Corporation Limited construction
............... T O
6 Construction engineering contract of Bailihui Lan Hai Zheng Feng project (F)zlr:;Tugilsgz\?s:rér?g?neérﬁgm[)&::x 2054 Housing
LEEINAEE R TEMIAR n ' i
([BENCESINGERRIERLAR) (FELREmERERAT) construction
67 General EPC contract of Ezhou Public Health Clinical Center project (phase  China Construction Third Engineering 3008 Housing
) BHHAL T REROAE (—H) EPCEAETRAR) Bureau Co., Ltd. ' construction
General construction contract in relation to prospecting, design and . — . .
68 construction of Nano Smart Technology Park (phase l) project (4K SS:ZZU%%HSEEC“M Third Engineering 30.01 col;:(s)tur zlcnt?on
............... sAMECREERRRNEIGOTR MO T
General EPC Contract for Education Training Center and Public Service China Construction Fifth Enainerin Housin
69 Center project in Suiyang District, Shangaju City (% B PR A B &R Dision Com. Lid gineering 30.00 construciigon
ORERESBURREPCEAHEAR) P
0 Construction contracting contract of Changsha Greenland V Island project ~ China Construction Seventh Engineering 3000 Housing
(KDEHVETERIABAR) Division. Corp., Ltd. ' construction
Urban-rural integration composite construction project contract of new-type . - .
P . : China Construction Eighth Engineering Infrastructure
b3 DLl — ]
7 community in villages in Bincheng District (EIHX R HEHK S~k Division Com, Lt R0 cion

IMPORTANT MATTERS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Unit: 100 million yuan  Currency: RMB

SRERMESR)
Note: The contracts listed above are mainly sourced from the statistics of the contracts actually entered into by the
Company as of the end of the Reporting Period.



2.

SECTION V

Major overseas business contracts during the Reporting Period

No.

Name of contract

General EPC contract of Makati Metro project in the Phiippines (RS
FERBATEMEEPCEATAR)

Signing Party

China Construction Second Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

IMPORTANT MATTERS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Unit: 100 million dollars - Currency: USD
Value of contract ~ Type of contract

General contracting contract in respect of the phosphoric acid plant project
in Abuta, Egypt (AR FIAERE B TREARER)

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

General contracting (comprehensive) construction contract in respect of
the Studio City Macao project (MEFLRE S8 (58) HIAR)

China State Construction Engineering
(Hong Kong) Limited and China
Construction Engineering (Macao)
Company Limited

General contracting (engineering & construction) contract in respect of the
terminal project of the New Phnom Penh International Airport ($ &R
AR AE (RiteEe) TEAR)

China Construction Third Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd.

Site A contract of NKIL6549 residential buidings in Cheung Sha Wan (
IENKIL6549fEESite AGT)

China Overseas Building Construction

Limited (PEVESNEBTiZRRAR)

Construction contract of headquarters of the International Financial Center
at downtown Manila, the Philippines (2R EHERERMLEHHH
URE-BIEAR)

China Construction First Group
Corporation Limited

China Construction UCF Group
(Philippines) Co., Ltd. (FERN;EER
(FRE) BRAT

Contract in respect of the landmark tower project in Indonesia (EN2 75
HETEAR)

China Construction First Group
Corporation Limited

Tseung Kwan O desalination plant project contract (phase I) (EiEk
AT E-MEMEER)

China State Construction Engineering
(Hong Kong) Limited

Contracts in relation to AMBAL-SIMUAY and floods control project in
Mindanao, Philippines (FEEER=2 SAMBAL-SIMUAYRIFFAAE A )

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

Contract in relation to Wong Chuk Hang station phase II development
project with Kerry Properties (R E &t SR EAH)

China Overseas Building Construction

Limited (Y EESNEETEBRAR)

Contract in relation to Sri Lanka 28km-long water diversion tunnel project
(BE=FB A3 KHEREER)

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

Contract in respect of the residential housing project at No. 128 Wong Ma
Kok Road, Stanley (FHEMAE128%EEREER)

Treasure Construction Engineering
Limited

General contract of #U REKA commercial complex (U REKAB UGG 1EE
KBIEAR)

China Construction Malaysia Co., Lid. (%
ERADRETARAR)

General construction contract of Tashkent Haitong City (Hong Kong)

project (i (57) MEMIEABER)

China Construction Xiaoxiang
(Uzbekistan) Co., Ltd. (PEEiH (B3
HB) BIRAA)

Main structure engineering contract of the seaside south bank project (%

REFAETHENTIEER)

China Construction Philippines
Construction and Development Co., Ltd.

(hEFRERRRBARAT)

General construction contract of the Zhongsai Port commercial complex
project in Belgrade (N FERERAT LAAHNERIEARER)

China Construction Xianfeng Group
(Zrenjanin) Co., Ltd. (PEBHEEER
(BERTT) BRAF)

Engineering contract i respect of the Training Center HTTC (CCDC) of
the Ministry of Home Affairs (RBLERJISHRLHTTC (CCDC) T2AR)

China Construction (South Pacific)
Development Co. Pte. Ltd.

Contract of the superstructure of Makati Metro Station 3 in the Philippines

(FRROTEHHSHIENIAESR)

China Construction First Group
Corporation Limited

China Construction First Group
Corporation Limited Philippines branch

Engineering contract in respect of the HDB flat - TPN2 (CCDC) in
Tampines (A:EE4AE-TPN2 (CCDC) TiEAR)

China Construction (South Pacific)
Development Co. Pte. Ltd.

Construction contract in respect of the phase Il project of Addis Ababa
National Stadium (T84T N EEXAEH_HAEHIAR)

Engineering contra a-Thailand Complex Logistics Industri
a high-end ecological logistics complex in Bangkok, Thailand (REEAS
RESMRGEEPRGE AT LERE TRER)

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

China Construction Fifth Engineering
Division Corp., Ltd.

213 Infrastructvure
construction
851 Infrastructvure
construction
8% Housmg
construction
59% Infrastructlure
construction
m Housmg
construction
2% Housmg
construction
385 Housmg
construction
35 Infrastructlure
construction
279 Infrastructlure
construction
278 Housmg
construction
2% Infrastructvure
construction
228 Housmg
construction
205 Housmg
construction
19 Housmg
construction
191 Housmg
construction
101 Housmg
construction
” Housmg
construction
180 Housmg
construction
169 Housmg
construction
™ Infrastructlure
construction
159 Infrastructvure
construction
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No. Name of contract

New contract in relation to the Mong Ha social housing construction project
2 -phasell and Mong Ha gymnasium reconstruction project (EE# 2R

BEIE - F_HEERABRERTRILAR)

Signing Party

China Construction Engineering (Macao)
Co,, Ltd. (REBRTIE (2]) BRAR)

Unit: 100 million dollars - Currency: USD
Value of contract ~ Type of contract

Engineering contract of Cameroon 225kV EBOLOWA-KRIBI and

90kV MBALMAYO-MEKIN transmission line and related engineering

China Construction Fifth Engineering
Division Corp., Ltd.

China Construction Representative Office
in Singapore

z construction project (%K225kV EBOLOWA-KRIBIF190kV MBALMAYO-
MEKIN BB RIEX TERRABTERR)

M Contract in respect of the Bulim infrastructure works phase | ((BL1)-CSCEC
works) (EVPERLR T —H(BLL)-CSCECTRAR)

% Civil works contract of China-Thailand high-speed railway 3-2 (& #3-2

1EIEAR)

China Construction Engineering
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. (PERR T (%E)
BRAR)

Foundation works contract of public housing in Kai Tak 2B&2B6 and Chiu
% ShunRoad, Tseung Kwan O (BE2BR2B6 R ERAERABHETES

China Construction Engineering (Hong
Kong) Co., Ltd.

China Construction Engineering
(Southeast Asia) Malaysia Co., Ltd. (&
BY (FHT) SRETERAT)

Infrastructure
1.51 }
construction
" Infrastructvure
construction
14 Infrastructlure
construction
™ Infrastruct.ure
construction
11 Housmg
construction
11 Housmg
construction

Note: The contracts listed above are mainly sourced from the statistics of the contracts actually entered into by the

Company as of the end of the Reporting Period.

3. Newly-signed comprehensive credit facility contracts

Unit: 100 million yuan/dollars Currency: RMB/USD

Name of comprehensive '
AL credit facility contract CEloRL
Comprehensive credit Ch".]a Minsheng
f facility contract Banking Corp., Ltd.
y Beijing Branch
Mastler agregment Ion The Export-import
2 trading and financial .
Lo ) Bank of China
credit facility business
HSBC Bank (China)
3 Credit facility letter Company Limited
Beijing Branch
Guaranteed credit facility Ch|qa Export &
4 Credit Insurance
agreement )
Corporation
Bank of
5 Comprehensive credit Communications
facility contract Beijing Fuwai Sub-
branch
Bank of China
6 Credit facility limit Beijing Sub-branch
contract at Bank of China
Head Office
China Guangfa Bank
7 Credit facility limit Beijing Sub-branch
contract at Qinghua East
Road

. Comprehensive L
Accredited party credit faciity limi Credit period

China State

Construction " January 9, 2020 -

Engineering RMEG0 billon January 8, 2021
Corporation Limited

China State

Construction - April 2, 2020 -

Engineering AMBI5.0 billon December 6, 2020
Corporation Limited

China State March 4, 2020 - no

Con_structllon USDO.2 billion fixed expiry date (subject

Engineering to the results of annual
Corporation Limited review by the bank)

China State

Construction " April 26, 2020 — April

Engineering USD0.52 bllion 25, 2020
Corporation Limited

China State

Construction - July 17,2020 — July 14,

Enginasring RMB20.0 billion 2022
Corporation Limited

China State

Construction - December 28, 2020 -

Engineering AMB35.8 bllion December 1, 2021
Corporation Limited

China State

Construction " October 16, 2020 -

Engineering RMBA. billion October 15, 2020

Corporation Limited
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Newly-signed strategic cooperation and business cooperation agreement

During the Reporting period, the Company continued to increase its strategic cooperation with various
local governments, large domestic and foreign enterprises and financial institutions. The following are the

major cooperation agreements entered into by the Company.

No.

Name of contract Signing date

Strategic cooperation
memorandum
between China

State Construction
Engineering
Corporation Limited
and Orix Corporation

January 21,
2020

Cooperation
agreement on
promoting Wuhan’s
post-pandemic
revitalization and high-
quality development
between Wuhan
Municipal People’s
Government and China
State Construction
Engineering
Corporation Limited

August 18,
2020

Strategic cooperation
agreement between
Qingdao Municipal
People’s Government
and China State
Construction
Engineering
Corporation Limited

September 11,
2020

Strategic cooperation
agreement

between China

State Construction
Engineering
Corporation Limited
and CITIC Securities
Company Limited

December 2,
2020

Contents of contract

To respond positively to the initiative between the Chinese and Japanese
governments to strengthen Sino-Japanese cooperation and joint
development of third country markets, this memorandum aimed to promote,
expand and deepen the cooperation between CSCEC and ORIX, and
take advantage of the experience and strength of both parties, pursuant to
which both parties will strive to build up in-depth partnership in respect of
development and operation of property projects such as complex property
development projects, office, commercial facilities operation, airport
development and operation, integrated logistics center, metro hub TOD, etc.
in China and actively extend cooperation in project development outside
China.

Based on the development needs of Hubei Province and taking into account
the competitive edges of CSCEC, the key areas of cooperation have been
identified as follows: strengthening cooperation in employment and talent
training, enhancing training on industrial workers, actively helping Hubei
Province to recover and revitalize its economy, strengthening exchanges
and cooperation with enterprises in Hubei, vigorously promoting industry-
academia-research cooperation, increasing investment and development in
key infrastructure, steadily enhancing comprehensive urban development,
accelerating industrialization of construction and actively exploring
construction-related emerging fields and new technologies, science,
education, culture and health and other livelihood projects.

Based on the actual needs of economic development planning and land
planning of Qingdao, and taking into account the development of CSCEC,
strategic cooperation has been further explored through a combination
of promotion by the local government and market-based operation.
Specific measures included: promoting the civil-military joint development
and setting up exemplary projects; strengthening cooperation in respect
of mixed ownership reform of state-owned enterprises and creating a
new model of cooperation between the central enterprises and the local
government; leveraging the advantages of CSCEC's international operation,
making coordination to promote the BRI, and local economic and trade
cooperation initiatives proposed by Qingdao Free Trade Zone and Shanghai
Cooperation Organization, and jointly building up a new high level of
opening up; helping Qingdao in operating infrastructure, innovating property
management service mode, refining the management and operation of
urban construction, and upgrading the cityscape; deeply participating
in the construction of Qingdao metropolitan area, effectively promoting
infrastructure facilities, focusing on regional development and urban
renewal, contributing to the enhancement of the city’s accommodation
capacity, and continuously optimizing the city’s appearance; participating in
the upgrading of the construction industry, and enhancing the city’s living
quality and so on.

CITIC Securities Company Limited provided securities, financial and
investment advisory services for CSCEC headquarters and its subsidiaries
with its complete set of licensed products and business lines to support
CSCEC in respect of business development, global operation, capital
operation, management of market capitalization, asset management, fund
raising and other daily securities and financial needs. This included but not
limited to the following business services: investment banking, management
of market capitalization, research, industrial investment, asset management
and cash management, equity trading, fixed income, custody, government
regulatory, and other domestic and foreign securities and financial full-
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XVI.

XVIL.

IMPORTANT MATTERS

Explanation on Other Material Matters

O Applicable +/ N/A

Active Fulfillment of Social Responsibilities

()] Poverty alleviation by the listed company
\ Applicable O N/A

1

Targeted poverty alleviation planning
\ Applicable O N/A

The Company and its controlling shareholder, China State Construction, were decisive in implementing
the decisions and deployment of the Party Central Committee, the State Council and SASAC to reduce
poverty and carry out targeted poverty alleviation, and actively assumed the social responsibilities and
obligations as a backbone central enterprise. Since 2013, we have been providing targeted and concrete
assistance to Kangle County, Zhuoni County and Kang County in Gansu Province (referred to as the three
counties of Gansu). A series of targeted and effective precise assistance were provided from education
to employment, from people’s livelihood improvement to enriching people’s lives through industrial
development, from optimizing local infrastructure facilities to promoting the building-up of beautiful villages.
In 2020, based on the performance of poverty alleviation work and survey results of lifting poverty-stricken
population out of poverty, the Company’s controlling shareholder, China State Construction, studied
and developed the 2020 Poverty Alleviation Highlights and Implementation Plan on Further Enhancing
the Poverty Alleviation Efforts in Kangle County, and entered into the Agreement on Targeted Poverty
Alleviation and Agreement on Poverty Alleviation by Promoting Consumption with the three counties of
Gansu, providing a detailed planning for the poverty alleviation throughout the year. According to the
implementation plan of the Company’s three-year action plan to reduce poverty, in conjunction with the
Company’s advantage of “whole industrial chain” in the construction industry, the Company was devoted
to proceeding with the pandemic prevention and control measures and reducing poverty, solving the
prominent problems in connection with the “No Worries about Food and Clothing with Compulsory
Education, Basic Medical Care and Housing Safety Guaranteed” initiative, persistently making “combined
efforts” in reducing poverty through industrial development, employment, education, consumption and
Communist Party building, with a view to supporting the three counties of Gansu to win the final battle of
poverty alleviation.

Summary of annual targeted poverty alleviation
\ Applicable O N/A

In 2020, the Company and its controlling shareholder, China State Construction, resolutely implemented the
“four continuing requirements”, made concrete efforts to strengthen organizational leadership, increased
resource investment and constantly proceeded with the targeted poverty alleviation approach. Specifically,
the Company convened 5 poverty alleviation progressing meeting, 45 on-site meetings, 6 inspections of the
Company’s executives for supervision on poverty alleviation, 8 in-depth research visits to the three counties
of Gansu, 11 discussion and exchange meetings with local administration of the three counties of Gansu
and the cities and prefectures governing such three countries on how to fight and win the battle against
poverty, and appointed 763 leaders and cadres at all levels to conduct research and supervision visits on
targeted poverty alleviation; the Company invested and raised funds at a total amount of RMB109,449,600
and carried out 129 poverty alleviation projects including “Kangle Basong Rural Tourism Service Center,
CSCEC-Zhuoni County Characteristic Industry Demonstration Zone Phase Il and Kang County Poverty
Alleviation through Tourism Development Demonstration Zone Phase II”; the Company dispatched 14
persons to fulfill the temporary poverty alleviation posts and 12 predominant subsidiaries to make joint
efforts to lift the three counties of Gansu out of poverty while other subsidiaries fully participated in poverty
alleviation by promoting consumption; the Company also called for the contributions by different social
parties in this regard, including China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation, China Women’s Development
Foundation, Guo Mingyi, Gansu Institute of Architectural Design and Research Co., Ltd. and CCTV Man
and Nature program team, to build a multi-engagement pattern of poverty alleviation; we also convened 42
sessions of poverty alleviation special trainings, with participants of primary-level cadres and technicians
in three counties in Gansu amounting to 3,408; the Company gave support to 132 e-commerce enterprises
(cooperative entities), arranged 376 promotion activities for poverty alleviation through consumption, built
up more than 50 characteristic brands and purchased and helped to sell agricultural products sourced
from poor areas worth RMB68,440,000; the Company held 26 special job fairs for boosting employment
and labor transmission and transfer, providing more than 4,000 jobs, established 34 demonstration villages
for facilitating export of construction labor, as a result of which 2,799 local poor residents were employed;
the Company invested special funds to carry out “emergency relief” campaign. The measure package
included helping 103 impoverished households in Zhuoni County to renovate their roads, houses, water
supply facilities, electricity supply facilities, livestock environment, toilets and stoves, purchasing automatic
biochemical analyzers for township healthcare center in Kang County, installing heating equipment and
repairing 65 water purification valve wells for 15 township healthcare centers in Kangle County. Our
campaign has benefited more than 100,000 local people and helped China State Construction to play
a vital role in winning the final battle against poverty for the three counties of Gansu. Currently, all three
counties in Gansu have been removed from the poverty-stricken county list, helping a total of 196,000
impoverished people out of poverty and all 345 impoverished villages removed out of the poverty-stricken
list. In particular, Zhuoni County was selected as one of the counties under the “China’s most beautiful
counties list”, Kangle County was awarded as “China’s most beautiful rural tourism destination in the new
era”, and Kang County was listed as the “permanent venue of the Beautiful Village Alliance Forum under
the BRI. CSCEC has been awarded the highest rating in the evaluation of targeted poverty alleviation
performance of central enterprises for three consecutive years.
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3. Effectiveness of targeted poverty alleviation

\ Applicable O N/A

Unit: ’0,000 yuan Currency: RMB

Amount/Quantity &

Indicators .
Implementation

I.  General

Including: 3.1 Number of persons getting employed for relocated /
households under assistance

J Carry out ecological
conservation and
....... maintenance
[ Establish compensation
ways for ecological
Including: 6.1 Name of project _..conservation ..
[0 Set up specialized posts
for handling ecological
and public charity related
affairs

Yy
Including: 7.1 Amount of investment in helping left-behind elderly, /
women and children in rural areas
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Unit: ’0,000 yuan Currency: RMB

Amount/Quantity &

Indicators .
Implementation

The Company organized
19 Party branches from 8
subsidiaries to work in pairs
with Party branches from
19 impoverished villages in
the three counties of Gansu
province to “carry out the
Communist Party building
initiatives and promote
poverty alleviation”. The
Company established 37
9.4. Description about other projects poverty alleviation projects in
the Party building initiatives,
implemented 2 drinking
water safety and housing
safety projects, supported
132 leading enterprises and
cooperatives in the three
counties of Gansu and
purchased and helped to sell
agricultural products sourced
from poor areas worth
RMB68,440,000 and so on.

CSCEC was awarded as the Advanced Group for Assistance in Battie of Poverty Alleviation in
Gansu Province (provincial and ministerial level);

CSCEC was awarded as the Advanced Group for Assistance in Battle of Poverty Alleviation in Linxia
Hui Autonomous Prefecture (prefecture level);

CSCEC received the highest rating in the evaluation of targeted poverty alleviation performance of
central enterprises for three consecutive years;

Its “CSCEC Model” of targeted poverty alleviation was selected into the Blue Book on Corporate

Poverty Alleviation released bg the State Council Leading Group Office of Poverté Alleviation and

Development and the series of books entitled “Poverty Alleviation — Power of Central Enterprises” {(Fi

RIIER{PFHE)Y) compiled by the News Center of SASAC and the People’s Political Consultative

Daily. Its poverty alleviation program was included by the State Council Leading Group Office of

Poverty Alleviation and DeveloAFment in the “Top 50 Comprehensive Cases for Targeted Poverty
... Alleviation by Corporates” and “Top 50 Cases for Poverty Alleviation by Volunteers™. ~
4, Subsequent targeted poverty alleviation plan

\ Applicable O N/A

In 2021, CSCEC will resolutely implement the decisions and deployment under the rural revitalization
strategy proposed by the Party Central Committee and the State Council, fully conform to the “four
continuing requirements” proposed by the central government to maintain the strength, depth and extent
of tar%eted poverty alleviation. Responding to the prominent problems and defects in comprehensively
consolidating the results of poverty alleviation in the three counties of Gansu, measures will be taken to
further increase the support in the exchange of cadres and talents, the development of characteristic
industries, the improvement of education qualitK, assistance for the needy, infrastructure construction, etc.
We will focus on consolidating and extending the results of poverty alleviation and its effective connection
with rural revitalization, help targeted areas to achieve industrial thrive, ecological livability, civilized
countryside, effective governance and economic prosperity and contribute more to becoming a modern
socialist country and the realization of Chinese dream of great rejuvenation of the Chinese nation. The
main measures include: developing and expanding characteristic industries, fulfilling advantage in whole
industrial chain, supporting tourism development ﬁlanning of targeted poverty alleviation areas, introducing
signature tourism-related products, boosting the development of the homestay industry; stimulating
employment continuousI?/, increasing publicity, mobilization and special job fairs to support employment,
promoting building-up of labor demonstration villages, providing skills training for rural entrepreneurs and
unemployed people; further promoting poverty alleviation through development of education Campaign
“Spring Buds Action”, sticking to the spirit of reducing poverty physically and mentally, introducin? “CSCEC
Happiness Courses Plan”, improving education infrastructure and competency of teachers and facilitating
the integrated development of urban and rural compulsory education; increasing support to e-commerce
businesses, maintaining assistance in procurement and marketing of e-commerce businesses, refining
online and offline sales systems, promoting the commercialization and branding of agricultural specialty
products; further enhancing Party-building in pairs with other Party units to increase interaction and
exchange between the Company’s relevant Party units and the Party units in local villages by taking the
opportunity of learning and education of CPC’s history, and to trigger the party organizations’ role as the
fortress and the general public’s endogenous motivated force by arranging joint themed CPC day and
Party member voluntary services.
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Social responsibility commitments
\ Applicable O N/A

The Company will disclose the 2020 Social Responsibility Report headed “CSCEC 2020 Sustainability Report” on
the website of Shanghai Stock Exchange. Please refer to the relevant content of the report for relevant information
of social responsibility commitments of the Company.

Environmental information

1. Explanation on environmental protection efforts of the highly polluting companies and
their key subsidiaries as announced by the environmental protection authority

O Applicable N/A

2. Explanation on environmental protection efforts of companies other than highly polluting
companies

\ Applicable O N/A

Guided by President Xi Jinping’s ideology on ecological civilization, the Company thoroughly implements
the decision and deployment on ecological environmental protection of the Party Central Committee
and the State Council, earnestly materializes the new development concept and fulfills the Company’s
responsibility of environmental protection to continue to promote the in-depth ecological environment
protection.

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not aware of any unexpected environmental incidents or
major environmental pollution accidents. The Company closely focuses on the latest national policies and
regulations, strives to improve the environmental protection management system, continuously carries
out the identification and rectification of environmental risks and hazards, and continuously increases
supervision and regulation through special inspections and comprehensive examinations. The Company
is highly concerned about the awareness and capacity building of environmental protection, incorporates
environmental management training into the overall training plan, and organizes training and publicity
activities through on-site training, experience exchange, case sharing, internal observation, etc. Throughout
the year, the Company organizes more than 1,200 various training and publicity events on environmental
protection, with more than 38,000 participants, and hosts more than 173 observation activities at the local
and municipal levels.

The Company continuously strengthens the environmental protection and pollution prevention and control
of construction projects. For construction projects invested by the Company, it insists on conducting
assessment on environmental impact according to law, and comprehensively incorporates environmental
protection requirements into the entire process of design, construction and operation to ensure the
simultaneous design, construction, production and delivery of pollution prevention facilities and the main
construction works. For the construction projects the Company undertakes, the Company carries out
identification of material environmental elements and environmental management planning as required,
specifies the environmental management objectives of the project concerned, equips itself with and
regulates the operation of various pollution prevention and control facilities. In addition, we highly value the
promotion and application of energy-saving and environmental protection technologies, namely “four-new”
technologies. We strive to reduce pollution and material loss at source, reduce energy consumption and
improve recycling efficiency through the promotion of the new, green and smart construction with a view to
advancing the environmental protection and pollution prevention and control efforts.

3. Explanation on reasons for not disclosing environmental information by companies other
than highly polluting companies
O Applicable +/ N/A

4, Explanation on the subsequent progress or changes in the environmental information
disclosure during the Reporting Period

O Applicable +/ N/A

Other explanation
O Applicable v N/A
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XVIIl. Convertible Corporate Bonds

0] Issue of convertible bonds

O Applicable / N/A

(I Holders and guarantors of convertible bonds during the Reporting Period

O Applicable N/A

(1) Changes in convertible bonds during the Reporting Period
O Applicable  N/A
Accumulated number of shares converted from convertible bonds during the Reporting Period

O Applicable N/A

(IV)  Previous adjustments to conversion price
O Applicable  / N/A

(V) Information on the Company’s liability and the changes in credit standing as well as the cash
arrangement for the future annual debt repayment

O Applicable N/A

(V1)  Other information of convertible bonds

O Applicable N/A
XIX. Index of Information Disclosure

During the Reporting Period, the Company published 187 documents on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(www.sse.com.cn), and related announcements were also published in the China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities
News, Securities Daily, and Securities Times.

No. Matter Disclosure Date
...... 1...... CSCEC: Briefing on Business from January to December 2019 January 10,2020
.2 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project January 18,2020

3 CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Appointment of the February 4, 2020

Company’s Auditor for Financial Reports in 2020

CSCEC: Independent Director’s Prior Approval of Opinions on Appointment of the
Company’s Auditor for Financial Reports in 2020

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Redemption of 150,000,000
Unlisted Preferred Shares of the Company

CSCEC: Announcement on Amendments to the Articles of Association of China State
7 Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and the Rules of Procedure of the General February 4, 2020
Meeting of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

.8 GSCEC: Announcement on Change of Auditor for Financial Reports February 4, 2020

.9, CSCEC: Rules of Procedure of the General Meeting (2020 Revised Draft) February 4,2020

..... 10 CSCEC: Articles of Association (2020 Revised Draft) . .. .. . Febrary4,2020
11 CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 18th Meeting of Second Session of Board February 4, 2020

of Supervisors



SECTION V

Matter
CSCEC: First Holding Announcement on Redemption of Unlisted Preferred Shares
CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 34th Meeting of Second Session of Board
of Directors
CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on Relevant Matters regarding
Second Tranche of Unlocking in 2019 in Respect of Phase Il Restricted A Share
Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
CSCEC: Announcement on the Second Tranche of Unlocking in 2019 in Respect of
Phase Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme and Listing of Shares

CSCEC: Announcement on Decrease in Registered Capital of the Company after
Repurchase and Cancellation of Part of Phase Il and Il Restricted Shares and Notice to
the Creditors

CSCEC: Announcement on Distribution of Dividends for Preferred Shares (Tranche |) of
2019-2020

CSCEC: Holding Announcement on the Suspension of Trading of Unlisted Preferred
Shares

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Appointment of Zheng
Xuexuan as the Company’s President

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 35th Meeting of the Second Session of
Board of Directors

CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on Relevant Matters regarding
Repurchase and Cancellation of Part of Restricted Shares under Phase I, Il and
Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

CSCEC: Announcement on Implementation of Repurchase and Cancellation of Part of
Restricted Shares under the Equity Incentive Scheme

CSCEC: Advance Announcement on Performance Presentation and Cash Dividend
Meeting of 2019

CSCEC: Announcement on Daily Related Party Transactions under the Comprehensive
Services Framework Agreement and the Financial Services Framework Agreement
Signed with China State Construction Engineering Corporation

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Proposal of the Company’s
Daily Related Party Transactions in 2020

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Financing Guarantee of the
Company in 2020

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the Concurrent Position
of Zheng Xuexuan, Wang Yunlin, Zhao Xiaojiang, Ma Zeping, Zhou Yong and Wang
Xiangming as Senior Executive of the Controlling Shareholder

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the 2019 Profit Distribution
Plan of the Company

IMPORTANT MATTERS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Disclosure Date
February 4, 2020
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No. Matter Disclosure Date

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 37th Meeting of the Second Session of .
. April 25, 2020
the Board of Directors

CSCEC: Independent Director’s Prior Approval of Opinions on Change of the Company’s
Auditor for Internal Control in 2020

CSCEC: Special Report on Fund Occupation by Controlling Shareholder and Other

% RelatedPartes oo e Eea
51 CSCEC: Independent Director’s Prior Approval of Opinions on Proposal in Respect of April 25. 2020

............... P.?“Y..R?!?‘.‘?q.'?T“.F?)’.T@@?F?ﬁ?ﬁ?9.f4?h?.@?.’TFP?F?Y.f.QF.?Q?Q..4..4....4..4....4..4....4..4....4,.4....4,.4....4.4,4,....?.4,4,4.f....4,4,4,.,...4.
52 CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 19th Meeting of the Second Session of April 25, 2020

............... the Board of Supervisors
53 CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Change of the Company’s April 25, 2020

Auditor for Internal Control in 2020

CSCEC: Report on the Performance of Duties of the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors for 2019

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 20th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Supervisors

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 38th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Directors

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 39th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Directors

CSCEC: Announcement on Additional Temporary Proposals at 2019 Annual General
Meeting

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 21st Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Supervisors

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 22nd Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Supervisors

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 40th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Directors

CSCEC: Holding Announcement on Changes in Equity of Shareholders Holding More
Than 5%
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CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of 24th Meeting of the Second Session of the
Board of Supervisors

Matter
CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to June 2020

CSCEC: Announcement on Investment in Historical Landscape Reservation and Urban
Renovation Project of Shanghai

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of 41st Meeting of the Second Session of the
Board of Directors

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of 23rd Meeting of the Second Session of the
Board of Supervisors

CSCEC: Announcement on Resignation of Supervisors and Nomination of Candidates
for Supervisors

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of 42nd Meeting of the Second Session of the
Board of Directors

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 2020 Second Extraordinary General
Meeting

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 25th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Supervisors

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 26th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Supervisors

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 43rd Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Directors

CSCEC: Announcement on Participating in the Collective Reception Day for Investors of
Listed Companies in Beijing in 2020

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 44th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Directors

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Appointment of Shan
Guangxiu as Vice President of the Company

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 45th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Directors

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 27th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Supervisors

CSCEC: Measures for Implementation, Assessment and Management of Phase IV
Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the Phase IV Restricted A
Share Incentive Scheme (Draft) of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited

CSCEC: Announcement on Approval of the Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive
Scheme by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
State Council

CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on Repurchase of Shares by
Centralized Bidding Trading of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

CSCEC: Repurchase Report on the Repurchase of Shares of the Company through
Centralized Bidding Trading

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Resolutions regarding Share
Repurchase Proposal by Centralized Bidding Trading

IMPORTANT MATTERS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Disclosure Date
July 24, 2020
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No. Matter Disclosure Date

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 46th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Directors October 24, 2020

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 28th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Supervisors

CSCEC: Announcement on the Shareholding of the Top Ten Shareholders and Top Ten
Shareholders Not Subject to Sales Restrictions

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Appointment of Zhang

' Zhaoxiang as the New Director of the Second Session of Board of Directors ~~ ©¢0per29,2020
129 CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 47th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Directors
130 """ CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 29th Meeting of the Second Session of ~ ~ . " "

the Board of Supervisors

CSCEC: Announcement on the Progress of Repurchase of Shares through Centralized
............... Bidding Trading | e

CSCEC: Announcement on Repurchased Shares of up to 1% in Aggregate and Progress
of Share Repurchase by Centralized Bidding Trading November 7, 2020

CSCEC: Announcement on the Capital Increase in China State Construction Finance
134  Co., Ltd. by the Company and its Controlling Shareholders and Related Party = November 10, 2020
Transactions

CSCEC: Opinions of Independent Directors on Prior Approval of the Capital Increase
135 in China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. by the Company and its Controlling  November 10, 2020
Shareholders and Related Party Transactions

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the Capital Increase
136 in China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. by the Company and its Controlling  November 10, 2020
Shareholders and Related Party Transactions

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 48th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Directors

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 30th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Supervisors

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 31st Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Supervisors November 21, 2020

CSCEC: Announcement on the Repurchase of Part of Participants’ Shares under the
Phase Il and Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme

CSCEC: Legal Opinions on Relevant Matters regarding the Repurchase and Cancellation
143  of Part of Restricted Shares in Respect of Phase Il and Ill Restricted A Share Incentive November 21, 2020
Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 49th Meeting of the Second Session of

M theBoardofDirectors = Novembert, 2020
CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors of List of Participants and

. Information on the Grant of Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme November21, 2020
CSCEC: Legal Opinions of Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of China

1% State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited November 21, 2020

.. 147 GSCEC: Announcement on Independent Directors’ Solicitation of Proxy Voting Rights November 21, 2020

..148  CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project November 24, 2020

..149  CSCEC: Information of the 2020 Third Extraordinary General Meeting November 28, 2020
CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 32nd Meeting of the Second Session of

19 theBoardofSupervisors Pecember2, 2020
CSCEC: Explanation on the Result of Review by the Board of Supervisors and the

81 Publication of the List of Participants of the Company's Phase IV Restricted A Shares  December2 2020 -
CSCEC: Announcement the Progress of Repurchase of Shares through Centralized

M2 BddingTrading - T Pecembers, 2020
CSCEC: Announcement on Repurchased Shares of up to 2% in Aggregate of Share

"% Repurchase by Centralized Bidding Trading Pecember, 2020
CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on the 2020 Third Extraordinary

%% General Mesting of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited Pecemoer 8, 2020

..155  GSCEC: Measures on the Management of Provision of Security to Third Parties (Trial) December 8, 2020

156  CSCEC: Measures on Raised Funds Management (Revision in December 2020) December 8, 2020

CSCEC: Announcement on Decrease in Registered Capital of the Company after
157  Repurchase and Cancellation of Part of Phases Il and Il Restricted Shares and Notice to December 8, 2020
Creditors

CSCEC: Self-examination Report on the Trading of Shares of the Company by Persons
with Inside Information Related to Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme
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Matter

CSCEC: Announcement on the Implementation Results of Share Repurchase and
Changes in Shares

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 50th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Directors

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 33rd Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Supervisors

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Granting under Phase IV
Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme

CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on Matters of Granting under Phase
IV Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Adopting New Lease
Standards

CSCEC: Opinions of Independent Directors on Prior Approval of Renewal of Financial
Service Framework Agreement between China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. and
China State Construction Engineering Corporation

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 51st Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Directors

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on First Tranche of Unlocking
in 2020 under the Phase Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme

CSCEC: Announcement on Renewal of the Financial Services Framework Agreement
between China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. and China State Construction
Engineering Corporation and Daily Related Party Transaction

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 34th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board of Supervisors

CSCEC: Opinions of Independent Directors on Prior Approval of Renewal of
Comprehensive Services Framework Agreement between the Company and China State
Construction Engineering Corporation

CSCEC: Announcement on Provision of Entrusted Loans to the Company by its
Controlling Shareholder and Related Party Transaction

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Renewal of the Financial
Services Framework Agreement between China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd.
and China State Construction Engineering Corporation

CSCEC: Announcement on the Repurchase of Part of Participants’ Shares under the
Phase Il and Ill Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Provision of Entrusted
Loans to the Company by China State Construction Engineering Corporation

CSCEC: Opinions of Independent Directors on Prior Approval of Provision of Entrusted
Loans to the Company by China State Construction Engineering Corporation

CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on Relevant Matters regarding
the Repurchase and Cancellation of Part of Restricted Shares in Respect of Phase Il
and Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

CSCEC: Announcement on Renewal of Comprehensive Services Framework Agreement
between the Company and China State Construction Engineering Corporation and Daily
Related Party Transaction

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Third Tranche of Unlocking
in 2020 under the Phase Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Renewal of Comprehensive
Services Framework Agreement between the Company and China State Construction
Engineering Corporation

IMPORTANT MATTERS
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Disclosure Date

December 15, 2020

December 24, 2020

ecember 020
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2. Explanation on changes in ordinary shares
\ Applicable O N/A

As of the end of the Reporting Period, there were two changes in the Company’s shares, which were
caused by the Company’s unlocking of restricted shares, repurchase and cancellation of some restricted
shares. The details are as follows:

(1) The Company completed the unlocking of the second tranche of 112,527,800 restricted shares
under the Phase Il restricted A share incentive scheme, converting circulating restricted shares
subject to trading moratorium to circulating shares not subject to trading moratorium. The total
share capital of the Company amounted to 41,975,629,711 shares. For details, please refer to the
Announcement on the Second Tranche of Unlocking in 2019 in respect of Phase Il Restricted A
Share Incentive Scheme and Listing of Shares of the Company published on February 5, 2020.

2) The Company completed the repurchase from the participants and cancellation of 10,558,200
restricted shares that were not eligible for unlocking. After the completion of the repurchase
and cancellation, the registered capital (and share capital) of the Company was decreased by
RMB10,558,200 (and 10,558,200 shares) to RMB41,965,071,511 (and 41,965,071,511 shares). For
details, please refer to the Announcement on Implementation of Repurchase for Cancellation of
Part of Restricted Shares under the Equity Incentive Scheme published on April 13, 2020.

3. The impact, if any, of changes in ordinary shares on financial indicators such as earnings
per share, net asset per share for the latest year and the latest period
O Applicable N/A

4, Other disclosures that the Company deemed necessary or were required by securities
regulatory authorities

O Applicable N/A

() Changes in shares subject to trading moratorium

\ Applicable O N/A

Unit: Share
] (.)f Number of Number of new el (.)f
shares subject . shares subject
1o tradin shares released  shares subject o tradin Reasonfor  Date of release
Name of Shareholder . g from trading to trading . 9 the trading from trading
moratorium at . : moratorium at ) .
- moratorium for  moratorium for moratorium moratorium
the beginning he vear he vear the end
of the year y y of the year
During the
Participants of IRestrlcted Stock 834554667  -123,086,000 0 711,468,667 tradmg /
Incentive Plan moratorium
period
Total 834,554,667  -123,086,000 0 711,468,667 / /

For details, please refer to the above “Explanation on changes in ordinary shares”.
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Il Issuance and Listing of Securities

0] Issue of securities during the Reporting Period
\ Applicable O N/A

Unit: 100 million shares Currency: RMB

Number of
. ) Shares .
Types of shares and their ) Issue price Number of - ) Ending date
o o Date of issue . : Date of listing permitted )
derivative securities (or interest rate)  shares issued ) of the trading
to be listed
for trading
Ordinary Shares
RMB Ordinary Shares (A Shares)  July 22, 2009 4.18 120 July 29, 2009 120 /

Issue of securities during the Reporting Period (please provide separately the particulars of bonds with different
interest rates for duration):

\ Applicable O N/A

For the issuance of the Company’s preferred shares, please refer to the relevant information as set out under
Section VIl “INFORMATION RELATED TO PREFERRED SHARES” hereof.

(I Changes in the Company’s total number of ordinary shares and structure of shareholders and
changes in structure of asset and liability of the Company

O Applicable N/A

() Existing internal employee shares

O Applicable N/A

1l. Shareholders and De Facto Controller

) Total number of shareholders

Total number of ordinary shareholders as of the end of the Reporting Period 557,337
Total number of ordinary shareholders at the end of the month immediately 546.613
before the date of disclosure of the Annual Report ’
Total number of preferred shareholders with voting rights restored as of the end of
) ; N/A
the Reporting Period
Total number of preferred shareholders with voting rights restored at the end N/A

of the month immediately before the date of disclosure of the Annual Report



SECTION VI CHANGES IN ORDINARY SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS

(I

()

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Shareholding of top ten shareholders, top ten shareholders of circulating shares (or holders
of shares not subject to trading moratorium) as of the end of the Reporting Period

Unit: Share

Shareholding of top ten shareholders

Number of
Increase/decrease  Number of shares shares held Pledged or frozen
Name of shareholder (full name) during the held at the end Perc(?/n)tage subject to s#;:eljrzglgfer
Reporting Period of the period ° trading Status Number
moratorium
. ' . ' ' State-owned
SmsseOmmanfgus o v e N e
.. Ohina Securties Fnance Cooration Limited 0 ...120830008 s LN e
. Hong Kong Securies Cleaing Company Limted BBA6279 | NMOIAME 2 LN e
Special account for securities repurchase of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation 912,036,000 912,036,000 217 0 Nil 0 Other
..... O eeeeeeeveeeessseesesseeseessssms e 5 28 eSS RRRRS 8 5SS 8RR R SRR 528 4R R RS
State-owned
Cm sl o e N e
GIC PRIVATE LIMITED -71,927,024 215,721,132 051 0 Ni 0 Forgle?;\o\ﬁgal
S G Secu rmes .....
Index 50 Trading Open-end Index Securities -5,532,229 156,169,063 037 0 Nil 0 .
investment fund
e O U e
Bank of Communications - E Fund 50 Index ' Securities
..... Seotes mesnerFog 0000 eI 08 0N D menening
. Pottilio 106 o the National Social Secury Fund 130394213 .. 1334213 02 N Otver ..
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
- Guangfa High-end Manufacturing Equity Securities
Initiative Securiies Investment Fund* (7%= 118352699 118,552,849 b 0 i O invesimentund
..... MERRRAREARARE)
Shareholdings of the top ten holders of circulating shares not subject to trading moratorium
Number of circulating Class and number of shares
Name of shareholder shares not subject to o Nurtb
trading moratorium 2ss Unlgel
China State Construction Engineering Corporation 23,630,695,997 RMB ordinary shares 23,630,695,997

“”Special account for securities repurchase of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

Industrial & Commercial Bank of China - SSE Index 50 Trading Open-end
Index Securities Investment Fund

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd. - Guangfa High-end

Manufacturing Equity Initiative Securities Investment Fund* (/% &)
..... BRRRAGSURARARS)
There is no related relationship or action in concert between China State
Construction Engineering Corporation, the largest shareholder of the Company,

Descriptions on the related refafionship or acts in concert of the and any other shareholder mentioned above. The Company is not aware of any

above shareholders related relationship among the above shareholders, or whether they are parties
......................................................................................... ainginconeert.
Descriptions on the preferred shareholders with voting rights restored and NA

number of shares held

Number of shares held by top ten holders of shares subject to trading moratorium and trading moratorium

O Applicable N/A

Please refer to the relevant content of “(Il) Changes in Shares Subject to Trading Moratorium” under “I. Changes in
Ordinary Share Capital” in this Section.

Strategic investors or general legal persons becoming the top 10 shareholders as a result of
new share placement

O Applicable +/ N/A
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SECTION VI CHANGES IN ORDINARY SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS

IV.  Controlling Shareholder and De Facto Controller

0] Controlling shareholder

1 Legal person

\ Applicable O N/A

Person in charge
of the company

or legal
representative
It was established on June 11, 1982 following the official announcement of the
former Ministry of Urban and Rural Construction and Environmental Protection,
Date of and the former State Administration for Industry and Commerce issued a

business license to China State Construction Engineering Corporation on March
25, 1983. It was transformed to a wholly state-owned company on November
28, 2017, and changed its name to China State Construction Engineering
Corporation.

The operation of state-owned assets within the scope authorized by the State
Council; undertaking of survey, design, construction, installation and consultation
of civil and constructional engineering at home and abroad; operation of real
estate; decoration works; sculpture and frescoes business; undertaking of foreign
economic assistance projects of the state; contracting of foreign-related projects
in the PRC, organization of non-trade enterprises overseas, carrying out of labor
service cooperation in the PRC using foreign resources, funds and technology,
and export business of equipment and materials required for foreign projects;
production and operation of construction materials and other non-metallic
mineral products, metal products for construction, tools, construction engineering
machinery and drilling machinery; import and export of goods, import and export
of technology, agent service for import and export; project investment; real estate
development; engineering survey and design; construction project management;
technical consulting, technical services; property management. (Enterprises
may independently choose business items and carry out business activities in
accordance with the law; as for items subject to approval in accordance with
the law, relevant business activities shall be carried out with the approval of the
competent authorities and within the scope of the approval; business activities
of the forbidden and restricted projects as required by the municipal industry
policies are not allowed.)

Shareholding
and equity
participation in
other domestic
and overseas
listed companies
during the
Reporting Period

establishment

Principal activities

China State Construction Engineering Corporation holds 27.05% shares of
CSCEC Scimee Sci. & Tech. Co., Ltd. (stock abbreviation: SCIMEE, stock code:
300425.SZ7) through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Beijing Zhongjian Qiming
Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (AtRFPEFARIEEFRAFE) (“Zhongjian
Qiming”). Zhongjian Qiming is the controlling shareholder of SCIMEE.

2. Natural person

O Applicable v N/A

3. Special explanation on absence of a controlling shareholder of the Company
O Applicable  / N/A

4. Details of the index and the date of changes of the controlling shareholder during the
Reporting Period
O Applicable  / N/A
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5. Chart showing the ownership and controlling relationship between the Company and the
controlling shareholder

\ Applicable O N/A

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation

56.31%

|

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

()  De Facto Controller

1 Legal person

\ Applicable O N/A

2. Natural person

O Applicable  N/A
3. Special explanation on absence of a de facto controller of the Company
O Applicable N/A

4, Details of the index and the date of changes of the de facto controller during the
Reporting Period

O Applicable N/A
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5. Chart showing the ownership and controlling relationship between the Company and the
de facto controller

\ Applicable O N/A

SASAC of the State Council

|
100%

|

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation

|
56.31%

|

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

6. The de facto controller controlling the Company through a trust or other asset
management company

O Applicable N/A

(1l Other information of the controlling shareholder and the de facto controller

O Applicable + N/A
V. Other Corporate Shareholders Holding More than 10% of the Shares
O Applicable v N/A
VI. Explanation on Restrictions on the Reduction of Shareholding

O Applicable +/ N/A
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N VIl INFORMATION RELATED TO PREFERRED SHARES

\ Applicable O N/A

l. Issua

nce and Listing of Preferred Shares in the Past Three Years as of the End of the

Reporting Period

360007

Unit: ten thousand shares

Number
Abbreviation ) - of shares
Code of ) Issue price  Dividend rate  Number of e . -
of preferred  Date of issue . o : Date of listing  permitted to  Delisting date
preferred shares shares (in RMB) (%) shares issued be listed for
trading
China
Construction March 2, o March 20, March 2,
Preferred 2015 100 58% 15,000 2015 15,000 2020
Stock 1

Use progress and
changes of proceeds

On March 6, 2015, upon consideration and approval at the 76th meeting of the first session of the Board of the Company, it
was agreed to replace the self-pooled upfront investment in projects to be invested through fund raising with the proceeds
from preferred shares of RMB12.763 billion. The Company’s independent directors and the Board of Supervisors agreed
on the matter. For details of and investment in the projects, please refer to the relevant announcements such as CSCEC:
Announcement on the Replacement of the Self-Pooled Upfront Investment in Projects to be Invested Through Fund Raising
with the Proceeds from Preferred Shares issued by the Company on March 10, 2015. In accordance with the commitment
made in the application document for the issuance of preferred shares, the remaining proceeds from preferred shares of
RMB2.212 billion were used for the category 1l of projects, i. e. supplementing the Company’s general working capital.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, all the proceeds from the Company’s initial non-public issuance of preferred shares of
RMB15.0 billion have been fully utilized. Please refer to the relevant content of (a) “Preferred share” under Note V. 43 “Other
equity instruments” to the Financial Statements under Section XI “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

II. Preferred Shareholders

(1

|[R Profit

(1

Total number of preferred shareholders

Total number of preferred shareholders at the end of the month immediately
before the date of disclosure of the Annual Report

Other matters
\ Applicable O N/A

The Proposal on Relevant Matters Regarding the Redemption of 150,000,000 Unlisted Preferred Shares of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited was considered and approved at the 34th meeting of the
second session of Board of Directors of the Company on February 3, 2020; the Proposal on Relevant Matters
Regarding the Redemption of 150,000,000 Unlisted Preferred Shares of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited, the Proposal on Amendments to the Articles of Association of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited and the Proposal on Amending the Rules of Procedure of the General Meeting of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited were considered and approved at the Company's first
extraordinary general meeting in 2020 on February 19, 2020. The Company redeemed all preferred shares held by
all the preferred shareholders of the Company on March 2, 2020.

Distribution of Preferred Shares

Profit distribution
\ Applicable O N/A

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, the Company pays dividends in cash once a year, which
will carry fixed dividend rate with single step-up in dividend rate arrangement. For the preferred shares issued in
the first tranche, the dividend rate for the first five dividend accruing years has been determined at 5.80% through
inquiry methods, and remained unchanged. If the Company does not exercise its redemption rights entirely, from
the sixth dividend accruing year onwards, the dividend rate per share will be the dividend rate for the first five
dividend accruing years plus 2 percentage points, and will remain unchanged after adjustments to the dividend
rate for the sixth dividend accruing year. The preferred shares issued in different tranches will have equal priority to
dividend distribution. The Company may distribute dividends to the preferred shareholders if there are distributable
profit left after recovering losses and making allocations to its reserve according to relevant laws. The dividends
on the preferred shares are not cumulative. Unless the occurrence of any trigger events for compulsory payment,
the general meeting of the Company shall be entitled to determine to cancel the payment of part or full current
dividend on the preferred shares. Once the preferred shareholders under the issuance have received dividends at
the specified dividend rate, they shall not be entitled to the distribution of the remaining profit together with ordinary
shareholders.
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(I

()

(V)

INFORMATION RELATED TO PREFERRED SHARES

Please refer to the Articles of Association, the Prospectus for the Non-public Issuance of Preferred Shares
of CSCEC, Report on the Issuance of Non-public Issuance of Preferred Shares of CSCEC and other related
announcements published by the Company on March 7, 2015, as well as the relevant content of (a) “Preferred
Share” under Note V. 43 “Other equity instruments” to the Financial Statements under Section XI “FINANCIAL
REPORT” hereof.

Distribution amount and distribution ratio for preferred shares in the recent three years (the
Reporting Period inclusive)
\ Applicable O N/A

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Distribution amount Distribution ratio
2019-2020 870,000 Dividend rate of 5.80%
870,000

870,000

Other explanation:

On April 11, 2019 and May 7, 2019, the 23rd meeting of the second session of the Board of the Company and
the 2018 annual general meeting considered and approved the Proposal on the Dividend Distribution Plan in
2019-2020 for Preferred Shares of RMB15.0 billion of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited,
a cash dividend of RMB5.80 (tax inclusive) per preferred share will be distributed to the preferred shareholders
(tranche 1) whose names appear on the register of members of the Company, as maintained by China Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited, Shanghai Branch, after the close of trading hours of the Shanghai
Stock Exchange on February 28, 2020, based on the 150 million preferred shares (tranche |) which were issued
at a dividend rate of 5.80%. For details, please refer to the Announcement on Distribution of Dividends for
Preferred Shares (Tranche |) of 2019-2020 issued on February 22, 2020. As of March 2, 2020, the plan has been
implemented.

If the Company records profits and the parent company records a positive undistributed profit
during the Reporting Period but no profit is distributed for preferred shares, the Company
shall disclose the reasons and the usage of the undistributed profits and the usage plan in
details

O Applicable / N/A

Other explanation

O Applicable N/A

Repurchase and Conversion of the Company’s Preferred Shares during the Reporting
Period

(1

Repurchase

\ Applicable O N/A

Number
of shares o Subjectsto  Impact on the
Codeof ~ Abbreviation Repurchase ' funds for o .
fe of . S repurchased  Proportion Sourceof ~ Temofshare  exercising  share capital
preferred ~ of preferred price (RMBPricing principle ) repurchase
repurchase (ten (%) ; funds repurchase  repurchase  structure of the
shares shares per share) (in RMB100 '
thousand o option Company
milion)
shares)
. Par value of prgferred Oy shaes
China shares plus dividends
Construction resolved to be paid Self e ot
360007 March 2, 2020 100 P 15,000 100 150 ) March2,2020 ~ CSCEC  and the number
Preferred but not yet paid in finance
‘ of preferred
Stock 1 the current period L
shares is nil

(RMB5.80 per share)
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Explanation on matters such as the procedure for considering the repurchase of preferred
shares

As approved at the Company's first extraordinary meeting in 2020 on February 19, 2020, the redemption and
cancellation of all the issued 150,000,000 preferred shares of China Construction Preferred Stock 1 was completed
on March 2, 2020. For details, please refer to relevant announcements of the Company:

1. The Proposal on Relevant Matters Regarding the Redemption of 150,000,000 Unlisted Preferred Shares
of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited was considered and approved at the 34th
meeting of the second session of the Board and the 18th meeting of the second session of Board of
Supervisors on February 3, 2020;

2. The Company issued the First Holding Announcement on Redemption of Unlisted Preferred Shares on
February 4, 2020;

3. The Proposal on Relevant Matters Regarding the Redemption of 150,000,000 Unlisted Preferred Shares of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited was considered and approved at the 2020 first
extraordinary general meeting of the Company on February 19, 2020;

4. The Company issued the Second Holding Announcement on Redemption of Unlisted Preferred Shares on
February 20, 2020;

5. The Company issued the Third Holding Announcement on Redemption of Unlisted Preferred Shares on
February 21, 2020;

6. The Company issued the Announcement on Redemption and Delisting of All Unlisted Preferred Shares and
the Holding Announcement on the Suspension of Trading of Unlisted Preferred Shares on February 26,
2020;

7. The Company issued the Announcement on Results of the Redemption of All Unlisted Preferred Shares on

March 4, 2020.

(I Conversion
O Applicable N/A

No terms for compulsory conversion to ordinary shares are provided in China Construction Preferred Stock 1.

Restoration and Exercise of Relevant Voting Rights that the Company shall Disclose If the
Voting Rights of Preferred Shares Restored

O Applicable  N/A
Accounting Policies Adopted by the Company for Preferred Shares and Reasons Therefor

\ Applicable O N/A

Pursuant to the requirements of Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 37 — Presentation of Financial
Instruments and Provisions for Differentiation between Financial Instruments and Equity Instruments and Relevant
Accounting Treatment issued by the Ministry of Finance, the actual amount received from total issuance amount of China
Construction Preferred Stock 1 net of related transaction costs was accounted for as other equity instruments.

Miscellaneous

O Applicable +/ N/A
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SECTION VIl

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

l. Changes in Shareholding and Remuneration

(1

Name

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR

Changes in shareholding and remuneration of incumbent and resigned directors, supervisors
and senior management during the Reporting Period

\ Applicable O N/A

Posttion

Gender

Age

Number of

Commencement ' Number of
Expiry date of the ~ shares hold at the Share changes
date of the term pry G 0 L shares hold at the . ¢
' term of office beginning during the year
of office end of the year
of the year

Incumbent directors, supervisors and senior management

Reason for
changes

Unit: 0,000 shares

Total pre-tax

remuneration ~ Whether to obtain
received from the  remuneration from
Company during  related parties

the Reporting ~  of the Company

Zhang

Independent
director

Independent
director

Independent
director

Zheng

Independent
director

Chairman of
the Board of
Supervisors

Employee
representative
supervisor

Lu Yanbin

Employee
representative
supervisor

October 10,2019 January 8, 2021 0 0 0
May7,2019  January 8, 2021
Upon a new
i 504 504 0
Machd g coporiment
dismissal by the
Board of Directors
December7,2020  January 8, 2021 0 0 0
January 9, 2018 January 8, 2021 0 0 0
January 9, 2018 January 8, 2021 0 0 0
January 9, 2018 January 8, 2021 0 0 0
January 9, 2018 January 8, 2021 0 0 0
August21,2020  January 8, 2021 837 837 0
January 9, 2018 January 8, 2021 448 448 0
January 9, 2018 January 8, 2021 154 154 0
January 9, 2018 January 8, 2021 2212 2.12 0
January 9, 2018 January 8, 2021 154 154 0

Period (0000 yuan)
/ Yes
| Yes
| Yes
6 No
6 No
6 No
6 No
142.76 No
6 No
6 No
6 No
6 No
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Unit: 0,000 shares

Total pre-tax
Number of Nuber of remuneraion — Whether to obtain
Expiry date of the ~shares hold at the Sharechanges  Reasonfor  received fromthe remuneration from
X o shareshold atthe ) '
ferm of office beginning during the year changes Company during  related parties
end of the year )
of the year the Reporting ~  of the Company
Period (01000 yuan)

Commencement
Name Position Gender Age date of the term
of office

Upon a new
appointment/
dismissal by the
Board of Directors

Vice president,
Wang Yunlin chief financial Male 57 January 15,2019
officer

Upon a new
appointment/
dismissal by the
Board of Directors

Upon a new
appointment/
dismissal by the
Board of Directors

Upon a new
appoinment/
dismissal by the
Board of Directors

Upon a new
appointment/
dismissal by the
Board of Directors

Upon a new
appointment/
dismissal by the
Board of Directors

Upon a new
appointment/
dismissal by the
Board of Directors

Zhao Xiaojiang Vice president Male 55 January 19,2016

Secretary to the
board

Former chairman
Gao Lieyang of the Board of Male 5 January 9,2018  July 29,2020 168 168 0 / 101.66 No
Supervisors
Total / / / [ / 769.362 769.362 0 / 611.69 /

Note 1: The terms of office of the second session of both the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors have been expired on
January 8, 2021. As the nomination and election of candidates for the new sessions of Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors of the Company have not yet been finished, the term of office of the second sessions of the Board and Board
of Supervisors, as well as the special committees under the Board of Directors have been extended correspondingly. The
Company will complete the election of directors and supervisors as practicable as possible and perform relevant information
disclosure obligations in a timely manner. The election of directors and supervisors for new session of the Board of
Directors and Board of Supervisors will not affect the normal operation of the Company.

Note 2: The total remuneration before tax obtained before being nominated as a leader of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation.

Note 3: Considering the appointment and dismissal of the leadership of China State Construction Engineering Corporation by the
Organization Department of the CPC Central Committee and the SASAC of the State Council, remuneration of the leaders
of China State Construction Engineering Corporation will be paid by China State Construction Engineering Corporation and
disclosed on the Company’s official website. Leaders who work part-time in CSCEC have been approved by the CSRC.
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Name Major work experience

Party Secretary and Chairman of China State Construction Engineering Corporation,
Chairman of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited. Senior engineer, a
master’'s degree holder. Former deputy general manager of Jiangsu Provincial Construction
Engineering Corporation (Construction Group Corporation), deputy mayor of Taizhou City,
Jiangsu Province, standing committee member and executive deputy mayor of Taizhou
City, Jiangsu Province, director and Party Secretary of Jiangsu Tourism Bureau, and
Party Secretary, deputy director of Jiangsu Provincial Department of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development, deputy secretary, acting mayor and mayor of Suzhou Municipal Party
Committee of Jiangsu Province, secretary of Suzhou Municipal Party Committee of Jiangsu
Province, member of the Standing Committee of Jiangsu Provincial Party Committee and
secretary of the Suzhou Municipal Party Committee. He has been the Party Secretary of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation since August 2019, Chairman of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation Since September 2019, and Chairman of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited since October 2019. He is a
representative of the 19th NPC, alternate member of the 19th Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China, and representative of the 12th National People’s Congress.

Director, general manager, deputy secretary of the Party Committee of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation, director and president of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited, professor-level senior engineer and PhD holder. He
has served as deputy general manager and general manager of Manager Department
of CSCEC Algeria, chairman, and Party Committee secretary of CSCEC Algeria; deputy
general manager of Overseas Cooperation Division of CSCEC; executive director and Party
Committee member of CSCEC International Operations; executive general manager of
Overseas Business Department of CSCEC; assistant general manager and general manager
of Human Resources Department of China Construction Engineering Corporation Limited.
Zheng Xuexuan  Since November 2015, he has been a member of the Party Committee of the former China
State Construction Engineering Corporation. He has been the deputy general manager
of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited since January 2016, the
deputy general manager of the former China State Construction Engineering Corporation
from January 2017, director and deputy secretary of the Party Committee of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation since September 2018, director of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited since May 2019, general manager of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation since November 2019, and president of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited since March 2020. Representative of the
17th National People’s Congress of the Communist Party of China, National Model Worker.

Director, deputy secretary of the Party Committee of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation, director of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, professor-
level senior engineer and Master’'s degree holder. He successively served as vice president,
president and secretary of the Party Committee of China Nonferrous Engineering and
Research Institute (FEH & ITiZi&iTHH5RE6), chairman of the board and general manager
of China ENFI Engineering Corporation (FERIETEFZABRAT), president, vice

Zhang chairman and secretary of the Party Committee of Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.,

Zhaoxiang standing committee member of the Party Committee, general manager, deputy secretary
of the Party Committee, director, general manager and secretary of the Party Committee
of China Metallurgical Group Corporation, deputy general manager and member of the
party group of China Minmetals Corporation. He has been a deputy secretary of the Party
Committee of China State Construction Engineering Corporation since July 2020, a director
of China State Construction Engineering Corporation since August 2020 and a director of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited since December 2020.

Independent director of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited,
professor-level senior engineer, enjoying special government subsidy from the State Council,
a bachelor’s degree holder. He has been the deputy director of the cadre department of the
Ministry of Water and Electricity since October 1986, the director of the personnel and labor
department of the Ministry of Water Resources since June 1988, the deputy director of the

Yang Chunijin personnel and labor department of the Ministry of Water Resources since July 1992, general
manager and party secretary of Jianghe Water Conservancy and Hydropower Development
Company (FFESTAIKFIKEFF A AT) since September 1995, general manager and
party secretary of China Water Conservancy Investment Group Co., Ltd. since June 2001,
and deputy general manager and member of the Party Committee of China Three Gorges
Corporation since March 2009.

Zhou Naixiang
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Name

Yu Hailong

Jia Chen

Zheng
Changhong

Shi Zhiping
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Major work experience

Independent director of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited,
professor-level senior engineer and holder of master in engineering management. Mr.
Yu served as deputy director of the Personnel Bureau of the State Economic and Trade
Commission (ERXZZ AEE) since February 1983, director of the office and the project
investigation department of China Kangfu International Leasing Co., Ltd. under the Ministry
of Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation (EZR/MER I HERE EPREEAF) since
February 1988, and deputy director of the General Office (in charge of work) of Machinery
and Electric Qingfang Investment Co., Ltd. under the State Planning Commission (E it
EHBRYIZRE AT since June 1992. Mr. Yu served as director of the office and secretary
of the Communist Party Committee of State Development & Investment Corporation ([#
RI KA NF]), and general manager of State Development & Investment (Electronics)
Corporation (E#&BF 7)) and State Development & Investment (High Technology and
Pioneering) Corporation (E#&&## /A F]) since March 1994. He served as general
manager and deputy secretary of the Communist Party Committee of China New Era Group
Corporation (FFEFBIIER (S2E]) A F]) since April 2002. From January 2010, he served
as the general manager and secretary of the Communist Party Committee of China New
Era Group Corporation, and from May 2010, he served as the general manger, standing
committee member of the Party Committee and director of China Energy Conservation and
Environmental Protection Group.

Independent director of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and
professor-level senior engineer. Mr. Jia graduated from Liaoning Financial and Trade College
(now Dongbei University of Finance and Economics) with a bachelor’s degree in economics
in February 1982. Worked in the Ministry of Finance from February 1982 to December 2013,
he successively served as deputy director, director, deputy head of the Accounting Division
of the Ministry of Finance, deputy head of General Affairs Division of the Ministry of Finance,
chief of law affairs division of the Ministry of Finance, head of division of corporation of
the Ministry of Finance, and chief of the taxation division of the Ministry of Finance. From
December 2013 to August 2016, he served as a party member and deputy general manager
of China North Industries Group Corporation. In March 2017, he was hired as an external
director of China Mobile Communications Corporation. He used to be the executive director
of the Accounting Society of China, the executive director of the China Association of Chief
Financial Officers, the executive director of Society of Public Finance of China, the vice
chairman of the Asset Management Association of China, and the deputy director of the
Office of the State Council’s Leading Group for the Promotion of SMEs.

Independent director of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited,
professor-level senior engineer and a holder of doctoral degree in engineering. Mr. Zheng
held positions as deputy head of Beijing Ergi Locomotive Works (3tER=tH#1Z%["), director
of the general office, a director and deputy general manager of China National Railway
Locomotive & Rolling Stock Industry Corporation ((FFESEETEZEH TR AF]), a director
and deputy general manager, deputy general manager, secretary of the Party Committee
and deputy general manager and the secretary of the Party Committee of CSR Group
Corporation (FERZELEHFAF), an Executive director, vice chairman, president, chairman
and secretary of the Party Committee of CSR Corporation Limited (FPEEERHBEREA
Al), as well as an executive director, vice chairman and secretary of the Party Committee of
CRRC Corporation Limited (FFEHZEEH]).

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors, chief information officer of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited, a researcher-level senior engineer and holder of bachelor’'s
degree. He successively served as the deputy head of the technology introduction center
and vice director of business division of Science and Technology Information Institute of
the Ministry of Machinery and Electronics Industry (F48 8 F T\l 28Rl 153RFR), director
of the business division of the Science and Technology Information Research Institute of
the Ministry of Machinery Industry, assistant to the dean of the Science and Technology
Information Research Institute of the Ministry of Machinery Industry, assistant to the dean
of the Institute of Mechanical Industry Information and director of the Literature Resource
Center, deputy dean and standing committee member of the Party Committee of the Institute
of Mechanical Industry Information and the director of information center of the SASAC. He
has served as an assistant president and chief information officer of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited since July 2014, chairman of the Board of Supervisors of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited since August 2020. He no longer
served as an assistant president of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited since August 2020.
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Name Major work experience

Supervisor of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, senior engineer
and holder of master in industrial engineering. Mr. Li has served as the deputy director and
director of the coordination office of the Personnel Bureau of China State Construction,
the deputy manager of the personnel department of China State Construction, the general
manager of the human resources department of China State Construction, the vice chairman,
secretary of the Party Committee and deputy general manager of China Overseas Holdings
Limited. From March 2018, he no longer served as vice chairman, secretary of the Party
Committee and deputy general manager of China Overseas Holdings Limited.

Supervisor of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and a senior
accountant. Mr. Tian has served as the deputy director of the Audit Department of China
Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp. Ltd., chief accountant and Party Committee
member of China Construction Eighth Engineering Division Second Company, director,
chief accountant and Party Committee member of China Construction Port Group Co., Ltd.,
director, chief financial officer, and Party Committee member of China State Construction
Harbour Construction Co., Ltd. (renamed in December 2019 as China Construction Harbour
and Channel Engineering Bureau Group Co., Ltd.). Since March 2020, he no longer served
as a director, chief financial officer, and Party Committee member of China Construction
Harbour and Channel Engineering Bureau Group Co., Ltd.

Supervisor of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, senior political
engineer and bachelor's degree holder. He has served as minister of the Propaganda
Department of the Party Committee, deputy secretary of the Party Committee, chairman

Ning Wangchu of the Trade Union, secretary of the Discipline Inspection Commission and supervisor and
inspector of China Southwest Architectural Design and Research Institute. Since February
2018, he no longer served as inspector of China Southwest Architectural Design and
Research Institute.

Supervisor of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, a senior engineer
and bachelor’s degree holder. He successively served as Secretary of the Party Committee
and General Manager of Nanjing Branch of China Construction Second Bureau Second
Company (FZ-/E /A7), General Manager of China Construction Second Bureau

Lu Yanbin Second Company, Deputy General Manager, standing committee member of the Party
Committee and Director of China Construction Second Bureau Co., Ltd. (FEZBEREAX
7)), and inspector of China Construction Second Engineering Division Corp. Ltd. (FEZ
NE_TIEFERALFE). From February 2018, he no longer served as inspector of China
Construction Second Engineering Division Corp. Ltd.

Chief Accountant of China State Construction Engineering Corporation, a member of the
Party Committee, vice president and chief financial officer of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited, researcher-level senior accountant and master's degree
holder. He has served as the chief accountant of the Second Research Institute of CASIC
(Group) Company, the deputy director and minister of the Finance Department of CASIC

Wang Yunlin (Group) Company, the chairman of Aerospace Securities Co., Ltd., and the deputy chief
accountant of CASIC (Group) Company, Member of the Party Committee and Chief
Accountant of China Aerospace Science and Industry Corporation Limited. He served as
a member of Party Committee and Chief Financial Officer of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation since December 2018, and vice president and chief financial officer
of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited since January 2019.

Deputy general manager and member of Party Committee of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation, vice president of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited, senior engineer, and a Ph.D. holder. He has served as Secretary of the General
Office of the State Council (at the bureau level), Deputy Mayor of Nanjing (posted), a
Standing Committee member of Party Committee and Deputy Mayor of Nanjing (posted),
Deputy Secretary of Yangzhou Municipal Committee (at the municipal level), Deputy
Secretary Lianyungang Municipal Committee, Mayor and Secretary of the Party Committee of
the Municipal Government of Lianyungang. He has been a member of the Party Committee
of the former China State Construction Engineering Corporation since November 2015, the
vice president of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited since January
2016, and the vice general manager of the former China State Construction Engineering
Corporation since January 2017.

Li Jianbo

Tian Shifang

Zhao Xiaojiang
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Ma Zeping

Zhou Yong

Shan Guangxiu

Huang Kesi
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Major work experience

Deputy general manager and member of Party Committee of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation, vice president of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited, professor-level senior engineering, holder of a part-time postgraduate diploma.
He has served as the former deputy director of China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division; general manager of infrastructure department of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation; executive director and deputy general manager of CSCEC
International Operations; assistant general manager of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation; Chairman of the Board of China State Construction Railway Construction Co.,
Ltd.; Chairman of China State Construction Harbour Construction Co., Ltd.; Secretary of
Party Work Committee and General Manager of Infrastructure Business Department of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited; Executive Director and General
Manager of China Construction Infrastructure Co., Ltd. (FREZRI&ERIZHERRAE]). He has
been the vice president of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited since
December 2010, a member of the Party Committee of the former China State Construction
Engineering Corporation since November 2015, and the deputy general manager of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation since January 2017. National model worker.

Deputy general manager and member of Party Committee of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation, vice president of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited, professor-level senior engineering, holder of bachelor's degree. Mr. Zhou has
served as Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of China State
Construction International Holdings Limited, Vice Chairman, Deputy General Manager and
Member of Party Committee of China Overseas Holdings Limited, Chairman of the Board
and Secretary of Party Committee of China State Construction International Holdings
Limited, chairman of the Board of Directors and secretary of the Party Committee of China
Overseas Holdings Limited. He has been a member of the Party Committee of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation since December 2018, and the Deputy General
Manager of China State Construction Engineering Corporation and Vice President of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited since January 2019. He is a Member of
the 13th National Political Consultative Committee.

Deputy general manager, Party Committee member of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation, vice president of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited,
senior economist, @ master’'s degree holder. She successively served as a deputy general
manager of the human resources department (cadre affairs department) of the former
China State Construction Engineering Corporation, a director, deputy secretary of the Party
Committee and deputy general manager of China Construction First Group Corporation
Limited and general manager of the human resources department (cadre affairs department)
of China State Construction Engineering Corporation. She has been a deputy general
manager and Party Committee member of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
since June 2020 and a vice president of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited since September 2020.

Vice president of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, Chairman of
the Board and secretary to Party Committee of China Construction Second Engineering
Division Corp. Ltd., a professor-level senior engineer and holder of master’s degree of
business administration. He successively served as chief economist, deputy director, a
standing committee member of Party Committee, director, general manager, chairman, Party
Committee secretary of China Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp. Ltd., and
chairman of CSCEC Xinjiang Construction & Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd. He has been the
vice president of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited since October
2017, and the chairman and secretary of the Party Committee of China Construction Second
Engineering Division Corp. Ltd. since January 2020. He is also a model worker of SOE and
was granted the National May 1st Labor Medal.
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Major work experience

Secretary to the Board of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, senior
accountant, an MBA degree, director of the Chinese Tax Institute, director of Accounting
Society of China, and the consulting expert of the third session of management accounting
of the Ministry of Finance. He has served as the deputy manager of financial and capital
department, general manager of investment department, general manager of capital
department, general manager of financing and investment department of China State

Xue Keging Construction Engineering Corporation; general manager of capital department and general

manager of finance department of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited; vice chairman and general manager of China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd.;
executive director of COHL,; deputy chief accountant of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited and the chief financial officer of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited. He has been the secretary to the Board of Directors of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited since June 2018.

Other explanation

\ Applicable [J N/A

1.

On March 4, 2020, the Company held the 35th meeting of the second session of the Board of Directors and
agreed to appoint Mr. Zheng Xuexuan as the Company’s president.

On July 29, 2020, the Company held the 23rd meeting of the second session of the Board of Supervisors.
The Company agreed Mr. Gao Lieyang's resignation as a supervisor and chairman of the Board of
Supervisors due to job arrangement.

On August 21, 2020, the Company held the second extraordinary general meeting in 2020 of the Company
and Mr. Shi Zhiping was appointed as a supervisor of the Company.

On August 24, 2020, the Company held the 25th meeting of the second session of the Board of Supervisors
and Mr. Shi Zhiping was appointed as the chairman of the Board of Supervisors of the Company.

On September 11, 2020, the Company held the 44th meeting of the second session of the Board of
Directors and agreed to appoint Ms. Shan Guangxiu as a vice president of the Company.

On December 7, 2020, the Company held the third extraordinary general meeting in 2020 and Mr. Zhang
Zhaoxiang was appointed as a director of the second session of the Board of Directors of the Company.
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(I)  Stock options granted to directors and senior management during the Reporting Period

\ Applicable [ N/A

Unit: 0’000 shares

Number of Number of  Market price
restricted Grant price Unlocked restricted at the end of
Name Position shares held at of restricted shares Locked shares shares held as the Reporting
the beginning shares (yuan) of the date of Period (0'000
of the year disclosure yuan)
Zhou Chairman 0 0 0 0 0 0
Naixiang
Zheng Director,
Xuexuan President 0 0 0 0 0 0
Zhang Director 0 0 0 0 0 0
Zhaoxiang
Vice
Wang president,
Yunlin chief financial 0 0 0 0 0 0
officer
Zhao Vice 0 0 0 0 0 0
Xiaojiang president
) Vice
Ma Zeping president 0 0 0 0 0 0
Vice
Zhou Yong . 71.8 0 11.9 59.9 32 297.703
president
Shan Vice 718 0 119 50.9 2 207703
Guangxiu president
Huang Vice 718 0 1.9 59.9 2 297703
Kesi president
Xue Secretary to
. the Board of 71.8 0 11.9 59.9 104 297.703
Keqing h
Directors
Total / 287.2 / 47.6 239.6 200 1,190.812
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Incumbent and Resigned Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management during the

h Positions held in the Company’s shareholders
\ Applicable [1N/A
Name of the Company’s Positions in the Sl C 270
Name X date of the term of of the term of
shareholders Company’s shareholders ) .
office office
Zhou China State Construction Party secretary. chairman August 2019, /
Naixiang Engineering Corporation y o September 2019
Zheng China State Construction Director, general manager, September 2018,
Xuexuan Engineering Corporation deputy party secretar November 2019, /
9 g P puty party y September 2018
Zhang China State Construction Director, deputy party August 2020, July
; ) ’ ) /
Zhaoxiang Engineering Corporation secretary 2020
Wana Yunlin China State Construction Chief accountant, member December 2018, /
¢ Engineering Corporation of Party Committee December 2018
Zhao China State Construction Deputy general manager, January 2017, /
Xiaojiang Engineering Corporation member of Party Committee November 2015
Ma Zepin China State Construction Deputy general manager, January 2017, /
ping Engineering Corporation member of Party Committee November 2015
Zhou Yon China State Construction Deputy general manager, January 2019, /
¢ Engineering Corporation member of Party Committee December 2018
Shan China State Construction Deputy general manager, June 2020, June /
Guangxiu Engineering Corporation member of Party Committee 2020
In January 2017, China State Construction, a controlling shareholder of the Company, received
the Notice on the Appointment of 4 Personnel including Liu Jinzhang (Guo Zi Ren Zi [2017]
No. 2) from the SASAC of the State Council, appointing Zhao Xiaojiang, Ma Zeping and
Zheng Xuexuan as Deputy General Managers of China State Construction (Now renamed
as China State Construction Engineering Corporation); in September 2018, the Company’s
controlling shareholder China State Construction Engineering Corporation received the Notice
on the Appointment and Removal of Zheng Xuexuan and Liu Jinzhang (Guo Ren Zi [2018]
No. 349) from the State Council, appointing Zheng Xuexuan as a director of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation, and removing Zheng Xuexuan from the post of deputy
general manager of China State Construction Engineering Corporation; in December 2018,
the Company’s controlling shareholder, China State Construction Engineering Corporation,
received the Notice on Wang Yunlin’s Appointment (Guo Ren Zi [2018] No. 418) from the State
Council, appointing Wang Yunlin as chief accountant of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation. In January 2019, the Company’s controlling shareholder, China State Construction
Engineering Corporation, received the Notice on Zhou Yong’s Appointment (Guo Ren Zi [2019]
Employment No. 6) from the State Council, appointing Zhou Yong as the deputy general manager of China
at shareholder ~ State Construction Engineering Corporation. In September 2019, the Organization Department
entities of the Communist Party of China Central Committee announced the decision of the Central

Committee of the Party on the adjustment of the main leaders of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation: Comrade Zhou Naixiang was appointed as the Chairman of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation; Comrade Guan Qing was removed from the
position of Chairman of China State Construction Engineering Corporation In November 2019,
the Organization Department of the Communist Party of China Central Committee announced
the decision of the Central Committee of the Party on the adjustment and supplement of the
general manager of China State Construction Engineering Corporation: Comrade Zheng
Xuexuan was appointed as the general manager of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation. In June 2020, China State Construction, a controlling shareholder of the Company
received the Notice on the Appointment of Shan Guangxiu (Guo Ren Zi [2020] No. 149) from
the State Council, appointing Shan Guangxiu as a deputy general manager of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation. In August 2020, China State Construction, a controlling
shareholder of the Company received the Notice on the Appointment of Zhang Zhaoxiang (Guo
Ren Zi [2020] No. 205) from the State Council, appointing Zhang Zhaoxiang as a director of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation.
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Name of the Company’s Positions in the CETIMEREE ! 27 R
Name , date of the term of of the term of
shareholders Company’s shareholders ) .
office office

Such personnel were granted a waiver by the China Securities Regulatory Commission from
compliance with part-time job restrictions. Please refer to the Announcement on Exempting
Several Executives from Part-time Employment Restrictions issued on April 11, 2017, the
Announcement on Appointment of Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company
issued on January 16, 2019, the Announcement on Appointment of Vice President of the
Company issued on January 29, 2019, the Announcement on Appointment of the President
of the Company released on March 5, 2020 and the Appointment of Vice President of the
Company issued on September 12, 2020.

()  Employment at other entities

\ Applicable [ N/A

Commencement  Expiry date

Name of employee Name of other entities Position at other entities  date of the term  of the term of
of office office
Yu Hailong L\:/Isit:elilul_rtg(;jlcal Corporation of Independent director November 2014 /
China Mobile
Jia Chen Communications External director March 2017 /
Corporation
China Communications Independent non- November
Zheng Changhong Construction Company executive director November 2017 2020
Zheng Changhong 8:5;;93252;?;86 Town Independent director January 2018 /
. Everbright Securities . December
Xue Keqing Company Limited Director November 2017 2020

Employment at

other entities /

lll. Remunerations of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

\ Applicable [JN/A

Decision-making procedures for The business performance evaluation and personal performance evaluation are '
remunerations of the directors, carried out by SASAC of the State Council and the Board of Directors, and the
supervisors and senior management  remuneration is subject to approval by SASAC of the State Council.

Based on relevant policies of SASAC of the State Council on the remuneration
management of heads of central enterprises and external directors, and the
remuneration management measures of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited.

Basis for determining the
remunerations of the directors,
supervisors and senior management

The total remuneration (including basic salary, performance bonus, insurance
benefits and allowances) received by the current directors (excluding
independent directors), supervisors and senior management of the Company
for the year was RMB5,876,900. The total allowances for the four independent
directors for the year was RMB240,000. Please refer to “I. Changes in
Shareholding and Remuneration” in this section.

Actual payments of remunerations of
the directors, supervisors and senior
management

Remunerations received in
aggregate by all the directors,
supervisors and senior management
at the end of the Reporting Period

RMB6,116,900
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IV. Changes in Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

\ Applicable [ N/A

Name Positions held Change Reason for change
Zheng Xuexuan Chairman Appointment Work required
Zhao Zhaoxiang Director Election Work required
Shi Zhiping Chalrm?n of the Board of Election Work required
Supervisors
Shan Guangxiu Vice president Appointment Work required
Gao Lieyang Chairman of the Board of Resign Work arrangement

Supervisors

V. Explanation on being Punished by Securities Regulatory Authority in the Past Three Years

(] Applicable + N/A

VI. Employees of Parent Company and Major Subsidiaries

()] Employees

Number of existing staff of the Company 358
Number of existing staff of principal subsidiaries 356,506
Total number of existing staff 356,864

Number of resigned or retired staff to whom the
Company and principal subsidiaries are liable (Total 78,332
number of retired cadres and staff at the end of 2020)

Expertise

Category Number of Staff
Operation and management 11,803
Project construction 196,390
Prospecting and design 20,476
Properties development 44,128
Professional management 84,067
Total 356,864

Educational level

Category Number of Staff
Master’s Degree or above 26,973
Undergraduate Degree 222,197
Associate Degree 51,107
Technical secondary school and below 56,587
Total 356,864

() Remuneration Policy
\ Applicable [ N/A

The Company adheres to market and performance orientation, and strengthens salary evaluation and incentives.
The Company closely associates remuneration distribution with corporate benefits and personal performance,
and the remuneration is directly proportional to performance, which effectively mobilizes the enthusiasm, initiative
and creativity of employees. Meanwhile, with a focus on value creation, it adheres to linkage of work efficiency,
strengthens benchmarking management, improves performance-based salary management, strengthens the
pertinence, accuracy and effectiveness of remuneration distribution, so as to continuously improve the effective
and constrained remuneration distribution system, and promote corporate vitality, competitiveness and creativity.
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(1) Training Program
\ Applicable [ N/A

Focusing closely on the “14th Five-Year Plan” and key annual work points, adhering to a clear-cut stand on politics
to ensure the full and complete implementation of central documents, and relying on “leadership, professionalism
and occupational capabilities”, the Company further improved the key talent cultivation project of CSCEC, steadily
promoted the construction of training systems, and continuously improved education and training ability, to
strengthen overall coordination and organization guidance, promote the smooth development of education and
training, and provide internal drivers for the Company’s talent team building.

(IV)  Labor Service Outsourcing
[J Applicable +/ N/A
VIl. Miscellaneous

\ Applicable [ N/A

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company’s talent structure had been further optimized, and the proportion of
employees with a bachelor's degree or above reached 69.8%.
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SECTION IX CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

SECTION IX CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Explanation on Corporate Governance

\ Applicable O N/A

During the Reporting Period, the Company strictly operated in accordance with the laws and regulations such as the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China, as well as the
administrative regulations issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission and the relevant requirements of various
rules formulated by the Shanghai Stock Exchange. It established and perfected a standardized and comprehensive
corporate governance structure, and effectively constructed a set of systematic and complete corporate governance
systems. In 2020, the Company revised 8 basic corporate governance instruments including the Articles of Association,
Rules of Procedure of the General Meeting, and Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors, optimized the authorization
mechanism of the Board of Directors to the managers, and promoted the working mechanisms of general meeting, the
Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors, managers, and independent directors to a further standardized and efficient
level. The Company continued to track legislative developments, implemented the country’s latest corporate governance
requirements, interpreted and analyzed the key points of the new Securities Law in a timely manner, and organized
learning and publicity and implementation of such provisions to further improve the corporate governance.

During the Reporting Period, the Company thoroughly implemented the spirit and requirements of the Opinions on Further
Improving the Quality of Listed Companies issued by the State Council and the Announcement on Launching Special
Actions on Governance of Listed Companies issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission to actively promote
special corporate governance actions. Based on the self-inspection list, the Company formulated special implementation
plans to conduct a comprehensive review and self-examination of the Company’s basic condition, the operation and
decision-making of the organization, the independence of the Company, related party transactions, capital transactions,
external guarantees, the establishment of an internal control system, information disclosure and transparency, institutional
(foreign) investors, etc., so as to effectively enhance the endogenous power of corporate governance, promote governance
efficiency, and promote high-quality development.

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to improve the quality of information disclosure. Combining statutory
information disclosure and voluntary information disclosure, the Company completed the preparation and disclosure
of 187 compliance reports, including periodic announcements and ad hoc announcements, involving the related party
transactions, external investments, external guarantees, share repurchase and equity incentive and other matters.
The Company was awarded Grade A in the 2019-2020 Information Disclosure Work Evaluation of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. In order to further improve the level of internationalization of periodic reports and facilitate international partners
and foreign investors to understand the Company’s condition in depth, the Company published the English version of the
2019 annual report and the 2020 interim report globally for the first time.

During the Reporting Period, the Company paid attention to the management and maintenance of investor relations. The
Company overcame the adverse effects of the pandemic and conducted investor communication in an innovative manner
by carrying out investor communication at multiple levels and in innovative ways, communicates with investors through
performance roadshows, general meeting of shareholders, cash dividend briefings, investment strategy meetings, investor
collective reception day activities, etc., with the flexible use of video, telephone, on-site and other forms, and giving full
play to the investor hotline, IR mailbox, SSE e-interactive platform. A total of 208 questions at SSE e-interactive platform
and 199 effective investor hotline calls were answered throughout the year. Active communications were conducted with
mainstream index compilation agency. Investor open day event was organized and nearly 50 investors were invited to
China Construction Science and Industry to exchange their opinions on new intelligent manufacturing. The Company
listened to and properly handled the opinions and suggestions put forward by shareholders and investors.

During the Reporting Period, the Company strictly complied with the Administrative Measures for Information Disclosure
and Internal Reports of Material Information, the Administrative Measures for Accountability Regarding Major Errors in the
Annual Report Information Disclosure, the Regulations on the Management of Funds from Related Party Transactions,
Measures on the Management of Shares of the Company Held by the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management and
the Changes thereof and the Administrative Measures on Insider Registration. There was no major violation of relevant
rules.

During the Reporting Period, there was no serious corporate governance non-compliance with relevant regulations and
requirements of the China Securities Regulatory Commission. The Company was not subject to administrative punishment
or notification criticism by the China Securities Regulatory Commission, nor was it punished by other regulatory agencies
or condemned by the stock exchange.

During the Reporting Period, the Company was selected into the “SSE Corporate Governance Sector” for 10 consecutive
years, became a sample stock of the SSE Corporate Governance Index, and won a number of honors such as “Sustainable
Development Contribution Award” by CAIJING ({T448)); the Board of Directors won the “Best Board of Directors” award
from the Golden Round Table of the Board of Directors for 9 consecutive years.

If there is any serious corporate governance non-compliance with relevant requirements of the China Securities Regulatory
Commission, please provide the reasons

O Applicable N/A



SECTION IX CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Overview on the General Meeting of Shareholders

Search index of

Session Date of general the designated Date of disclosure
meeting website for publishing of resolutions
resolutions
The first extraordinary
general meeting in 2020 February 19, 2020 Www.sse.com.cn February 20, 2020
2019 annual general meeting May 25, 2020 WWW.sse.com.cn May 26, 2020
The second e>.<tra9rd|nary August 21, 2020 WWWw.Sse.com.cn August 22, 2020
general meeting in 2020
The third extraordinary December 7, 2020 WwWWw.sse.com.cn December 8, 2020

general meeting in 2020

Description of General Meetings
\ Applicable O N/A

During the Reporting Period, a total of 4 proposals were considered at the first extraordinary general meeting in 2020 of the
Company, and all were approved by voting. A total of 15 proposals were considered at the 2019 annual general meeting
of the Company, and all were approved by voting. A total of 2 proposals were considered at the second extraordinary
general meeting in 2020 of the Company, and all were approved by voting. A total of 7 proposals were considered at
the third extraordinary general meeting in 2020 of the Company, and all were approved by voting. The resolutions were
disclosed on the websites of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, China Securities Journal, the Shanghai Securities News, the
Securities Times and the Securities Daily.

Performance of Directors’ Duties

()] Attendance of directors at Board meetings and general meetings

Attendance at Board meetings Attendance
Independent No. of Atend Absence from at general
Name of director director meefingsto  Aftendance endance - ptendance metings for megtings
i ; . by means of Absence . Times of
0rno attend during in person communication by proxy two consecutive
the year times attendance
Zhou Naixiang No 18 2 14 2 0 No 2

On October 28, 2020, as recommended by the Company’s Personnel and Remuneration Committee, upon
consideration and approval at the 47th meeting of the second session of the Board of the Company, it was
agreed to appoint Zhang Zhaoxiang as a candidate for director of the second session of the Board of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, and such proposal was submitted to the shareholders’ general
meeting for consideration. On December 7, 2020, the Company held the third extraordinary general meeting in
2020, which reviewed and approved the Proposal on Election of Zhang Zhaoxiang as Director of the Second
Session of the Board of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited. Mr. Zhang Zhaoxiang was
thus elected as the director of the Company. For details, please refer to the Announcement on Resolutions of the
2020 Third Extraordinary General Meeting of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited issued on
December 8, 2020.

The seven directors, i.e., Mr. Zhou Naixiang, Mr. Zheng Xuexuan, Mr. Zhang Zhaoxiang, Mr. Yang Chunjin, Mr.
Yu Hailong, Mr. Jia Chen and Mr. Zheng Changhong are members of the second session of the Board of the
Company.

Description of the members of the Board who failed to attend Board meetings in person for two consecutive times

O Applicable / N/A
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No. of Board meetings held during the year 18
Including: No. of on-site Board meetings 4
No. of Board meetings convened by means of communication 14
No. of Board meetings held both on-site and by means of communication 0

(I Disagreement of the independent directors on matters related to the Company
O Applicable  /N/A

(I Miscellaneous
\ Applicable O N/A

The Company’s independent directors reviewed and supervised the performance of president Mr. Zheng Xuexuan,
vice president and chief financial officer Mr. Wang Yunlin, vice president Mr. Zhao Xiaojiang, vice president Mr.
Ma Zeping, vice president Mr. Zhou Yong and vice president Ms. Shan Gaungxiu, who also served as senior
executives of the Company’s controlling shareholder, China State Construction Engineering Corporation, and
expressed the following independent opinions: Mr. Zheng Xuexuan, Mr. Wang Yunlin, Mr. Zhao Xiaojiang, Mr. Ma
Zeping, Mr. Zhou Yong and Ms. Shan Guangxiu earnestly and diligently fulfilled their commitments, performed their
duties as senior management of the Company as a priority, well handled the relation between the Company and
the controlling shareholder, and maintained the interests of the Company and all shareholders in 2020, and they
did not do anything that would harm the shareholders of the Company, especially minority shareholders because
of their part-time jobs.

Details that Shall be Disclosed Where There Is Any Disagreement as to Important Advice
and Recommendations Made by the Special Committees of the Board in the Performance of
Their Duties during the Reporting Period

\ Applicable O N/A

The Company’s Board of Directors has set up three special committees, namely the Strategy Committee, Personnel and
Remuneration Committee, and Audit Committee, which seriously organize research and diligently examine professional
issues, and effectively exert the full advising and decision support functions of the special committees. During the
Reporting Period, the special committees under the Board of Directors held 23 meetings and reviewed 47 issues (including
12 reports).

The Strategy Committee held 1 meeting and reviewed 1 proposal. Specifically: On April 23, 2020, the Company convened
the fourth meeting of the Strategy Committee under the second session of the Board to consider the Proposal on the 2020
Investment Budget Report of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited. The Strategy Committee improves
the scientificity and rigor of the Company’s investment decision-making process through objective and scientific review of
the Company’s investment management budget.

The Personnel and Remuneration Committee held 10 meetings and reviewed 14 proposals. Specifically: In strict
accordance with the relevant regulations, through comprehensive and objective, systematic and in-depth research
and discussion, and in combination with the Company’s reform and development strategy and actual work needs, the
Personnel and Remuneration Committee revised the Administrative Measures on Remuneration and Assessment of Senior
Management of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, formed the Measures for Implementation,
Assessment and Management of Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited, and comprehensively considered and strictly reviewed the specific implementation plans for
unlocking, repurchase and granting of restricted shares, giving full play to independence, objectivity and prudence, and
effectively safeguarding the Company’s healthy, stable and sustainable development.

The Audit Committee convened 12 meetings, reviewed 20 proposals and listened to 12 working reports. Specifically:
The Audit Committee performed its duties strictly in accordance with relevant regulations, strictly reviewed the internal
audit work plan, urged the establishment, improvement and effective implementation of the Company’s internal control
system, and promoted the improvement of scientific and objective decision-making of the Company. First, it urged the
certified public accountants to submit audit or review reports within the agreed time limit, which effectively promoted and
guaranteed the Company’s annual report preparation, auditing, internal control and final accounts, and other related work.
Second, it focused on the audit plan and the progress of pre-review work and consolidated financial statements, problems
found in audits, and rectification, etc., actively and continuously carried out effective and high-quality communication
with the annual auditing certified public accountants, and actively promoted the resolution of the problems found in the
communication in a timely manner. Third, it promoted the professional prudence and independence of related work
by changing financial report auditing institution and internal control auditing institution. Fourth, it further promoted the
institutionalization, standardization and systematization of the Company’s internal control governance system through
careful consideration of the related party transaction plan, applying to the controlling shareholder for entrusted loans and
related party transactions, altering accounting policies and other proposals. Lastly, it carefully listened to the accountant’s
review report and the Company’s financial final accounts report and strictly reviewed the Company’s annual financial
report, interim report and quarterly report, to identify the weak spots and potential management risks in the Company’s
operation and management process in a timely manner, and provided guidance to the management on the issues found.
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Board of Supervisors’ Explanation on the Risks Identified

\ Applicable O N/A

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s Board of Supervisors performed its duties conscientiously in accordance
with the Company Law, the Code of Corporate Governance for Listed Companies, the Articles of Association and Rules
of Procedure of Board of Supervisors. Focusing on risk prevention and control, the Board of Supervisors supervised the
finances, internal controls and performance of duties of directors and senior management, the details of which are as

follows:

U] Work of the Board of Supervisors

1.

Focus on supervision and inspection

During the Reporting Period, based on the Company’s major risk management and with a focus on
the Company’s development quality and asset operation efficiency and investment risks, the Board
of Supervisors guided and organized the Office of the Board of Supervisors to conduct supervision,
investigation and inspection on key aspects based on audit findings:

The Board of Supervisors conducted special investigations on the impact of the pandemic in light of its
sudden outbreak. Comprehensively understanding the implementation of the anti-pandemic-related benefit
policies and the impact of the pandemic on production and operation and major economic indicators, the
Board of Supervisors summarized typical experiences and put forward management recommendations
and improvement measures to facilitate the completion of the Company’s annual business and production
goals and tasks.

The Company conducted special investigations in the first-line production and operation units. Based on
the Company'’s key work deployment and major risk prevention and control, the Company understood the
production and operation conditions after the pandemic, focused on the typical experience during the
“13th Five-Year Plan” and the strategic concept of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, analyzed the problems in the
development process, and explored and provided innovative targeted suggestions for the Company to
maximize its strengths and avoid weaknesses.

The Board of Supervisors paid attention to the internal control audit of the Company to enhance its internal
control development. The Company focused on financing management, management of completed
projects fulfillment, investment management, real estate project marketing and cost management, etc.,
covering the key control points of the internal control process at the company level, contract costs, capital
management, investment management, etc., to further promote the standardization and refinement of
corporate management.

Major risks identified

During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors discovered certain risks in the following areas during
the supervision and inspection process:

(1) The macroeconomic landscape remains complex and changeable. There are many uncertainties
in the development of the pandemic and the external environment. The complicated and severe
world economy, unstable and uneven economic recovery and various derivative risks caused by
the pandemic cannot be ignored. The traditional investment structure is gradually shifting to a
novel investment structure dominated by modern service industries and high-tech manufacturing.
The growth momentum of real estate and infrastructure investment may gradually slow down, and it
will be more difficult to break through in a continuous manner.

(2) The prevention of risks in overseas operations shall be strengthened. The recovery of the
European and American economies is weak, and some emerging markets are still suffering from
the pandemic. The overestimated economic recovery has increased the political uncertainty in
some countries and regions, and the sovereign debt risks of some emerging markets are alarming.
In addition, the management capabilities and management levels of overseas institutions and
projects still need to be continuously improved.

(3) The ability to promote high-quality development with informatization shall be improved. The
Company should lay a solid foundation, make up for shortcomings, and accelerate development
in terms of promoting integrated management and control of the Group through information
construction, using industrial digitization to improve lean management, and expanding the digital
industry to integrate into the new digital economy. It has to further stimulate the vitality of elements.
The construction of key systems for informatization remains to be continued.

(4) The internal control of certain business procedures shall be continuously improved. In general,
there is no systematic deficiency in our internal control system, but several rules or business
procedures of a few units shall be further revised or improved. Some units have not implemented
several internal control links according to the system, and should further strengthen the
implementation of the system.

The Board of Supervisors has reported the above issues and risks to the management of the Company,
and put forward tailored suggestions. The Company actively urged the relevant units to follow the
suggestions and rectify the identified issues. The specific issues have been effectively resolved, and the
problems that require long-term rectification continue to be resolved in stages according to the rectification
plan.
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3. Meetings of the Board of Supervisors

During the Reporting Period, the supervisors of the Company attended 4 general meetings, 4 board
meetings and 6 Audit Committee meetings as well as important meetings in the Company’s daily operations
to regularly understand and timely grasp the Company’s daily operating conditions and important
decision-making conditions and carry out supervision according to law. The Board of Supervisors held 17
meetings, namely the 18th to 34th meetings of the second session of the Board of Supervisors, reviewed
and approved 53 proposals and issued relevant written announcements. The details of the meetings are as

follows:

Date of meeting

February 3,
2020

Name of
meeting

The 18th meeting of the
second session of the
Board of Supervisors

~

Content of proposal

The Proposal on Appointment of Auditors for the 2020 Financial Report of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

The Proposal on Relevant Matters regarding the Redemption of the 150,000,000 Unlisted Preferred
Shares of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

The Proposal on Amendments to the Articles of Association of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

The Proposal on Amendments to the Rules of Procedure of General Meeting of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

The Proposal on the Convening of the First Extraordinary General Meeting in 2020 of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

Form of
meeting

n writing

April 24,
2020

The 19th meeting of the
second session of the
Board of Supervisors

=)

Work Report of the Board of Directors in 2019 of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited

Work Report of Independent Directors in 2019 of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited

Work Report of the Board of Supervisors in 2019 of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited

Report on the Performance of Duties of the Audit Committee of the Second Session of the Board of
Directors for 2019 of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

President's Work Report for 2019 of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

Senior Management's Report for 2019 of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
The Proposal on 2019 Final Budget Report of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited

The Proposal on 2019 Profit Distribution Plan of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited

The Proposal in Respect of the Special Notes and Special Reports on Changes in Accounting Policies
for 2019 and Special Report of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

The 2019 Annual Report of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

The 2019 Internal Control Evaluation Report of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited

2019 Sustainability Report of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

Financial Budget Report in 2020 of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
Proposal in Respect of Daily Related Party Transactions of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited for 2020

The Proposal on Changing the Internal Control Auditors in 2020 of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

Investment Budget Report for 2020 of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

The Proposal on the Proposed Additional Financing Guarantee in 2020 of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

The Proposal on Domestic Bond Issue Quota Reserve of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

The Proposal on Maintenance of Liability Insurance for Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and Its Subsidiaries for 2020

In writing

April 29,
2020

The 20th meeting of the
second session of the
Board of Supervisors

The Proposal on the First Quarterly Financial Report in 2020 of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited
The Proposal on the First Quarterly Report in 2020 of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

In writing

May 13,
220

The 21st meeting of the
second session of the
Board of Supervisors

The Proposal on Amendments to the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

n writing

May 28,
2020

The 22nd meeting of the
second session of the
Board of Supervisors

The Proposal on the Rules of Procedure of Chairman's Executive Meeting of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

The Proposal on the Rules of Procedure of General Manager's Executive Meeting of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

In writing

July 29,
2020

The 23rd meeting of the
second session of the
Board of Supervisors

The Proposal on Nominating Candidate for Supervisors of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

In writing

August 5,
2020

The 24th meeting of the
second session of the
Board of Supervisors

The Proposal on Amendments to the Allowances Policy for Directors and Supervisors of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

In writing

August 24,
2020

The 25th meeting of the
second session of the
Board of Supervisors

The Proposal on Election of the Chairman of the Second Session of Board of Supervisors of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

On-site
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g Name of Form of
Date of meeting meeiing Content of proposal neelng
The Proposal on President’s Semi-annual Report in 2020 of China State Construction Engineering
Auaust 27 The 26th meeting of the Corporation Limited
2030 ' second session of the The Proposal on Interim Financial Analysis Report in 2020 of China State Construction Engineering  In writing
Board of Supervisors Corporation Limited
The Proposal on Interim Report in 2020 of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
' The Proposal on Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme (Draft) of China State Construction
September 17, Igceo%tg g:ﬂ'nngfmhe Engineering Corporation Limited and Summary In win
2020 Board of Supenvisors The Proposal on Measures for Implementation, Assessment and Management of Phase IV Restricted 9
P A Share Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
October 23 The 28th meeting of the
w0 second session of the The Proposal on the Repurchase of Shares of the Company through Gentralized Bidding Trading In witing
Board of Supervisors
The 29t meeting of the The Proposal on the Third Quarterly Financial Analysis Report in 2020 of China State Construction
October 28, second session of the Engineering Corporation Limited In it
2020 Board of Suoenisors The Proposal on the Third Quarterly Report in 2020 of China State Construction Engineering 9
P Corporation Limited
November 9, Igceoi%tg e@gﬁfg”gﬁ;éhe 1.~ The Proposal on the Capital Increase in China State Constyuction Finance Co., Lid by the Company Inwing
2020 Board of Supenisors and lts Controlling Shareholders and Related Party Transactions
The 31st meeting of he 1.~ The Proposal on the List of Participants and Information on the Grant of Phase IV Restricted A Share
November 20, second session gf he Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited Inwitin
2020 Board of Supervisors 2. The Proposal on the Repurchase of Part of Participants' Shares under the Phase Il and IIl Restricted A 0
P Share Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
December 1, Isceo%nger:sggngf?;éhe 1. The Proposal on Publicity of thq List of. Pan‘icipants of the P'ha'se |V Restricted A Share Incentive Inwitng
2020 Board o Supenisrs Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
' 1. The Proposal on the Granting under the Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of China State
December 23, Igceoi%rg ergseiitrl]ngf?rf]éhe Construction Engineering Corporation Limited In win
2020 Board of Suoenisors 2. The Proposal on Adopting the New Lease Standards of China State Construction Engineering 9
P Corporation Limited
1. The Proposal on the Third Tranche of Unlocking in 2020 in Respect of Phase Il Restricted A Share
Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
2. The Proposal on the First Tranche of Unlocking in 2020 in Respect of Phase Ill Restricted A Share
Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
3. The Proposal on the Repurchase of Part of Participants' Shares under the Phase Il and Ill Restricted A
The 341h meeting of the Share Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
December 29, second Session gf the 4. The Proposal on the Audit Arrangement for the Financial Report of Overseas Subsidiaries in 2020 of In wrin
2020 China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited 9

Board of Supenisors 5. The Proposal on Renewal of the Comprehensive Services Framework Agreement between China State

Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and China State Construction Engineering Corporation
6. The Proposal on Renewal of the Financial Services Framework Agreement between China State
Construction Finance Co., Ltd. and China State Construction Engineering Corporation
7. The Proposal on the Provision of Entrusted Loan by China State Construction Engineering Corporation
to China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

Independent opinion of the Board of Supervisors

1

Overall management and performance evaluation

During the Reporting Period, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic and the complex and changeable external
environment, the Company thoroughly implemented the decision and deployment of the Party Central
Committee and the State Council under the guidance of President Xi Jinping’s thought on socialism with
Chinese characteristics for a new era, proactively made concrete efforts, calmly responded to changes
in the external environment, actively identified and assessed risks, formulated and issued the Major Risk
Prevention and Control Report of China State Construction Engineering Corporation to effectively prevent
various risks. In 2020, the Company’s production and operation achieved substantial growth against the
trend under extremely difficult conditions. The foundation was further consolidated.

Meanwhile, the Board of Supervisors believed that the Company should further give full play to its leading
role among central enterprises, improve the quality of operation and development, and steadily move
towards its strategic goal of “one creation and five aspects of strength”. The Board of Supervisors provided
the following recommendations for the Company: First, comprehensively deepen reform and innovation to
serve the overall national development; second, attach great importance to cash flow control, and continue
to promote leverage reduction; third, continue to strengthen project management, create high-quality
projects to enhance brand reputation; fourth, steadily practice overseas high-quality development and
cultivate global competitive advantages; fifth, enhance risk prevention to promote the Company’s stable
and long-term development.
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2. Independent opinions on specific matters

U]

@)

Compliance of the Company’s operation

During the Reporting Period, the Company operated in accordance with the Company Law and the
Articles of Association and related policies and regulations, and the decision-making procedures
were legal and effective. The directors and senior management of the Company performed their
duties diligently and conscientiously and were not found to have violated any laws, regulations or
the Articles of Association, or damage the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Authenticity of financial reports

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s financial statements were prepared in compliance
with the relevant regulations of the Accounting Regulations for Enterprises and the Accounting
Standards for Enterprises. The Company’s 2020 financial report truly reflects its financial condition
and operating results. Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership) issued a
standard unqualified audit report, which is objective and fair.

The Company’s acquisition and disposal of assets

During the Reporting Period, the Company and its subsidiaries completed 0 major external merger
and acquisition and deregistered 66 subsidiaries. During the Reporting Period, the Company’s
acquisition and disposal of assets were not found to be detrimental to the interests of shareholders
or the interests of the Company.

The Company’s related party transactions

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s related party transactions mainly involved related party
sales, related party purchases, property leasing, capital borrowing interest, trademark licensing,
entrusted loans provided by related parties to the Company and co-investment with related parties,
etc., which are necessary and inevitable for ordinary production and operation, and have a positive
significance for the Company’s development. The Company formulated and reviewed the Proposal
in Respect of Daily Related Party Transaction of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited for 2020, and specially reviewed and approved the Proposal on the Capital Increase in
China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. by the Company and its Controlling Shareholders
and Related Party Transactions, the Proposal on the Renewal of the Comprehensive Services
Framework Agreement between China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and
China State Construction Engineering Corporation, the Proposal on the Renewal of the Financial
Services Framework Agreement between China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. and China
State Construction Engineering Corporation, and the Proposal on the Provision of Entrusted Loan
by China State Construction Engineering Corporation to China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited. The procedures of consideration and voting are legal and valid. The Company
(and/or the Company’s controlled subsidiaries) and the related parties respectively signed specific
execution contracts in accordance with the requirements of the plan, which comply with relevant
provisions, and the pricing of related party transactions was fair. The related party transactions
were not found to be detrimental to the interests of shareholders or the interests of the Company.

Special explanation on the Company’s 2020 Internal Control Evaluation Report

During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors paid attention to and urged the rectification
of the Company’s internal control system construction and internal control testing. No violations of
the Guidelines for Internal Control of Listed Companies and the Basic Internal Control Norms for
Enterprises have been found. The evaluation report on the Company’s internal control objectively,
truthfully and accurately reflected the actual situation of the Company'’s internal control.

In 2021, the Board of Supervisors of the Company will further promote innovation in accordance
with the requirements to promote the modernization of the governance system and governance
capabilities of enterprises, strictly perform its duties and strengthen supervision in accordance with
the Company Law, the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules to ensure the legitimate rights
and interests of the Company and its shareholders, and fully play its role in corporate governance
of the Company.
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Statement of the Company’s Inability to Ensure Independence and Maintain Its Independent
Operation with Its Controlling Shareholder in Several Aspects such as Business, Personnel,
Assets, Institutions and Financing

O Applicable +/ N/A

Corresponding solutions, working progress and subsequent working plans of the Company in case of horizontal
competition

O Applicable  / N/A

Appraisal Mechanism for Senior Management and the Establishment and Implementation of
Incentive Mechanism during the Reporting Period

\ Applicable O N/A

For details, please refer to “SECTION VIII DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES”
hereof.

Disclosure of Internal Control Self-evaluation Report

\ Applicable O N/A

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to optimize the internal control system, revised and improved the
internal control rules, and ensured the effective implementation of various rules. It further streamlined and standardized
various business processes to improve the Company’s management and risk prevention and control. The Company has
continuously improved its internal control process, covering all aspects including decision-making, execution, supervision,
and feedback. The comprehensiveness and effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control have been further improved.

For details of the Company’s internal control evaluation report, please refer to 2020 Internal Control Evaluation Report of
CSCEC as reviewed and approved by the 53rd meeting of the second session of the Board of the Company and disclosed
on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Description of material defects of internal control during the Reporting Period

O Applicable N/A
Information on Internal Control Audit Report

\ Applicable O N/A

Upon approval by shareholders at the general meeting, the Company engaged Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special
General Partnership) to audit the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control related to the financial report as of
December 31, 2020, which issued a standard unqualified internal control audit report.

For details of the internal control audit report, please refer to 2020 Internal Control Audit Report of CSCEC as considered
and approved at the 53rd meeting of the second session of the Board and disclosed on the website of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

Whether the Internal Control Audit Report is disclosed: Yes

Type of opinion of the internal control audit report: Standard unqualified opinion
Miscellaneous

O Applicable N/A
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SECTION X INFORMATION ON CORPORATE BONDS

O Applicable  « N/A

SECTION XI FINANCIAL REPORT

. Audit Report

\ Applicable O N/A

Attached hereto

II. Financial Statements

Attached hereto

SECTION XII INDEX OF DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Financial statements signed and sealed by the legal representative (Chairman), person-in-charge of the
accounting affairs (chief financial officer) and person-in-charge of the accounting department (head of the

Index of documents ~_accounting department)

available for The original audit report with the seal of the accounting firm and signatures and seals of the certified
inspection public accountants

The originals of all Company documents and manuscripts of announcements publicly disclosed in
newspapers designated by the China Securities Regulatory Commission during the Reporting Period

China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
Chairman: Zhou Naixiang

Date of approval by the Board of Directors for submission: April 16, 2021

AMENDMENTS

O Applicable N/A
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2021) Shen Zi No.61398485_A01

China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

To the Shareholders of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited,

U

(n

()

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited (hereinafter
the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated and company income statements, the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity and the
consolidated and company statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and
company'’s financial position as at 31 December 2020, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year ended
in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (*ASBEs”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing (“CSAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with China Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit
opinion on the accompanying financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2021) Shen Zi No.61398485_A01

China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition from construction contracts

The revenue of the Company is mainly derived from
construction contracts and recognised based on the
performance progress over the period of the contract.
Depending on the nature of construction projects,
determined by input method, the performance progress
is measured by reference to the percentage of actual
contract costs incurred to the total budgeted costs.
Management makes estimates on the revenue and
budgeted costs at the inception of each contract.
Management shall continuously review and revise financial
impacts arising from the changes in the estimated total
revenue and budgeted costs based on factors such as
scope changes and cost to completion throughout the
contract period.

Estimates in respect of revenue, budgeted costs as
well as the progress of related construction services
involve management’s use of significant estimates
and judgements, and have significant impact on the
recognition of revenue. Therefore, we identified the
revenue recognition from construction contracts as a key
audit matter.

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes Ill. 23 and Ill. 34 and note V. 49 to the financial
statements.

We obtained an understanding of, tested and evaluated
the relevant controls over revenue recognition from
construction contracts, including the key internal
control of preparation of revenue and budgeted costs,
the determination of performance progress, and the
calculation of revenue according to the performance
progress.

We obtained the list of construction contracts from
management, and we performed the following procedures
on a sample basis:

o Reviewed the key terms of the construction
contracts, revenue and budgeted costs from
management, as well as supporting documents
such as changes on budgeted costs, variation
orders made to the original contracts and claims
and incentives, evaluating the appropriateness of
management’s estimation basis of revenue and
budgeted costs;

. Tested the accuracy of actual costs incurred
during the year by reviewing supporting
documents and verifying whether the actual costs
were recorded in the appropriate accounting
period;

o Recalculated the accuracy of performance
progress according to actual contract cost
incurred and budgeted costs, and performed
analytical review procedures on gross margin of
significant construction works;

° Visiting selected samples of sites of construction
projects to observe the progress, discussing
with the site project management, comparing the
performance progress with ledger record, and
evaluating the reasonableness of the performance
progress of the construction projects.

Meanwhile, we evaluated the adequacy of disclosure of
revenue recognition from construction contracts.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2021) Shen Zi No.61398485_A01

China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of accounts receivable, contract assets and

long-term receivables

The impairment allowance of accounts receivable, contract
assets and long-term receivables was recognised based
on expected credit losses (ECLs). The management
determines the ECLs based on reasonable and supportable
information on past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions etc., which involves significant
management’s judgements and estimates. The balances of
the Company’s accounts receivable, contract assets and
long-term receivables are significant, and their recoverability
has a significant impact on the financial statements.
Therefore, we identified the impairment of accounts
receivable, contract assets and long-term receivables as a
key audit matter.

The accounting policies and disclosures are included in
notes Ill. 9 and Ill. 24 and note V. 4, V. 9 and V. 13 to the
financial statements.

We obtained an understanding of, tested and evaluated
the relevant controls over the impairment test of accounts
receivable, contract assets and long-term receivables.

For accounts receivable, contract assets, and long-
term receivables which the management assesses the
ECLs individually, we checked supporting documents to
assess the customers’ payment ability and the historical
settlement of the contract assets on a sample basis.
Combined with the customers’ financial position, credit
status, project progress, historical payment record and
forecasted future economic situation, we evaluated the
rationality and sufficiency of the management's provision
of ECLs.

For accounts receivable, contract assets and long-term
receivables which the management assesses the ECLs
collectively by reference toof the credit risk characteristics
based on the historical payment, settlement and ageing
profile, combined with the current condition and forward-
looking adjustments, we evaluated the appropriateness
of classification by the management and the estimated
ECLs rate for different categories. On a sample basis, we
assessed the accuracy of the credit risk classification and
ageing profiles of accounts receivable, contract assets
and long-term receivables, and recalculated the provision
of ECLs.

We inspected the subsequent payments of accounts
receivable and long-term receivables and the subsequent
settlements of contract assets on a sample basis.

Meanwhile, we evaluated the adequacy of disclosure of
impairment of accounts receivable, contract assets and
long-term receivables.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2021) Shen Zi No.61398485_A01

China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

Other information

The management of the Company is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the management and those charged with governance for the financial

statements

The management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with ASBEs, and for designing, implementing and maintaining such internal control as the management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting, unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are generally considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(@) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control.

(3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the management.

(4) Conclude on the appropriateness of the management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2021) Shen Zi No.61398485_A01

China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

(5) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

(6) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities

within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide statements to the governance regarding compliance with ethical requirements relating to independence,
communicating with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be considered to affect the
independence, as well as the relevant precautions (if applicable).

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Zhou Ying

Emnst & Young Hua Ming LLP

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yang Shujuan

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Shen Yan

Beijing, China 16 April, 2021
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(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Current assets

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

295,857,190 292,441,419
244,459 902,072
31,989,282 26,918,443
160,441,814 153,961,875
3,788,082 3,674,166
42,243,346 55,084,548
54,626,721 53,186,521
675,125,328 578,917,620
141,065,956 150,975,326
77,936,729 57,463,704
94,311,158 87,980,288
1,577,630,065 1,461,505,982
14,605,329 17,759,804
356,377 612,106
177,642,042 164,825,662
86,439,061 74,916,901
5,838,384 8,069,043
335,510 50,510
97,123,680 76,301,157
39,126,960 37,554,496
10,933,089 10,085,813
22,558,997 16,409,157
2,290,261 2,347,428
1,098,709 935,800
16,249,442 15,129,128
139,945,933 147,948,942
614,543,774 572,945,947
2,192,173,839 2,034,451,929
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY Note V 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings

The financial statements have been signed by:

Chairman: Zhou Naixiang Chief Finance Officer: Wang Yunlin Head of the Finance Department: Xie Song

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Note V 2020 2019

Revenue 49 1,615,023,327 1,419,836,588

Less: Cost of sales 49 1,440,131,634 1,262,226,200

Taxes and surcharges 50 15,895,535 17,220,003
U Se”mganddlsmbunonexpenses ...................................................... 515,522’266 ...................... 4330826
U General an d admmlst ratlve . e Xpenses ................................................ 52 ........................... 28 ,9 8 2, 939 .................... 27685 4 7 7 -
U Res earCh and de v elopment . expenses ............................................... 53 ........................... 25 ,5 2 2, 546 .................... 17289 9 3 9 -
U Fmanceexpenses ............................................................................. 547,797’699 ...................... 7911711
U InCIUdmg I n terest exp e n Ses ......................................................................................... 12 ,4 2 3’ 310 .................... 10476 4 0 5 -

Interest income 3,760,919 3,648,525

Add: Other income 612,604 301,988

Investment income 55 6,151,615 4,212,538

Including: Share of profit of associates and joint ventures 5,918,135 4,673,782

Losses from derecognition of financial assets

measured at amortised cost (2,200,204) (2,330,684)

Gains/(losses) arising from changes in fair value 56 50,773 (484,752)

Credit impairment losses 57 (3,341,524) (2,271,556)

Asset impairment losses 58 (328,482) (1,266,669)

Gains on disposals of assets 166,167 131,105
- operatmg prom ..................................................................................................................... 94,4 8 1 , 861 .................... 83795 O 8 6 -
AddNonoperatmgmcome ...................................................................... 59809,174 ...................... 1294032

Less: Non-operating expenses 60 1,000,430 3,621,272

Profit before income taxes 94,290,605 81,467,846

Less: Income tax expenses 62 23,340,225 18,262,603

Profit 70,950,380 63,205,243

Classified by continuity of operations
Profit from continuing operations 70,950,380 63,205,243
Classified by ownership of the equity

Profit attributable to owners of the parent 44,944,250 41,881,399

S P rom . a m Ibmable t O . n On Contm”mgmterest S ........................................................................ 26,00 6 , 1 30 .................... 21323 8 4 4 -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Note V 2020 2019
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 938,030 606,129
Attributable to owners of the parents 908,034 580,780
Other comprehensive income that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss (776,873) 1,033,764
Remeasurement gains or losses of a defined benefit plan (44,024) (27,690)
Changes in fair value of investments in other equity instruments (732,849) 1,061,454
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss 1,684,907 (452,984)
Shares of other comprehensive losses that will be reclassified
subsequently into profit or loss by the investee under equity
method 95,073 (189,202)
Changes in fair value of other debt investments (22,825) 11,483
Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency financial
statements 1,612,659 (275,265)
Attributable to non-controlling interests 29,996 25,349
Total comprehensive income 71,888,410 63,811,372
Attributable to owners of the parent 45,852,284 42,462,179
Attributable to non-controlling interests 26,036,126 21,349,193
Earnings per share 63
Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) 1.07 0.97
Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) 1.07 0.96
The financial statements have been signed by:
Chairman: Zhou Naixiang Chief Finance Officer: Wang Yunlin Head of the Finance Department: Xie Song

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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